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COMPANY PROFILE
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Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757), is a leading
supplier of solar energy services. Its products are not only sold to
customers in the upstream and mid-stream industries, but also
directly to end users.

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the following
businesses:

(@)  the manufacture of, trading of and provision of processing
services for monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers;

(b)  the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules; and
(c)  the construction and operating of photovoltaic power plants.

The Group now focuses on the manufacturing and sales of upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers and downstream
photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic industry. Among them, the
major customers of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers are
large midstream solar cell manufacturers and the major customers of
photovoltaic modules are large domestic state-owned enterprises,
multinational corporations and other photovoltaic end-user
customers. This enables the Group to fully demonstrate its current
advantages in the production of such products. Moreover, the Group
is engaged in the installation of photovoltaic systems and the
development, design, construction, operation and maintenance of
photovoltaic generation plants.

Currently, our integrated business model includes monocrystalline
silicon solar ingot production with annual capacity of 5.7GW, solar
wafer production with annual capacity of 4.1GW and modules
production with annual capacity of 7.2GW, respectively.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Five-Year Financial Summary T FEMBEBRE
RMB'000 ARETR
2017 2018 2019 2020

—F-t% ZE-N\F ZE-NF CZFZFF
Revenue A 3,999,616 4,022,452 4,425,552 6,051,956 7,104,992
Gross profit EH 657,873 397,550 341,368 585,852 879,083
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE/ (EB8B) 123,757 (220,587) (354,358) (196,367) 302,352
Profit/(loss) attributable to FENTRAREMN

owners of the parent A/ (E8) 107,462 (222,402) (355,492) (215,648) 193,222
Basic earnings/(loss) per share &R EKREF /(FE)

(RMB cents) (ARED) 3.35 (6.92) (11.07) (6.82) 5.84
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,789,319 1,811,054 1,606,272 1,743,154 2,166,354
Current assets REEE 2,821,891 2,754,947 2,822,908 3,858,549 4,124,818
Current liabilities wEasE 3,170,491 3,431,772 3,578,792 4,822,316 4,893,543
Non-current liabilities ERBAR 405,290 326,238 394,822 439,391 725,350
Net assets EESE 1,035,429 807,991 455,566 339,996 672,279
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
GROW TO FEXRE RBl=ZAF
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Dear honourable shareholders,
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TAN Wenhua,
Executive Director and Chairman

BUE RTEEREE

On behalf of the board of directors (the”Board”) of Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited, | am pleased to present our annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2021.

ERNBTULRR:
RAEBERKRBEGXKRE

BRERERABDESERC AFUKRRMKA

EREMBE-_ZE-_—F+- AT HLEFEZXE&RS -

In 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic continued to spread worldwide,
seriously affecting development of various industries. During the
year, although China’s photovoltaic industry had made it through the
predicament of the initial stage of the epidemic and continued to
recover, due to the epidemic, raw material prices, supply chain and
other factors, product delivery volume was not as expected. The
Group, however, rose to the challenge and took various tackling
measures. As such, during the year under review, shipment volume
increased by 7.8% year-on-year to 7.3GW though still lagged the
expected full-year target. Despite the higher price of polysilicon
which caused the cost of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers to
increase, the Group was able to timely increase the selling prices of
silicon ingots and wafers to offset the cost rise and successfully
maintain profitability of the business. Furthermore, revenues of the
Group’s module products, monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers
reached RMB4,480.4 million and RMB2,463.7 million, up by 4.9%
and 44.2% year-on-year, respectively, compared with the previous
year and eventually the 2021 annual results turned around to profit.

ZEZ—F ERBREELCERR REXE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Regarding product layout, during the year, the Group concentrated
resources on developing “two core products”, namely upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots, silicon wafer products and
downstream monocrystalline module products, to achieve efficient
centralised utilization of existing resources and enhance market
competitiveness. At the same time, heeding the changes in direction
of market demand, the Group has been involved in the deployment
of application system and has accelerated development of
building-integrated photovoltaics (“BIPV”) and building-applied
photovoltaics (“BAPV”) and made breakthroughs. Some projects had
commanded special reports in authoritative domestic media and won
wide market recognition and acclaims.

As for its production capacity development strategy, the Group
implemented the “one base and two wings” strategy during the
year. Its core production and research and development base is in
Jinzhou, Liaoning, and its production plants in Qujing, Yunnan and
Yancheng, Jiangsu are the two wings. Thanks to local government
preferential policies and favourable electricity prices, we are able to
focus on developing monocrystalline silicon ingot and wafer
production in Qujing, Yunnan, and benefiting from a number of
favourable local government policies and supportive industry

conditions, and Yancheng, Jiangsu has become the key area where
we develop module products. In the future, the Group will continue
to expand the production scale of its “two core products” in good
order in Qujing, Yunnan and Yancheng, Jiangsu, where it enjoys
backing,

“low-cost” and “good policies” to achieve better

economies of scale.

RERMBRITE FRAKESTFERERMAIE
REmMl MEHEREE ERERTETFE
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Prospects

China, being a major signatory of the “Paris Agreement”, has
proposed the “3060" target, that is, for carbon dioxide emissions to
reach their peak in 2030, and achieving carbon neutrality by 2060.
To achieve these goals, the Chinese government has actively
adjusted the country’s energy structure and is vigorously developing
low-carbon and clean energy. In the keynote speech he made at the
leaders’ summit of the 15th meeting of the Conference of the
Parties to the Convention on Biological Diversity (COP15) on
12 October 2021, President Xi Jinping pointed out that, with those
targets in mind, China will map out implementation plans for
capping carbon dioxide emissions in key areas and sectors, plus
relevant supporting measures, as well as put in place a “1+N”
carbon peak and carbon neutrality policy framework. China will
continue to adjust its industrial structure and energy mix, robustly
develop renewable energy, and hasten planning and developing large
wind power and photovoltaic bases in deserts, gobi areas and
remote areas. The first phase of construction of projects with total
installed capacity of approximately 100 million kilowatts has started
smoothly. A series of favourable national policies will promote
changes in the photovoltaic industry environment in good order,
taking the industry into a “golden period” setting it up for
long-term development. Encouraged by the country’s favourable and
inclusive measures, more enterprises from different sectors are
expected to set foot in the photovoltaic industry in the future, while
existing players are expected to work hard on seizing larger market
shares. Consequently, that would result in overall overcapacity of the
photovoltaic industry, which would hinder development of and pose
challenge to the industry.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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To deal with the challenge and breakthrough development
bottleneck, photovoltaic companies will see the need to enhance
competitiveness by improving their research and development
capabilities, developing new channels and enhancing production
technology in the future. Survival of the fittest will be the obvious
rule of the game in the fiercely competitive market, which will
prompt enterprises to develop more advanced production
technologies and pursue lower production costs. China’s
photovoltaic industry is expected to enter a new development cycle
of "overcapacity, intensified competition, survival of the fittest,
technological upgrading, and market demand-driven” in the future.
After several rounds, the industry will climb to new heights, with
companies that boast formidable strengths and enhanced core
competitiveness, capable of championing changes in the industry,
poised to see their leadership consolidate and to capture growth
opportunities in the market.

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited is one of the forerunners in China
to manufacture monocrystalline photovoltaic products and provide
N-type and P-type silicon ingot and wafer products to many
well-known domestic and foreign companies. Drawing on its more
than 20 years of technical accumulation and industry experience, the
Group has continuously enhanced its risk resistance, cultivated a
group of key employees with strong practical skills and mastered
solid production technologies. The Group prides a good technology
reserve and can apply N-type monocrystalline silicon ingot and wafer
technology in production any time. Also, the latest production
capacity of the Group’s existing module has reached industry-leading
level. In the future, with government policies working in its favour,
lower construction costs and advanced production equipment, the
Group will have a leading edge in the industry and be capable of
meeting greater challenges as well as opportunities.

REERE - FREASBERMAE - R KK
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Although 2021 was filled with challenges for the Group, it still
turned from loss to profit, which is proof of its strength and
tenacity. In addition, with the second phase of production in Qujing,
Yunnan having started during the year, the Group has seen
technological advancement and boosted production scale of
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers that have strong market
competitiveness. To capture market opportunities, the Group will
continue to forcefully develop its “two core products” this year,
explore domestic and foreign markets, and orderly expand
production capacities where it has cost advantage and policy
backing, aiming for moderate growth in scale while maintaining a
reasonable gross profit margin.

In 2022, the Group will continue to embrace its “one base and two
wings” and “two core products” development strategy.
Second-phase production of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers
will reach full capacity during the year and construction of the
third-phase has already started. As for module production, with
second-phase production at full capacity, the Group is prepared to
start the third-phase and achieve partial production next year. In the
future, the Group will not only focus on developing the “two core
products”, but also direct efforts into launching BIPV and BAPV
products to bolster its overall growth momentum. The low-price
on-grid era has come, and the Group is full of confidence in its
future prospects. It will continue to assist in-depth development of
the photovoltaic industry, strive to work together with the country to
achieve the “3060" dual-carbon goal, and fortify its advantages to
take business development to a much higher level.

Chairman
Tan Wenhua

29 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Market Overview

With global vaccination rates increasing, countries around the world
are gradually easing their border controls and resuming economic
activities. As noted in the World Bank’s Global Economic Prospects
report, global economic growth turned from negative to positive in
2021, and sustained recovery led to growth in energy demand.
Meanwhile, in response to global warming and climate change,
many countries announced carbon neutrality commitments and
targets, which shows that lowering carbon emissions has become a
global trend. The photovoltaic industry has helped achieve carbon
neutrality and driven the continuous enhancement of global
photovoltaic demand. According to Bloomberg New Energy Finance
(BNEF), photovoltaic systems with a combined capacity of 183 GW
were installed worldwide, an increase of almost 40 GW, or 27%,
compared with 2020. China, the United States, Europe and India
were the main photovoltaic markets in 2021, and China continues to
rank first in the world in terms of installed photovoltaic capacity.
Driven by the carbon reduction policies of various countries, the
market demand is strong, and the prospects of the photovoltaic
industry have become clear. Based on the analysis of professional
research institute TrendForce, the promotion of the global renewable
energy transition will result in an estimated installed photovoltaic
capacity of 200 to 220 GW in 2022.
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Market Overview (Continued)

The year 2021 marked the first year of the “14th Five-Year Plan”
and was an important year for the development of China’s
photovoltaic market. In October 2021, China’s National Development
and Reform Commission issued the “Notice on Further Deepening
the Market-oriented Reform of Feed-in Tariffs for Coal-fired Power
Generation”, which ensures a stable income for new projects and
marks the official entry of photovoltaics into the grid parity era. In
addition, the State Council also issued “An Action Plan for Peaking
Carbon Emissions before 2030 “in October 2021, which pointed out
that it is necessary to develop new energy and promote the large-
scale and high-quality development of solar power generation
comprehensively. It is also essential to promote the diversified layout
of photovoltaic power generation to ensure the realisation of the
carbon peaking target by 2030. The scheme means that photovoltaic
power generation has become one of the key development
directions of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, driving the replacement of
traditional energy sources and benefiting the development of the
photovoltaic industry in the long run. According to the National
Energy Administration, photovoltaic power generation totalled 325.9
billion kWh in 2021, with a year-on-year increase of 25.1%. By the
end of 2021, China’s new installed capacity of photovoltaic power
generation was approximately 54.9 GW, an increase of nearly 14%
compared with 48.2 GW in 2020. Among them, centralised-scale
projects have contributed 25.6 GW, and distributed solar installations
added 29.28 GW. In addition, China’s photovoltaic installed capacity
exceeded 300 million kilowatts, ranking first in the global
photovoltaic market for the seventh consecutive year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Market Overview (Continued)

According to PVInfolink, silicon prices have maintained an upward
trend due to continued tight supply. The prices of monocrystalline
rose to RMB269 per kilogram in November 2021, a record ten-year
high. PVinfolink analysis predicts that in 2022, with the release of
new production capacity and the commissioning of large-scale
expansion projects, silicon prices will decline persistently. According
to the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
People’s Republic of China, China’s photovoltaic industry supply
chain is stable, with polysilicon production reaching 505,000 tons in
2021, representing an increase of 27.5% year-on-year and wafer
production reaching 227 GW, a year-on-year increase of 40.6%.
Solar cell and photovoltaic module output reached 198 GW and 182
GW, respectively, with the year-on-year growth rate reaching 46.9%
and 46.1%, respectively. In addition, photovoltaic product exports in
China exceeded US$28.4 billion in 2021, an increase of 43.9% year-
on-year, indicating strong demand for the photovoltaic market. In
January 2022, the “Opinions on Policies and Measures to Improve
the Mechanism for a Green-oriented Transition of Energy” was
jointly released by the National Development and Reform
Commission and the National Energy Administration. It proposes the
promotion of the application of building-integrated photovoltaics and
the acceleration of the construction of photovoltaic power
generation bases and the innovation and upgrading of intelligent
photovoltaics, reflecting the support of the photovoltaic industry
from government policies. The China Photovoltaic Industry
Association predicts that China’s new installed capacity will reach 75
to 90 GW in 2022, and notes that the state’s intensive targets and
policies provide a rare opportunity for the photovoltaic industry,
which has enhanced the influence and social attention of the
photovoltaic industry.
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Market Overview (Continued)

The United States returned to the Paris Agreement in 2021 and
increased its efforts in deploying the solar industry to achieve net-
zero emissions by 2050. Based on the Solar Energy Industries
Association’s (SEIA) Solar Market Insights Report 2021 Year in
Review, the United States solar market installed a record 23.6 GW of
solar capacity in 2021, a 19% increase over 2020, of which
residential solar installations grew 30% year-on-year and utility-scale
solar installations increased by 17GW, a record high. The report also
notes that solar accounted for 46% of all new electricity generation
capacity added in the United States in 2021. This represents the third
consecutive year that solar has made up the largest share of new
generation capacity in the United States. Analysts at international
energy consultancy Wood Mackenzie predict that, although the
supply chain constraints of the last year will hit 2022 installations
the hardest, solar power generation in the United States will increase
by 31%, or 43.5 GW, over the next five years due to the
introduction of government policies aimed at encouraging the
development of the solar industries. For example, federal clean
energy incentives such as the Build Back Better Act (BBB Act) are
likely to pass in the future. The passing of the Investment Tax Credit
(ITC) extension and other clean energy provisions will be a critical
catalyst for the solar market. S&P Global Market Intelligence, a
research firm, believes that solar energy in the United States will
continue to grow at an astonishing rate and will almost double,
predicting that 44 GW of solar energy will be available in the United
States in 2022.

BEEENWR DN

mHEME @
EFEAR-_E-—FERERYTEY) U-_EARZT
FERIFTYRBEE NMANERBAGEE
% 1R 5 2E B K [5 88 B 2 19 2 (SEIA)RIC20214F K
58 T 5 SR 52 &ifﬁﬁﬁﬁw EEABGREITER

_;_*Eﬁ%%ﬁ HEWANESE23.65 5 H
L R19% c HREEX#E R IER30% °

FEERBEFILIIGW BI T TELHS ° %Fyi
XiEL  KGELEEB S —FHMAHMERE
EM46%  HFEF-FAEFEBEEFEEEAX
758 - BEIPR 82 IR 55 s B M A AlWood Mackenzie s
MANR T~ BE HEER S A H2022FNEK=S
EREREMITE BESHEEBRFRRELZE
BREREEFERTERRE  BREZHEBEERA
BRETANNCERZGTER)BBE AC)ER R
ﬂ TEET AR R EF NG IN31% k4355 LHIA
BEEEE o MEB UK BITOIE B E )52
mmfﬂ%k@%ﬁﬁﬁ% EMISMEZ A -
s #1222 B 35 BF 25 (S&P Global Market
Intelligence):R BEBIM KI5 R & B AE AT

MENREER BIEE T - —FiF445
K 8E

AR -




16 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED [ tEERIZERER A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmR DN

Market Overview (Continued)

According to the EU Market Outlook for Solar Power 2021-2025
released by SolarPower Europe, 2021 is estimated to be the best
year in European solar history, with 259 GW of new solar
photovoltaic capacity connected to the grids in 2021, an increase of
34% over the 19.3 GW installed the year before. Germany is again
the biggest solar market in 2021, with 5.3 GW of newly installed
capacity by the end of 2021, and its government plans to bring
forward the 100% renewable energy power target to 2035. France
also hit a record high with 2.68 GW of new installed capacity, and
set a target to achieve 100 GW of solar capacity by 2050, the
performance of the European solar sector has exceeded
expectations. In December 2021, the European Commission proposed
plans to adjust the Energy Performance of Buildings Directive
(EPBDII), which aims to accelerate building renovation rates and
deploy on-site solar and energy storage at existing buildings. The
proposal also states that by 2030 all new buildings should be zero
carbon ready. In addition, the conflict between Russia and Ukraine
which broke out in February 2022 has brought an energy supply
crisis to Europe, which led the European Commission to publish a
communiqué on a Joint European Action for more affordable, secure
and sustainable energy, which aims to rapidly increase the use of
sustainable energy and make Europe completely independent from
Russian fossil fuels by 2030. Therefore, European solar demand will
accelerate growth. Furthermore, SolarPower Europe’s Market
Intelligence forecasts that the European Commission will hit the 30
GW installation level at the end of 2022.

The Indian market continued to be affected by the COVID-19
pandemic in 2021, leading to a slowdown in solar energy
development. According to a new report released by Mercom India
Research, India’s cumulative installed photovoltaic capacity reached
approximately 49 GW at the end of 2021. India added 10 GW of
new solar capacity in 2021, up 210% from the 3.2 GW installed in
2020. Lockdowns and shutdowns have affected supply chains and
various costs, making solar energy development in India increasingly
challenging. In addition to raising customs duty on several
photovoltaic products, the country will also levy the customs duty on
imports of solar modules and solar cells in April 2022. The
government provided an additional US$2.6 billion in grants under the
solar Production-linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme so as to promote
domestic photovoltaic production and reduce import dependence.
Ratings agency ICRA believes clean energy capacity additions in
2022-23 will be driven by solar, and India will add 16.1 GW of
renewable energy generation capacity in 2022-2023, 12.5 GW of

which will come from photovoltaic projects, accounting for more
than 77%. The performance of India’s solar industry will improve in
the future and is moving towards one of the best years on record.
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Market Overview (Continued)

According to the energy consultant BloombergNEF (BNEF), the total
global energy transition investment in 2021 hit a new record of
US$755 billion. The Asia-Pacific region was the largest in terms of
investment and had the highest growth in 2021. In addition, at the
UN Climate Change Conference, or COP26, in November 2021,
governments reached a consensus on the 10-year Glasgow work
programme. The members agreed to commit to ambitious carbon
emissions reduction targets for 2030 and reduce carbon emissions
significantly within a decade, while increasing investment in solar and
other renewable energy sources. Brazil and Korea also announced
that they will raise their 2030 emission reduction targets to 50%
and 40%, respectively. Under the general trend of the net-zero
emissions transition, solar energy has become one of the most
important renewable energy sources to enable the realisation of
carbon neutrality goals. Global demand and investment in solar
energy are estimated to rise continuously. To put it simply, the
outlook for solar is optimistic.
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Operation Review
Operations Summary

Renewable energy has become a new trend of the world.
Photovoltaic power is now the renewable energy with the greatest
development potential and the lowest cost, so the rapid growth in
demand for photovoltaic products in the future will be inevitable.
The Group focuses on the manufacturing and sales of upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots, wafers and downstream photovoltaic
modules in the photovoltaic industry. Our major customers of
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers are large midstream solar
cell manufacturers and our major customers of photovoltaic modules
are large domestic state-owned enterprises in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), multinational corporations and other
photovoltaic end-user customers. Moreover, the Group is engaged in
and provides the installation of photovoltaic systems and the
development, design, construction, operation and maintenance of
photovoltaic generation plants.

As the first batch of domestic photovoltaic enterprises engaged in
the production of czochralski monocrystalline silicon ingots, with 20
years of experience in manufacturing monocrystalline silicon ingot,
the Group now has accumulated mature experience in terms of
technology, domestic and overseas market development, industrial
chain cooperation, brand effect, premium services, etc. Subsidiaries
of the Group have obtained 287 National patents, more than 30
provincial and municipal science and technology first prizes, second
prizes, achievement awards. The awards are: National high-tech
enterprise, National green factory, Provincial Enterprise Technology
Center, Provincial Engineering Technology Research Center, Global
Top 500 New Energy Companies (No.173), Top 100 New Energy
Companies Global Competitiveness (No.92), Top 500 PRC Energy
Group Companies (No.267), Top 20 PRC PV Module Companies in
2021 (No.11). The Group is the vice chairman unit of PRC
Photovoltaic Industry Association, vice chairman unit of
Semiconductor Materials Branch of and standing council unit of
China Electronic Materials Industry Association, Household
Photovoltaic Professional Committee unit, Standardization Technical
Committee unit and Photoelectric Building Professional Committee
unit of China Photovoltaic Industry Association and expert member
of Photovoltaic Professional Committee of China Renewable Energy
Society. Solar photovoltaic modules are rated as national grade's
green design products. The Group is also the first in the world to be
SHARP'S largest OEM processing services partner for photovoltaic
module for nine consecutive years, the OEM for the State Power
Investment Group (one of the five major power generation groups all
year round), the major supplier of double-sided double glass modules
in the 2018 Front Runner Plan and the major module supplier for the
power configuration project of the UHV transmission base in Hainan,
Qinghai Province, a national key project in 2019.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operations Summary (continued)

Currently, the Group has set the “one base, two wings” layout
strategy, with Jinzhou in Liaoning as the base, Qujing in Yunnan and
Yancheng in Jiangsu as two side wings. As at the end of December
2021, the total annual production capacity of our production bases
were 5.7 GW of monocrystalline silicon ingot, 4.1 GW of
monocrystalline silicon wafers, and 7.2 GW of modules due to the
production scale, the high-efficiency and high production capacity
layout of the Group. The Group has been starting to demonstrate
stronger comprehensive competitiveness and further increase the
market share of high quality but low-cost products.

Silicon ingot and wafer business

The Group is one of the earliest enterprises in the PRC to invest in
the production of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers. At
present, monocrystalline silicon ingot products are mostly used for
the internal production of monocrystalline silicon wafers within the
Group, and less engaged in external sales. Monocrystalline silicon
wafer products of the Group are mostly sold to third-party large
professional solar cell manufacturers. During the period, since
monocrystalline products are advantageous over multicrystalline
products in photovoltaic power generation, the market share of
monocrystalline products has continued to increase rapidly. As such,
demand for monocrystalline silicon wafers of the Group has
continued to increase. With the continuing realisation of advantages
such as the relating high potential for improvement in conversion
efficiency of monocrystalline products and continuing reduction in
unit costs due to improving technology, the monocrystalline
technology, which has been the focus of the Group in the past two
decades, has officially defeated that of multicrystalline and became
the only mainstream in the market.

Apart from the traditional monocrystalline P-type products, the
Group has monocrystalline N-type products with higher conversion
efficiencies. Currently, photovoltaic cells are mainly produced by
PERC (Passivated Emitter and Rear Cell) and PERC+technology with
P-type silicon wafer base. TOPCON cells and heterojunction HJT cells
with monocrystalline N-type silicon wafer base are expected to
become the mainstream of next-generation photovoltaic cells. The
Group has many years of experience in joint research and
development with large multinational corporate customers. The
Group has accomplished technical breakthrough and product
marketisation of monocrystalline N-type silicon ingot at an earlier
time. N-type silicon ingots and wafers have also been supplied to
domestic and foreign customers at an earlier time, and N-type ingots
are in a leading position in the industry in respect of various
indicators having obvious advantages.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operations Summary (continued)
Silicon ingot and wafer business (continued)

During the vyear, since most of the monocrystalline silicon ingot
products have been reserved for internal use, the external shipment
volume of monocrystalline silicon ingots was only 414.4 MW (710.8
MW in 2020). External shipment volume of monocrystalline silicon
wafers increased significantly to 4,087.0 MW (3,145.8MW in 2020),
representing an increase of over 30%. Major customers of external
sales of monocrystalline silicon wafers included large-scale
photovoltaic cell manufacturers and huge state-owned enterprises in
China.

The Group’s monocrystalline silicon ingot and monocrystalline silicon
wafer located in Qujing, Yunnan, the PRC with annual production
capacity of 0.9 GW project has carried out mass production since
this year. As the investment in Qujin, Yunnan not only enjoys various
preferential investment policies from the local government, but more
importantly, the decrease in local electricity cost (being the major
manufacturing cost of ingot-pulling) of more than 50% compared to
that at previous major production base in Jinzhou, Liaoning, which
would strengthen the improvement of the Group’s overall gross
profit margin. Therefore, the Group has been expanding the
production capacity of monocrystalline silicon ingot and
monocrystalline silicon wafers in Qujing, Yunnan under the rapid
growth of customer demand. As of the end of December 2021, the
annual production capacity of monocrystalline silicon ingots in
Quijing, Yunnan, has increased significantly to 4.3 GW from 0.9 GW
at the beginning of the year, and the annual production capacity of
monocrystalline silicon wafers has also increased significantly to 2.5
GW from 0.9 GW at the beginning of the year. This low-cost and
high-efficiency productivity advantages has significantly increased the
gross profit margin of the Group’s monocrystalline silicon ingots and
silicon wafers in the first half of the year. It is expected that by the
end of 2022, the annual production capacity of monocrystalline
silicon ingot and silicon wafers in Qujing, Yunnan will be increased
to 6.0 GW and 3.6 GW respectively, representing 81% of the
Group's total annual production capacity of monocrystalline silicon
ingots of 7.4 GW and 49% of the group’s total annual production
capacity of monocrystalline silicon wafers of 7.4 GW, respectively.
With the substantial release of this low-cost and high-efficiency
production capacity, not only the gross profit margin will continue to
boost up in the future, but also the Group’s technological
advantages and progress can be fully unleashed.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operations Summary (continued)
Module businesses

In order to concentrate resources to develop other more niche
products, the Group has adjusted its operating strategy by no longer
manufacturing solar cells since last year, but instead manufacturing
upstream monocrystalline silicon wafers (ingot) and downstream
modules as dual major products.

The Group has been engaged in module production since 2009, and
has accumulated rich experience and advanced production
technology and process in monocrystalline module production. The
P-type PERC module of the monocrystalline products that the Group
focuses on has not only become the mainstream in the market, but
it also further expanded and strengthened the development and sales
of monocrystalline silicon high-efficiency module products such as
P-type double-sided double glass modules, half-cell photovoltaic
modules, multi busbar cell module, and other high-end products.

The current main base of the Group for monocrystalline module
production is located in Yancheng, Jiangsu. In addition to the
various preferential investment policies from the local government,
the Company can take advantage of significantly lowering the
investment in capital expenditure by renting plant buildings.
Moreover, the area around the Yangtze River Delta is an
agglomeration area for the supply of raw and auxiliary materials
which provides advantage in terms of procurement. In order to meet
the needs of module customers, the Group continues to expand
module production capacity in Yancheng, lJiangsu, to further
strengthen the economic scale advantage of module products. As of
the end of December 2021, the module production capacity of
Yancheng, Jiangsu was 5.4 GW, while the total module production
capacity of the Group was 7.2 GW. It is expected that by the end of
2022, the production capacity of Yancheng, lJiangsu would be
increased to 6.4 GW, which would also drive the Group’s overall
module production capacity to 8.2 GW.

External sales of modules were mainly made to large state-owned
enterprises and international multinational enterprises, such as State
Power Investment Corporation (¥ BBl R E H#& & £ B 2 A7)
("SPIC"), SHARP Corporation (“SHARP"), Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited
and Xinyi Solar Group (fF& W IBH{E & KA &£ E), Suntech Power
Holdings Co., Ltd. (5 = {E K58 E 51 AR 2 Al), Sungrow Power
Supply Co., Ltd (G EBIREH B MR A F]), CGN New Energy Holdings
Co., Ltd. (P EIEZHsEIRIEAR B IR 2 F)) and SANSHIN ELECTRONICS
CO., LTD. etc. The Group has been SHARP's largest processing
services partner for photovoltaic module for nine consecutive years
and has been cooperating in continually expanding module sales for
foreign customers.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operations Summary (continued)
Module businesses (continued)

The Group focuses on the manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon
photovoltaic products. Currently, proportion of sales of the Group’s
monocrystalline silicon photovoltaic modules has reached over 95%.
Further, the Group has also introduced in SHARP's global leading
40-year quality assurance system for photovoltaic products. The
quality of the products is stable and reliable, which could bring
long-term and stable income to end-user owners.

Construction and operation of photovoltaic system business

The Group has been actively expanding the end-user power plants
construction and application business apart from devoting its efforts
in stabilising the development of its manufacturing business, which
not only drives the sales of module products in a bottom-up
manner, but also it will spread the profit of construction and
operation of photovoltaic system businesses so as to improve the
overall profitability of the Group. As such, besides establishing
internal photovoltaic power plant system by wholly owned
subsidiaries, the Group also plans to establish joint venture
companies with companies from other industries. The Group's
photovoltaic system business includes traditional distributed power
station EPC business, Building Applied Photovoltaics (BAPV) business
and Building Integrated Photovoltaics (BIPV) business. With the policy
background of the PRC government’s vigorous advocacy of “hit peak
emissions” and “carbon neutrality” and the construction of “green
buildings” and “zero energy buildings” after “Opinions on
Promoting Green Development of Urban and Rural Construction”
issued by the State Council of PRC, given the current huge building
volume in the PRC, it is anticipated that BIPV business would have
broad development prospects and become a new development
hotspot in the photovoltaic industry.

Relying on the rich technological experience accumulated in the
photovoltaic industry, the Group is carrying out a series of research
and development projects in cooperation with Shenyang Jianzhu
University, the National Housing and Residential Environment
Engineering Technology Research Center and other institutions, of
which four series of BIPV products have passed China Compulsory
Certificate ("CCC") certification, China Quality Certificate Centre
("CQC") certification, and GB8624-2012 building materials and
products combustion performance test certification. The Group
expects that with the continuous development of BIPV business, the
photovoltaic system construction and application business would have
further growth.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operations Summary (continued)
Semi-conductor business

China has become the fastest growing country in the global
semiconductor industry. It is also the world’s largest semiconductor
application market. The Group is engaged mainly in production and
sales of 4-6 inches semiconductor grade monocrystalline silicon ingot
with heavy doping and 4-6 inches semiconductor grade
monocrystalline silicon ingot with lightly doping. The semiconductor
business has shown rapid growth since it was officially put into
operation in 2019. The Group expects that in the context of the
continuous growth of the Chinese semiconductor market, the
semiconductor business will continue to maintain strong growth in
the next few years, and will contribute profits to the Group.

Operation Strategy

As a clean energy source, photovoltaic power generation had to rely
on government subsidies to compete with the selling price of
traditional petrochemical energy in the past. If production costs can
be reduced and be competitive in the market without government
subsidies, photovoltaic power generation might lead to a widespread
application. As such, with the rapid advancement of photovoltaic
production technology in the past ten years, the production cost per
watt of power generation has dropped sharply. Strictly speaking, the
current photovoltaic application has reached the target of grid
parity, and explosive sales growth is foreseeable in the future. In the
premises, production related equipment also needs to be upgraded
or added in order to be in line with technological development.
Therefore, since 2018, the Group has been investing in upgrading
and transforming existing production capacity and invest in low-cost,
high-efficiency new production capacity. Mass output by
comprehensive upgrade of production capacity and new high-
efficiency production capacity have also been realised. As of the end
of December 2021, the annual production capacity of
monocrystalline silicon ingot of the Group was 5.7 GW,
monocrystalline silicon wafer capacity was 4.1 GW, and module
production capacity was 7.2 GW.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operation Strategy (continued)

By adopting a dual-core products strategy of continuous
development of upstream monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafer
product as well as downstream module products, the Group
effectively utilises its existing resources. Regarding the production of
upstream monocrystalline silicon ingot and wafer products, the gross
profit margin driven by its production efficiency has increased
significantly during the period. Regarding the downstream
photovoltaic modules, since our photovoltaic module customers are
mostly domestic state-owned enterprises or large multinational
corporations, the market position and strength possessed by these
module customers are the strongest in the overall photovoltaic
industry chain. Therefore, the Group has established a direct supply
relationship with large module customers through significant module
production capacity, which maintains a more stable terminal product
estuary.

Operating Performance

In recent years, the Group’'s operating performance has been
constrained by numerous factors, such as performing long-term
contracts for the purchase of high-priced polysilicon materials, which
led to unsatisfactory performance of the Group in recent years. As
the Group gradually got rid of these unfavorable factors, coupled
with the economic scale of high-efficiency production capacity, the
Group has successfully turned from loss to profit during the period
and was back on the profitable track. The total external shipment
volume of major products, monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers,
increased from 3,856.6 MW in 2020 to 4,501.4 MW in 2021,
representing a growth rate of 17%. The external shipment volume of
another major product, photovoltaic modules was 2,842.3MW in
2021, which was similar to 2,865.0MW in 2020.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operation Strategy (continued)
Operating Performance (continued)

During the year, market demand for monocrystalline silicon ingots
and wafers continued to rise and the Group’s high-efficiency
production capacity through better production technology process
has been greatly released, thus, the external shipment volume
increased. For photovoltaic module products, in the first half of this
year, the cost of raw and auxiliary materials for the production of
photovoltaic modules continued the trend of increase since the
second half of 2020. This led to increase of purchase cost of the
Group for raw and auxiliary materials. This also subsequently caused
unsmooth production and sales of modules. As a result, the external
shipment volume of modules in 2021 was similar to previous year.
However, as the supply and demand relationship of raw and auxiliary
materials for module production gradually resume to normal only to
certain extent, especially in the second half of 2021 and the newly
signed module orders could transfer the price risk of the raw and
auxiliary materials to customers, it is expected that external shipment
volume of modules will increase significantly with the expansion of
production capacity, and profitability could also be greatly improved
in the future.

The Group officially stepped out of loss and turned to profit. It is
not only due to the external environment of supply and demand and
the release of low-cost and high-efficiency production capacity, but
also necessary to maintain leading technology in the ever-advancing
photovoltaic industry to build up a cost advantage in order to
continuously make profits. The Group has gained success in research
and development in recent years, and has overcome various
production bottlenecks. The Group has successfully incorporated the
most advanced production technologies into mass production, such
that the production costs of our various product lines have
significantly decreased, and the overall gross profit margin has hence
increased. For example, in the production of monocrystalline silicon
ingots, from 20 years of accumulated technology advantages, we
have mastered a number of leading technologies for monocrystalline
silicon ingots and silicon wafer production, such as the fast closing
technology used in the production of monocrystalline silicon ingot
which could shorten the closing time by 70%, the increase of
growth rate of monocrystalline silicon ingot from 1.25mm/min to
2.0mm/min through the transformation and upgrading of the water
cooling device, the long-life quartz crucible developed in cooperation
with suppliers could be used for up to 500 hours, the RCZ
production process which could draw 9 ingots in one pot, etc.
Various advanced production technologies significantly reduced
production costs and ensured product quality and stability is in a
leading position in the industry. Furthermore, for high quality N-type
silicon wafers required for the next-generation N-type cell, the Group
has also reached the technical position and accomplished
marketisation ahead, and has achieved the development direction of
leading N-type crystalline silicon products which could readily meet
the market demands for shipment in large quantities at any time.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operation Strategy (continued)
Operating Performance (continued)

For the monocrystalline modules, apart from the mainstream P-type
PERC monocrystalline modules, the Group devoted to the
development and sales of monocrystalline high-efficiency module
products, such as P-type double-sided double glass modules, half-cell
photovoltaic modules, multi busbar cell module, and related high-
end products. In particular, BS module products of N-type
monocrystalline IBC cell uses the internationally leading and the first
domestic FPC module packaging technology, and is in the leading
position in the industry. Having a black surface with beautiful
design, the products are uniquely produced as rectangular, square,
triangular and other special-shaped modules. It could be connected
to each other with perfectly matching roof shape to achieve efficient
use of space, representing highest-end product of roof modules. The
FPC packaging technology of BS modules is still the packaging
process with the world’'s highest precision. It is the benchmark for
the monocrystalline N-type IBC cell modules products, leading the
monocrystalline N-type cell module industry packaging technology
for 3 to 5 years. Besides, the module production line of the Group
can also produce multi-busbar half-cell double-sided double glass of
182mm and 210mm large-size modules which the conversion could
reach more than 600 watts. In addition, the related equipment
automated intelligence and packaging technology are in the leading
position in the industry. According to the analysis of the recent
bidding in China’s photovoltaic market, 182mm and above
photovoltaic modules accounted for more than two-third of the
bidding product specifications. Since the Group’s monocrystalline
silicon ingot, monocrystalline silicon wafer and photovoltaic module
production lines can all produce large-size scarce products such as
182mm and 210mm products, they could further enhance the
Group's ability to increase the selling price and provide opportunity
for a substantial increase in gross profit margin. Moreover, the
Group is also carrying out a number of research projects for G12
and BIPV products, aiming to upgrade the mass production
technology of large-size module products and BIPV products, so as to
expand the market sales of corresponding products. Other
production technology research and development for frame design,
junction box and tin block design, packaging material optimization,
packaging method optimization, solar cell thickness optimization, etc.
are also expected to continuously reduce production cost of module
products.
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Operation Review (continued)
Operation Strategy (continued)
Operating Performance (continued)

Looking ahead, given (a) leading technological cost advantages and
large-size product lines with higher bargaining power, the Group will
be able to continue to gain the market share and further drive a
significant increase in gross profit margin; (b) the major production
base with a lower electricity costs and more favorable production
environment with policy support, the Group will be able to
significantly reduce the production cost; (c) the Group continues to
expand low-cost, high-efficiency new production capacity through
more refined production process, and the existing production
capacity has also been upgraded and transformed, and achieved
stable operation, which can further demonstrate the advantages of
economic scale; (d) the long-standing diversified and accumulated
technological advantages of various product lines; and (e) the strong
client base in PRC and overseas, with increasing demand from new
and old customers, it is expected that the Group’s external shipment
volume and revenue will continue to grow, and the production costs
will decrease. Total gross profit and gross profit margin performance
will be further improved significantly.

Financial Review
Revenue

In order to replace traditional energy on a large scale, as a clean
energy, it is essential to reduce the production cost of photovoltaic
power generation through continuous technological advancement,
hence continually lowering the sales unit price of photovoltaic
power. When photovoltaic power generation finally does not need to
rely on government subsidies, the demand for photovoltaic power
generation will grow significantly. The revenue of the Group
increased by 17.4% from RMB6,052.0 million in 2020 to
RMB7,105.0 million in 2021, with a growth in total external
shipment volume of 7.8% as compared to last year. The growth was
mainly attributed to the increase in sales of the Group’s certain
major products, photovoltaic modules and monocrystalline silicon
wafers, while the average selling price of silicon wafers was higher
than that in 2020.
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Financial Review (continued)
Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, cost of sales increased from
RMB5,466.1 million in 2020 to RMB6,225.9 million, representing an
increase of 13.9%, mainly due to the increase in external shipment
volume. Cost of sales accounted for 87.6% of total revenue,
representing a decrease of 2.7% points from 2020. The decrease in
such ratio was mainly due to the production base of monocrystalline
silicon ingots and wafers being officially shifted to Qujing, Yunnan.
The electricity cost, being the major manufacturing cost, in Qujing,
Yunnan, are lower than that in production base in Jinzhou, Liaoning
by 50%. Together with the preferential policies of the local
government, the economic advantages from such high-efficient
capacity was demonstrated. However, the abovementioned benefits
were partially offset by the increase in cost of raw and auxiliary
materials during the year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of RMB879.1 million and a gross
profit margin of 12.4% in 2021, as compared to a gross profit of
RMB585.9 million and a gross profit margin of 9.7% in 2020, which
increased significantly by 50.1% and 2.7% points respectively. The
growth was mainly attributed to the increase in sales of one of the
Group's major products, monocrystalline solar wafers in 2021, as the
gross profit margin of which was higher than other products.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised terminal handling
charges, packaging expenses and other incidental expenses. The
selling and distribution expenses increased by 6.1% from RMB135.9
million in 2020 to RMB144.2 million in 2021. The percentage of
increase in selling and distribution expenses was in line with that in
external shipment volume in 2021.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs, research
and development expenses, legal and professional fees, office
expenses and other incidental administrative expenses. The
administrative expenses for the year amounted to RMB301.2 million,
as compared to RMB440.5 million in 2020. The decrease was mainly
due to larger sum of research and development invested in 2020
and also an effective planning and control on other administrative
expenses by the Group.
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Financial Review (continued)

Reversal of impairment losses/impairment losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLs”). ECLs on trade
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions. During the year, the Group
has efficiently managed the collection of trade receivables especially
for balances which aged over one year, led to a relatively lower ECL
rates in the ECL model. As a result, a reversal of impairment losses
on trade receivables and contract assets of RMB19.0 million (2020:
impairment losses of RMB36.3 million) was recognised during the
year.

Finance costs

Finance costs were mainly derived from bank and other borrowings.
The Group’s finance costs slightly increased from RMB118.8 million
in 2020 to RMB124.9 million in 2021, representing an increase of
5.1%. The Group aims to lower the finance costs gradually in the
future and to obtain more sources of financing.

Income tax

Income tax expense was RMB81.4 million in 2021, while income tax
expense amounted to RMB30.3 million in 2020. The income tax
expense was mainly derived from the provision of income tax for the
profitable subsidiaries of the Group. The increase in income tax
expenses was mainly due to the increase in profit before tax.

Loss for the year from discontinued operations

In February 2020, lJinzhou Huachang Photovoltaic Technology
Company Limited ceased its production of solar cells. The production
line of the Group previously covered the upstream photovoltaic
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers, mid-stream solar cells and
downstream photovoltaic modules. However, the scale of solar cell
production was relatively small and outdated, the Group has
changed its operating strategy to discontinue the production of
photovoltaic solar cells and reserved more resources on other
profitable products. The loss from the discontinued operation
decreased from RMB85.2 million in 2020 to RMB5.9 million in 2021.
Among the loss in 2020, it mainly represented an impairment of
property, plant and equipment, amounting to RMB68.6 million.
During the vyear, no such impairment of property, plant and
equipment was recognized.

Bt .r =

BEEENWmR DN

Bt 7 [B] B8 ()

BREZEFEAREEREBERF RE
U E S ERERBEDZASRERFEEN

EHEEERENESEANE BRESERANEY
EEBEEDRENAEEBENEEERER (B
HEBABEEARETHRE) RRBSHREB A
RARERBEEBSANFEMELNREEET
et - FR - AEBEREEREE KRR
el CERRKBEB —FHORE UABEME
%E%&%¢mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%imﬂ?ﬁ ES)i A

FTAERERESRBRANEERER A A
R#19. Ogﬁﬁjﬁ:(—: —T: AR¥363B &8 TH
&) -

B & A A

MERATERRTLEMEENTE - NEH
BBEERA_Z_ZFNARKNSSHEET/IE
EAE—Z - —FHOARKI2498 87T BRA
51% - REBEGERKESEEBRERAE - BH
BEZHRLELNBEEE

P15
TR -FNABRIXERARBI4BET W
TECTENMBRIXERARBI0IBET
BHIXENDEZRAEERNFRAHRMEHR
FEt Fre i & MR 0 252 i 70 B3 A A B 15 40
Pk e

ERIEREXBCFERER

RIZE-ZF A BMNEEARBERERAA
FIETARBREELANEE AEBLEERRR
EXREFLHNEREE FERER BPHD
KEBReEME T HMAN R KGEEDER
RERNAEGRAZE BATETERNKE
REME AN ERE M ANEE B ERKE -
THEBBTEEKNGREL - R IFKENEE
H-Z_TEMNARKS2AS IR E T - —

FOARBSIBET - R_ZE_TFNERP
TERRELERZABERSRBRERL =
BRAARK6AE T —T—_—FR  LEER
BERME BERREBHRE-




30 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED & X &6RZERARA T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

Financial Review (continued)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent

The Group shows a turnaround of the Group’s financial results from
loss to profit. A significant improvement of profit attributable to
owners of the parent of RMB193.2 million was shown in 2021, as
compared to a loss attributable to owners of the parent of
RMB215.6 million in 2020 mainly due to the significant increase in
gross profit in 2021.

Inventory turnover days

The Group has been focusing its efforts in raising the inventory
turnover and lowering the inventory turnover days in order to
mitigate the risk of rapid decline inventory prices caused by
continuous technological advancement of photovoltaic products, and
at the same time, reducing the backlog of funds and further
strengthen the Group’s operation working capital. The inventory
turnover days of the Group during the year remain stable at 26 days
(2020: 27 days).

Trade receivable turnover days

The sales of photovoltaic modules accounted for about 60% of the
Group's overall sales in 2021 and 2020. According to the standard
terms of the industry’s module sales contracts, the recovery of
module receivables depends on the construction progress of the
photovoltaic power plant. For instance, some trade receivables can
only be recovered after the customer’s photovoltaic power plant is
connected to the grid. Therefore, the trade receivables turnover days
of module business are generally longer. Trade receivables turnover
days for the year has slightly increased to 98 days (2020: 95 days).

Trade payable turnover days

The trade payables turnover day was 123 days in 2021, which was
relatively longer as comparing to 116 days in 2020. The trade
payable turnover days is generally longer than the trade receivables
turnover days, as the Group would like to utilise its operating funds
in a more strategic manner for business growth, yet paying our
suppliers within the credit period. The Group has formed strategic
partnerships with our major suppliers. Under stable and frequent co-
operations, the suppliers have gradually increased our credit lines and
payment terms.
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Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

The principal source of working capital of the Group during the year
were cash flows from operating activities and the proceeds from
subscription of shares. As at 31 December 2021, the current ratio
(current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 0.84
(31 December 2020: 0.80). The Group had net borrowings of
RMB941.8 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB1,337.2 million), including cash and cash equivalents of
RMB431.9 million (31 December 2020: RMB456.3 million), pledged
deposits of RMB751.3 million (31 December 2020: RMB686.1
million), bank and other loans due within one year of RMB1,915.3
million (31 December 2020: RMB2,475.5 million) and non-current
bank and other loans of RMB209.7 million (31 December 2020:
RMB4.1 million). The net debt to equity ratio (net debt divided by
total equity) was 140.1% (31 December 2020: 393.3%).

Net cash inflow from operating activities

As mentioned above, the Group was a significant turnaround from
loss to profit during the year; the Group continued to invest and
upgrade the existing production capacity which, together with the
economies of scale reflected in high-efficiency production capacity,
resulted in a significant increase in operating profit, the net cash
flows from operating activities increased substantially by 82.8% from
RMB563.5 million in 2020 to RMB1,030.4 million in 2021.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA")

During the year, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) amounted to RMB799.7 million (11.3% of
the revenue), represented a significant increase of 189.7% as
compared to RMB276.0 million (4.6% of the revenue) during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The main reason for the increase in
EBITDA was attributed to the growth in gross profit, the
achievement of efficiency in production and improvement in control
on expenses during the year.
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Financial Review (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, cash, bank deposits and bank loans that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency,
Renminbi, of the operations to which they relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily the US Dollar and Euro. The
Directors do not expect any significant impact from the change in
exchange rates since the Group uses trade receivables in foreign
currencies received from foreign customers to settle foreign loans
and trade payables in foreign currencies which naturally mitigates the
exchange rate risk. In addition, the Group will consider the
difference in interest rates and fluctuations in the exchange rates of
foreign currency denominated and local currency-denominated loan
balance, and seize opportunities to mitigate the risk through low-risk
forward exchange agreements, in order to strike a balance between
the exposure to the variations in interest costs and fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates.

Significant investment and disposal of subsidiaries

In April 2021, lJinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd (“Jinzhou
Yangguang”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) acquired
certain non-controlling shares from non-controlling shareholders of
Jiangsu Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Yueyang”). For the details of the investment in subsidiary and such
connected transaction, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 April 2021. Subsequently, Jinzhou Yangguang
injected capital contributions into Jiangsu Yueyang in June and July
2021 respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the Group owned 74%
equity interest in Jiangsu Yueyang.

In December 2021, Solargiga Energy (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Solargiga Hong Kong”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), Mr. Luo Qian and Mr. Bao Quanjun entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which Solargiga Hong Kong agreed to sell,
Mr. Luo Qian and Mr. Bao Quanjun agreed to acquire 50.5% and
0.5% of the equity interest in Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd.
(“Qinghai”) at a consideration of approximately RMB53,885,000 and
RMB534,000 respectively. Upon completion, the Group do not hold
any equity interest in Qinghai. For the details of the disposal and
such connected transaction, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 December 2021.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).

B %5 B B8 ()

AN [ B
FEBRATHNERR TS REUABELEBLSY
MEEEEARBINNERETHEERHURE
¢ BABKRRTER Y0 IEFAETR
BT o mh R 7 5 465 R 446 50 B 2 5 MR A 1 B8 B
I 5 55 B A < A R R R R 5 B B AR
EREREN AEEENERSH T BERT
MEARYE - Wb e B E F N R A
HFERAZREERERS L L —FZER
B B B MR T A 105X 5 SRR IR - (8 18 30 FIL &
BN 75 45 RO 91 K B ok 8 {1 B B o RS TP 4 o

BEABRERLEWRB A A
RZZE-—FNA ARalz2EWE QR HM
e R AR AR ([88 MBS ]) AT #1155 AR
FEAERAR(NI&WE]) 2 EERBR R K E IS
JEFERR R - BB AR MR EREEER ZF
BARQRRIZZE-_—FMNA-+=ZHHRE K& -
BMNBAER T - —FXAMEABRIHIE
FE -HEZTEZ—F+ZA=+—H £T%E
A ITERI574% K BEAE

RZFEZ—F+ZA ARBIZ2EWB R A%
KR (BB BRRAI(EBG X)) BEL LE
M2FLEETHE Bt BEGXRED
EREER MEZTEHEMEZEREDFIWERS
Fae R (58 BRAR(ES]) #50.5%K%0.5%
fEHE - KRB D B4 A A R#S53,885,0007T M A R
534,0007C ° SEAK & - AEEWEFEE TG EMR
o HEFHEMMEHAERIFRARARBHAS
T F+-_ANHHRE -

HARBIE

W= E

RZEB-Z—F+-A=+—H XERLELM
BERFREBBE(CZTF+-_A=1+—R8 8-



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 %% 33

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review (continued)
Human resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 3,937 employees (31
December 2020: 3,890 employees).

Future prospects and strategies

It is expected that the global newly installed capacity of photovoltaic
power generation will continue to grow rapidly in 2022. Coupled
with a series of government policies to support the development of
the photovoltaic industry, it is expected that PRC and the global mid
and long-term demand for photovoltaic products will continue to
experience robust growth. Photovoltaic products will be able to move
further towards full-scale marketised competition in the photovoltaic
industry and away from policy subsidies, and will progress towards
self sustainable development, advance technological progress, reduce
cost of power generation to promote the achievement in
comprehensive grid parity and will draw explosive growth in
demand.

In order to respond to the rapid increase in demand, the Group has
been expanding expanded production capacity of monocrystalline
silicon ingot, wafer and modules to take advantage of the external
production environment in different areas, enabling the Group to
fully utilise its current technological advantages in production. It is
estimated that the production capacity of monocrystalline silicon
ingot will be expanded from 5.7GW by the end of 2021 to 7.4GW
by the end of 2022. The production capacity of monocrystalline
silicon wafer will be expanded from 4.1GW by the end of 2021 to
7.4GW by the end of 2022. The production capacity of modules will
be expanded from 7.2GW by the end of 2021 to 8.2GW by the end
of 2022.
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Financial Review (continued)
Future prospects and strategies (continued)

Besides, in the planning for 2022, the upstream monocrystalline
silicon ingot production capacity will be significantly higher than the
downstream module production capacity. It is to consider that the
future supply and demand is growing rapidly. Compared with
downstream modules, production of upstream monocrystalline silicon
ingot needs higher technical thresholds and higher gross profit
margins. Therefore, the oligopoly market trend of the
monocrystalline silicon ingot suppliers will continue to exist. As the
first batch of domestic enterprises engaging in the production of
monocrystalline silicon ingot, with 20 years experience in
manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon ingot, leading the industry
with accumulated technological advantages, when more resources
will be invested in the oligopoly market of upstream monocrystalline
silicon ingots, there will be better market bargaining power which
can strengthen the Group's profitability. Additionally, to avoid sales
competition with existing overseas OEM customers, the Group has
not yet engaged in large-scale self-owned module brand sales. The
overseas module sales strategy still focus on processing services.
Therefore, the module’s capacity expansion plan will have a lower
growth rate. The Group's robust business and clear strategic focus
make us well positioned for capturing the opportunities ahead.

As a clean energy source, in respect of photovoltaic power
generation, the road to grid parity may be a painful change, but the
expected explosive growth in the market after reaching grid parity
will provide an opportunity for the industry. The Group is fully
prepared by relying on its existing advantages and will do its utmost,
to embrace the growth and development in the photovoltaic industry
in the good times, help achieve the goal of “carbon neutrality” in
2060 in China and contribute to the sustainable development of the
global environment.
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

In February 2022, Solargiga Hong Kong entered into Equity Transfer
Agreement with Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co., Ltd ("Qujing
Yangguang”) (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company), pursuant to which Solargiga Hong Kong agreed to sell
and Qujing Yangguang agreed to acquire the entire equity interest in
Jinzhou Youhua Silicon Materials Co. Ltd (“Youhua Silicon”) at
consideration of approximately RMB227,369,000. Upon completion,
the Group’s equity interest in Youhua Silicon reduced from 100% to
53.7%. For the details of the disposal, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 25 February 2022 and 1
March 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the Group’s
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 December 2021,
and has discussed and reviewed the risk management, internal
control and reporting matters.

DIVIDEND

No final dividend was paid in 2021 (2020: Nil). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2021 (2020: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
21 June 2022 to 23 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the branch share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 20 June 2022.

BEEENWmR DN

BEHRER

RZF__F_F FEBIRARRA 2B
2EWMBRE - BEGEHERRND AR AR ([ i
BER DRI REE RS Bt BEBERERE
HE R B R - i R S5 RS L R B O R N A R A
BERAR(TMAERDOZHRE REORA
R #£227,369,0007T ° jEAK 1% © N B AE R E’\]

A% #EFH100%8 £53.7% - HEFEFREA QT
AT -_—_F_A-+HEBAK-_ZE-_—_F= H
—HBRE -

BEREEE
RAARBEREZESEEHNASERMNMETRA
MERARAEBRHE T _-_—F+=-_A=+—
BLEFEMNGAVBES IEEBRERE "D

EEkEREEETIWRER-

R E
—E - FRIUERNRKERE(ZE=_ZFF:
ﬂ) %%TL M_TE - —FRERPRKE(

TERERMBFER

ARBBEHE -_E-_—_FNA-F+—"HE-_ZT_-_—
FRAZT=H(HEMRABEEN)EEHER
MBEELFE BHEITSELROBRE - 4K
HEERLFALAEEREAFRAETNE £
RR FABROGBEXHERBBREKNENS
E-—FARNATHATITFEB=Z+ 98 XEAX
RAZKBROBPELREBRADEE BRI REBLE
RAERARGLI AEBETE2FANERISIHRA
M O1781712-16F) ©




36 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED S X &ERZERARA T

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRELARSE

Overview

The board of Directors (the “Board”) strives to attain and maintain
high standards of corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices. This report outlines the principles and the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”),
as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which have been adopted by
the Group.

The Company has established the audit committee (the *“Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Code to oversee the financial
reporting procedures and internal controls of the Group so as to
ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has also
established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) with defined terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees have
been posted on the websites of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Group has implemented a compliance manual which covers areas
such as ongoing compliance obligations of the Company and the
Directors, business operations of the Group, financial management
systems, human resources management systems, internal control
systems, quality assurance and property management systems. In the
opinion of the Board, all the code provisions set out in the Code
were met by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions entered into by Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2021.
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The Board of Directors

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitoring the performance of the management team. The Directors
have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company. The Directors also assume the following responsibilities for
corporate governance as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the
Code:

(@) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e)  to review the issuer’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three executive Directors: Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman),
Mr. TAN Xin (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. WANG Junze, one
non-executive Director: Mr. HSU You Yuan, and three independent
non- executive Directors: Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. FENG
Wenli and Mr. LIAN Tao. The names and biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section entitled “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” in the annual report. The Board has a strong
independent element in its composition with over half of the board
members being non-executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of
the Board are made in the best interest of the Group’s long-term
development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
Committees. Further details of these committees are set out below
"Board Committees” section.
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Board Meetings

The Company holds Board meetings regularly, at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments,
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. Each Director also has separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications. The Company will provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings.
All the Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors
will be able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 14 Board meetings and 1
Shareholders meeting were held and the attendance of individual

Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Board Shareholders
Name of Directors meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) 14/14 iVAl
Mr. TAN Xin 13/14 171
Mr. WANG Junze 14/14 171
Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan 14/14 171
Independent non-executive
Directors
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 14/14 VAl
Ms. FENG Wenli 14/14 171
Ms. FU Shuangye (retired with
effect from 24 June 2021)
5/5 171
Mr. Lian Tao (appointed with
effect from 24 June 2021)
9/9 N/A
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Independent Non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors possess a wealth of
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have
played a significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent
judgment and their views carry significant weight in the Board's
decision. In particular, they bring impartial views to the Board on
issues of the Company’'s strategy, performance and control. The
Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy,
results and management so that all interests of shareholders are
taken into consideration, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders are taken into account in all business decisions. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
the criteria Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who has
served the Board for more than nine vyears, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent
Non-executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice
of the relevant general meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the Board believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert has served as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company for more than ten years. As
Independent Non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, he has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years, and he
continue to demonstrate a firm commitment to their role.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert would not affect his
exercise of independent judgement and is satisfied that Dr. WONG
Wing Kuen, Albert has the required character, integrity and
experience to continue fulfilling the role of an Independent
Non-executive Director.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua has been appointed as an executive Director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 18 June 2019. Each
of Mr. TAN Xin and WANG Junze has been appointed as an
executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing
from 30 June 2020. Such terms are subject to re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon retirement.

Mr. HSU You Yuan has been appointed as non-executive Director for
a specific term of three years commencing from 30 June 2020. Such
terms are subject to re-appointment by the Company at an annual
general meeting upon retirements.

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. Feng Wenli has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director for a specific
term of three years commencing from 18 June 2019, Mr. Lian Tao
has been appointed as an independent non- executive Director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 24 June 2021. Such
terms are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. WANG Junze, Mr. HSU You Yuan and Ms. FENG
Wenli will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting.

Training and Professional Development

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Directors have been given relevant guideline materials to ensure that
they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and
regulatory requirements in relation to the Company’s businesses, and
to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.
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Training and Professional Development
(continued)

All Directors had provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company. According to the training records provided
by the Directors, the trainings attended by them during the
reporting period is summarised as follows:

Trainings on corporate
governance and
Directors regulatory development

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) v
Mr. TAN Xin v
Mr. WANG Junze v

Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan v

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert v
Ms. FENG Wenli v
Mr. LIAN Tao v

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The role of the Chairman was performed by Mr. TAN Wenhua. Mr.
TAN Wenhua is an executive Director who is responsible for the
management of the Board and he also involves in the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The role of CEO is performed
by Mr. TAN Xin.

The overall management of the Company was performed by the
CEO, executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
The executive Directors (Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin and Mr.
WANG Junze) who have extensive experience in the solar energy
industry and their respective areas of profession, spearhead the
Group's overall development and business strategies.
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Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of and
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include overseeing the financial reporting processes and
internal control procedures of the Group, reviewing the financial
information of the Group and considering issues relating to the
external auditor. Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. WONG Wing Kuen,
Albert (Chairman), Ms. FENG Wenli and Mr. LIAN Tao.

In 2021, the Audit Committee met 2 times and the attendance of
individual Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of
Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman) 2/2
Ms. FENG Wenli 2/2
Ms. FU Shuangye
(retired with effect from 24 June 2021) 171
Mr. LIAN Tao
(appointed with effect from 24 June 2021) 171

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2021,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and has also discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee also
monitored the Company’s progress in implementing the Code as
required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to
a resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant
to Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of and Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s structure for
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration. Currently, the Remuneration
Committee consists of four members; three of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. LIAN Tao
(Chairman), Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. FENG Wenli, and
one is an executive Director, namely, Mr. TAN Wenhua.
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Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

In 2021, the Remuneration Committee met once and the attendance
of individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:
Attendance/
Number of
Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIAN Tao (Chairman)

(appointed with effect from 24 June 2021) N/A
Ms. FU Shuangye (Ex-chairman)

(retired with effect from 24 June 2021) 11
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 1N
Ms. FENG Wenli 11
Executive Director
Mr. TAN Wenhua 11

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration policy of the Company. In
addition, it has also reviewed and approved management’s
remuneration proposal and directors’ service contracts by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board, and ensured
that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for recruiting Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for nomination procedures and process and
criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend candidates for directorship and senior management.
Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of four members;
three of whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms.
FENG Wenli (Chairman), Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Mr. LIAN

Tao, and one is a non-executive Director, namely, Mr. HSU You
Yuan.
In 2021, the Nomination Committee met once and the attendance
of individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:
Name of Directors Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. FENG Wenli (Chairman) 11
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 11
Ms. FU Shuangye

(retired with effect from 24 June 2021) 11
Mr. LIAN Tao

(appointed with effect from 24 June 2021) N/A
Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan 171
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has discussed matters relating to the
appointment of a director or senior management members during
the year. The Nomination Committee also considered and resolved
that all the existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained
by the Company.

Board Diversity

The Board has a board diversity policy which is available on the
Company’s website. In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives
among members of the Board, it is the policy of the Company to
consider a number of factors when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments. Such factors
include gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and the
legitimate interests of the Company’s principal shareholders. The
Board considered the Company has achieved the objective of board
diversity during the year.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021 by band is set out in note 10 to the Financial
Statements.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

During the year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors nor their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or might
compete with the business of the Group.

Mr. TAN Wenhua has confirmed to the Company of his compliance
with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company
under a non-competition undertaking dated 27 February 2008
(“Non-competition undertaking”). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the Non-competition undertaking had
been complied with and duly enforced from 1 January 2021 and up
to 31 December 2021.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the Finance
Department of the Company, is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In the
preparation of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance
in the annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The performance and remuneration of the external auditors of the
Company, Ernst & Young, have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid
and payable to Ernst & Young and other external auditors in respect
of audit services amounted to approximately RMB4,760,000 (2020:
RMB3,321,000). In addition, approximately RMB553,000 (2020:
RMB45,000) was charged for other non-audit services.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and the internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Company conducted regular review to monitor the Company’s
internal management and operation during the year. Procedures have
been designed to review the risk management functions and to
ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Board supervised the management’s design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group; such
review covered all major control aspects of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group’s internal audit team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The internal
audit team mainly monitors and reviews the matters relating to the
internal control and compliance of the Company, and provides
regular risk-oriented internal audits for its subsidiaries. The internal
audits cover sales, financial reporting and information security and so
on. The internal audit team reports to the Board once a year. The
review covered each of the twelve months of 2021.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control (continued)
Risk management and internal control (continued)

In order to fulfil their fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence, the Directors will constantly seek advice and assistance
from the Company’s internal legal team and if necessary, seek advice
from external legal advisors in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Company also adopted internal control procedures relating to,
among others, signing authority and procedures since February
2007. The Company has an Audit and Legal Department consisting 8
members with extensive experience in the legal field. The main duties
of the Audit and Legal department include:

o providing legal advice on major business decisions

o reviewing and drafting legal documents

o handling legal disputes

o advising on legal issues related to daily operations

o conducting internal training for compliance matters

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board considered that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and the Company has complied with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Directors’ responsibility on the financial statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, which
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company,
Ernst & Young, on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the section entitled “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in the annual report.

Going concern

Other than the events stated in note 2.1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements set out in the section entitled “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” in the annual report, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Investors Relations

The Company places strong emphasis on its communications with
investors, and considers that maintaining on-going and open
communications with investors can promote investors’ understanding
of and confidence in the Company. The Company disclosed all
necessary balanced and understandable information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules and met with
media, securities analysts, fund managers and investors on a regular
basis to respond to their enquiries so as to provide them with a
clearer picture of the Company’'s achievements in business,
management, strategic goals and other aspects.

BY RS R B0 BRI ()

[2 e B 3R N A B BE A (4B
ABTHNEEEIREARLE FEAHDTSE
BB AT - B G R D A P96k 2 B Bk
BERRHGE WEAZE  AAESERBEON
EERERYRER - ARRNMEA_EE+F =
ARENEE (EhaE) SSERRIEFHRD
ERREF  ARRRABRRERDI  ANE
REMK REEFEEHAKLEESR B
REESFPANT RGO

. MEREBRRREHEEER

. EHREROREXM

. BRIEARFH

. PEAREEAMNAIEHEREER
. HEREFERMHEAIFI

 E - E - —F+-_A=+t-—BItEE EEE
REREENREBREERAREZERAABEE R
B BRARRCETLEEATH -

EEHMBBRERNEL

EEA% REARREANTAEDN REA
BT+ A=+ -HIFENMHE®RE -

AR B SN 4 BT T Ak D 3B B T R
AMBBEMBEEE  BNATBBLEUED
B

BEEEED

BREN AT M B HEME] NG E M
BRI aE2. 18051 2 FIEHN - B AT AR A B A]
AEBERBEEENBREARBOEFRIBER
MEATHBEE -

KREZERIR

ARB+HERBREEZER UYRSEKRE
EREFRBENRARZEBUADNREETHRAR
ARIBREHARA ZE D NRRFER LR
A2 REMRRBEERECTHRERZEBEDN
BR G WEER BHONE HEKERRES
EHemEZEER BEURNRSEHEHEALR
ARER EXR BRESLEMOIEMALZE
B M E #Y



The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and Shareholders. The
Company will meet with the Shareholders and respond to their
enquiries in the general meetings. The executive Directors attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2021.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat
whose biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this annual report.

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat has confirmed that he had attained no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31
December 2021, as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“EGM")

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies
Law (2011 Revision) or the articles of association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post or by
facsimile, together with his/her contact details, such as postal
address, email or fax, addressing to the Board at the head office of
the Company at the following address or facsimile number:

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited

Room 1402, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attention to: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Fax: 852 3416 2111

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (3 %), aged 65, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board. He was one of the founders of the Jinzhou
Plants in 2001. He was conferred various honours including the
Model for the Labour of the Nation, the medal of “May 1st” Labour
of Liaoning Province, the Builders Merit award of Liaoning Province,
the Outstanding Entrepreneur of the Building Materials Industry of
the Nation, the Venture Entrepreneur of the Liaoning Province and
First Prize Entrepreneur of Jinzhou. Prior to the founding of Jinzhou
Plants, he was the Chairman of MM ELRIKE (KE) BRET
A A] (Jinzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group) Co., Ltd.) and the
Director of #8J—F AM (linzhou 155 Factory), a state-owned
factory engaging in quartz crucibles manufacturing. He has been
granted a special subsidy by the State Council in 2004 for his
contribution in engineering technology. He is the father of Mr. Tan
Xin, the executive Director of the Company and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. TAN Xin (82%), aged 38, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree of
Marketing from the Macau University of Science and Technology,
and a master’s degree of Business Administration from University of
East Anglia, the U.K. Mr. Tan is also the representative at the 11th
and 12th member congress of the National Association of Industry
and Commerce (% Bl T Hj), Representative at the 17th National
Congress of the Communist Youth League (% @), Standing
Committee Member of the 11th and 12th Liaoning Province
Association of Industry and Commerce (R EE T EMB A E), and
the Vice President of the Liaoning General Chamber of Commerce
(EEEL @), Standing member of the 10th and 11th Liaoning
Province Youth Federation (EELSFHRASEHEZESTNE),
Member of the 12th and Standing Member of the 13th Jinzhou
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (BMMET_EBHRIHEZEE, FET=ERIHEBLKZE), and
the 1st and 2nd President of the lJinzhou Youth Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. Tan was awarded the Liaoning “Excellent
Entrepreneur” (BFHF %K), the 4th Constructors’ Medal (55 /Y fE &
®EHEE), the “May 1st Labour Medal” (R—#B)#EE), the
Jinzhou “Model Workers” (%5 By &3), “Meritorious Entrepreneur”
(WP EZK), “Technology Expert with Outstanding Contributions in

Jinzhou” (83 )N ™ & & H & Bl B & & K) “Outstanding Private
Entrepreneurs” (BFRE %K) and “Top 10 New Industrial

Enterprises” (L % + K ¥ i 1 ¥ X) and “Top Ten Young
Entrepreneurs” (T{E& F %K) and other honorary titles. Mr. TAN
took up the position of Chief Executive Officer of the Group since
October 2016. Before taking the role of the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Tan also worked in other subsidiaries within the Group and
accumulated plenty of experiences from his prior positions. He is the
son of Mr. TAN Wenhua who is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company.

=

HITES

BXERL 65K MITEFREFTEEF - BR
—EE-FRBMNEAIRAZ - - REEZES
PR&E FELA(L - ILPRE FELHERE
RE 2ERMOIREFLER EEHAXD
ERXREBMNT —FPNEEREZZIAIKRE - A1 R
MNERAT REERMNFTEAREE(RE)BRE
EFrrREERMEBE O RMEMEBERBMN -2 A
BEER -BEEGER _TTHUFHEBLEHTE
RIEHNER BRTEATEXEBEREKRE
ENER - RABEALE (REARRATEERE
FHITE)RRXE -

EELA 38 HMITEERARTEBHITE
FHEERMBBAEMGEELTEN - L NKE
4 H 25 K E(University of East Anglia) Tr§ &
HELEN BEEANAEEIEHET— +=
KeERERAEAR HBFEEF+LAZ2EAR
AeRER BEBELETIREHRLISELT— +2&
BNEE AReReR BEELET-+—ES
FHMACHHKZE HBMNTET _ERHBZEZE -
FT-EBRHELEZE BMNTE— —EFF
HEeeR BLLLEAREEE(BEFLER]
FHEEREESE [A—4FHEE] - BINmHIE
R [EPER] [HBINTHEREEERK
BRI [EFRECER] [TETAFHLE
RIF+ESFLERISEERGE - BEERN S
E-RNE+ARBEEIAEEEFERATE  BH
TEFEATEN BALEYRAEEBETEMN
BARIHE RBEABUTREILLELR -HA
RARITESHREFENELENR T -



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 5% 49

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Directors
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WANG Junze (£ #972), aged 50, is an executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Company on 1 January 2007 and was the
deputy general manager of China region, who was
responsible for the accounting and finance matter of the Group. He
obtained a Master of Business Administration from the State
University of New Jersey (Rutgers). He is a certified public accountant
in Maryland, the United States. Prior to joining the Group, he was a
Special Assistant to President & Deputy Spokesman of The Office of
General Manager of WWX, the Spokesman and Chief Financial
Officer of Panram International Corp., a company listed on the Gre
Tai Securities Market in Taiwan.

(continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. HSU You Yuan (FF# ), aged 67, is a non-executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Group on 6 February 2007 and was
appointed an executive Director on the same date. He graduated
with a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
Culture University in 1980. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HSU was
the Managing Director of Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX") from 1998
to 2003 and later became the Vice-Chairman of WWX in 2003.
WWX is a manufacturer of silicon wafer for the semiconductor
industry and is listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan in
2002. He was the managing director of Silicon Technology
Investment (Cayman) Corp. and was appointed the Chief Executive
Officer of Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp., responsible
for overseeing, amongst others, WWX'’s investment in the solar
energy industry. In March 2006, he was appointed a director and he
was subsequently appointed as the Chairman of the board of
Jinzhou Youhua in September 2006. Mr. HSU’s previous work
credentials also include acting as Deputy General Manager of Mosel
Vitelic Inc., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and as
a director and Executive Vice-President of Mosel Vitelic (Hong Kong)
Limited, a subsidiary of Mosel Vitelic Inc. Mr. HSU had also made
contributions to non-commercial sectors in the past. He served as a
researcher, a deputy director, and the director of Business
Department of the Executive Yuan Development Fund of Taiwan
(Note: Executive Yuan Development Fund is now known as National
Development Fund, Executive Yuan). He was also a lecturer of
Statistics and Managerial Mathematics for the Business
Administration department at the Chinese Culture University.
Mr. HSU has been an independent non-executive director of China
Shanshui Cement Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since September 2018. In
January 2021, he has been a president of Little Aid from Everyone
Association (/N E ).
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (£ 7k #), aged 70, was appointed as
an Independent non-executive Director on 12 January 2008.
Dr. Wong is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Chartered Institute
for Securities and Investments, UK, Association of International
Accountants, Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong,
The Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland, UK, as well
as a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute, The Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, Macau Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and an associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Bankers in Scotland, UK. He holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration degree from the Bulacan State University, Republic of
the Philippines. Dr. WONG had been a director and Chief Executive
Officer of Minghua Group International Holdings Limited, a listed
public company in the United States, until 30 September 2004.

Since 1 January 2018, Dr. WONG was appointed as the Principal
Consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited. Dr. WONG has been an
independent non-executive director of APAC Resources Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since July 2004; an independent non-executive director of
China Merchants Land Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since June 2012; an independent
non-executive director of China VAST Industrial Urban Development
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, since August 2014; an independent non-
executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since September 2017; an independent non-executive
director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
GEM board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for the period from
January 2018 to January 2022; an independent non-executive
director of China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since
December 2018; and an independent non-executive director of Dexin
China Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since February 2019.

Dr. WONG is an Independent non-executive Director of the Company
and has served on the Board for more than 10 years. As an
Independent Non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, Dr. WONG has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years. He
continues to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role.
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.3.4 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee and the Board consider that Dr. WONG, being a Certified
Public Accountant, is able to complement the professional
background of the composition of the Board in terms of expertise in
accounting and financial reporting. Notwithstanding Dr. WONG holds
various company directorships in listed companies in Hong Kong, he
devoted sufficient time in fulfilling his role in the Company. During
the past year, he attended and actively participated in the
discussions in all the Board meetings and committee meetings which
he was eligible to attend.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG would not affect his exercise of independent
judgment and are satisfied that Dr. WONG has the required
character, integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the role of
an Independent Non-executive Director and consider Dr. WONG to be
independent.

Ms. FENG Wenli (53 %), aged 66, graduated from Northeastern
University in 1982 with a major in semiconductor materials. From the
same year, she worked in & B ¥ & £ B I fE (Luoyang
Monocrystalline Silicon Factory). She was mainly engaged in
semiconductor-grade monocrystalline silicon ingot-pulling technology
and technical quality management. In 1990, she served as Chief
Engineer of Luoyang Monocrystalline Silicon Factory. In 1993, she
served as the Secretary of Party Committee of Luoyang
Monocrystalline Silicon Factory and from 1995 onwards, she
concurrently served as General Manager of Sino-US joint venture
company ZEHimE FM K BMR AT (MCL Electronic Materials Co.,
Ltd.) and has received training on monocrystalline silicon ingot and
wafer technologies and management training from MEMC of the
United States. In October 2000, she worked as Deputy General
Manager of BHfiEREIZ= A 7 (GRINM Silicon Guotai Co., Ltd.)
under dt RE B EBHTITLFT (Beijing General Research Institute For
Nonferrous Metals). She was responsible for the technical quality and
production of heavily blended monocrystalline silicon ingots and
wafers, and participated in the national science and technology
research and development project work on 8-inch heavily arsenic
blended monocrystalline silicon. She served as the Deputy General
Manager of /& B fl # % F 7 # £ 2 & (Shanghai Shenhe
Thermomagnetic Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.) in March 2003,
where she was responsible for monocrystalline ingot and wafer
production. She has also received training on wafer production,
technology and management from B AR ZM&E ARG (Toshiba
Ceramics Co., Ltd.) of Japan. She was the General Manager of A%
EEMENRRAMEARAEF (nner Mongolia Minaji Photovoltaic
Materials Co., Ltd.) in 2006, where she was responsible for the
production of solar monocrystalline silicon and the production of
heavily blended monocrystalline silicon. She retired in 2016 and was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the Group on
18 June 2019.
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LIAN Tao (B /&), aged 45, holds a bachelor degree in
management (accounting) from Northeast Dianli University, a
bachelor degree in law from Tsinghua University, a master’s degree
in accounting at The University of New South Wales, a master’s
degree in law at Saarland University of Germany and a doctoral
degree at Mannheim University of Germany, with law and finance
professional background. With about 20 years of working experience
in state-owned and private enterprises in Germany, Hong Kong, and
Mainland China, Mr. LIAN was responsible for two Hong Kong listed
companies, a German listed company and a mainland listed company
in their initial application for listing or after listing in the refinancing
business. He has rich professional knowledge and practical
experience in various securities regulatory regulations and practices,
domestic and overseas investment and financing management,
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, and capital operations. He
was appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Group on 24 June 2021.

The Directors’ interest or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") are set out in the section
headed “Interest and Short Positions of the Directors and the Chief
Executives of the Company in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” in this
annual report. Each Director has been appointed for a term of three
years. The Directors’ emoluments, the basis of determining the same
(including any bonus payments, whether fixed or discretionary in
nature, irrespective of whether the Director has or does not have a
service contract) and the Directors’ fees are set out in note 9 to the
Financial Statements and the section headed and “Report of the
Directors — Emolument Policy” of this annual report. Save as
disclosed above, each Director confirmed that there are no other
matters that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company and there is no other information
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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Senior Management

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat (#5 & 3£), aged 52, is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Yeung graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree of business
administration and obtained a master's degree in professional
accounting with distinction from Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He worked at a major international accounting firm for over 10
years and then worked for various Hong Kong listed companies as
vice-president, chief financial officer, financial controller and/or
company secretary. He possesses extensive experience in auditing,
accounting, business management, corporate restructuring and
corporate finance.

Mr. LI Hongbang (2% 78), aged 49, the General Manager of the
Group's Crystalline Division. He joined the Group in 2003. He
graduated from Zhejiang University in 2010 with a bachelor’'s degree
in marketing. From 2005, Mr. LI served as the office supervisor.
Mr. LI was the head of Sales Department since 2007 and the
supervisor of Shanghai Marketing Center and the head of Sales
Department since 2009. Later, he became the director of Group
Production Planning Department in 2013. He has served as the
General Manager of Ingot Pulling Business Department since May
2014, and also served as the General Manager of Wafer Slicing
Business Department since August 2015. In August 2015, Ingot
Pulling Department merged with Wafer Slicing Business Department,
he serves as the General Manager of the Group’s Crystalline Division
after merging.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Hai (38)8), aged 39, the General Manager of the
Module Business Department of the Group. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in information technology and business management at
Northeastern University, master’s degree in energy management from
Tulane University. He is a PhD candidate of Business Administration
at the Belhaven University and is an electrical engineer. In 2010,
Mr. ZHANG was employed by Huachang Photovoltaic Technology
Co., Ltd (FEE X KE AR Q7)) as the head of Quality Assurance
Department. He served as the head of Group Quality Control
Department in 2012 and the director of Group Quality Management
Department in February 2014. In August 2014, he became the
general manager of Module Business Department. Since January
2018, he served as the Vice General Manager and General Manager
of R&D Quality Assurance Centre of the Group. He was appointed as
the General Manager of Module Business Department since February
2021. He is currently vice chairman of China Photovoltaic Industry
Association and a member of Technical Standards Committee of
China Photovoltaic Industry Association, an executive director of
China Electronic Materials Industry Association and vice chairman of
Semiconductor Materials Branch. He was awarded the May 1st Labor
Medal of Jinzhou City, one of the inventors of 16 patents, one of
the third prize of Liaoning Province Science and Technology Progress
Award and one of the first prize of Jinzhou Science and Technology
Progress Award.

Mr. CHEN Limin (BR3Z[R), aged 55, the General Manager of the
Manufacturing Centre of the Group’s Crystalline Division and Chief
Technology Officer. He joined the Group in 2000. He graduated
from the Sichuan Institute of Building Materials in 1991 with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Chen served as the head of
the Technology Department from 2005. He was the director of the
Technology Department since 2007 and became the Head of the
Youhua Ingot Pulling Factory in 2013. In 2015, he served as the
General Manager of the Manufacturing Center of Crystal Company
and also served as Chief Technology Officer in 2017.

Ms. LIU Bo (ZI)%), aged 49, the General Manager of lJianhu
Production Base of the Module Business Department of the Group.
She joined the Group in 2005. She graduated from the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in 1996. Ms Liu became the
team leader of Wafer Slicing from 2006. Since 2008, she served as
minister of production and equipment. In January 2013, she was the
Vice General Manager of Module Business Department and has
served as the General Manager of Jianhu Production Base of Module
Business Department since May 2019.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. WANG Lixin (E32#7), aged 54, the General Manager of Jinzhou
Production Base of Module Business Department of the Group. He
graduated from the Party School of Liaoning Province in 2000. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. WANG was the Chief Engineer of Jinzhou
Thermal Power Corporation (88N Z4E 422 &]) from April 1990 to
May 2008. He joined the Group as the head of Cell Business
Department and Equipment Department in 2008 and later became
the plant head of Cell Business Department since 2012 and the
general manager of Cell Business Department since 2014. He also
served as the General Manager of Module Business Department since
January 2018. Since December 2020, he serves as the General
Manager of Jinzhou Production Base of the Group’s Module Business
Department.

Ms. CHEN Linlin (BR¥3), aged 44, is the General Manager of
Marketing Operation Center of the Group’s Crystalline Division. She
graduated from Dalian University of Technology in 2000 with a
bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering. She obtained a Master of
Business Administration from Dalian University of Technology in
2006. She joined the Group in 2006 and has held various positions
including project manager, project director, production planning
director, planning director, and administrative director. In 2021, she
served as the General Manager of Administration Center of the
Group’s Crystalline Division. Later, she serves as the General
Manager of Marketing Operation Center of the Group’s Crystalline
Division in February 2022.

Mr. ZHANG Yubo (3K £18), aged 41, is the General Manager of
Marketing Operations Center of Qujing Yangguang of the Group. He
joined the Group in 2005. He graduated from Shenyang Ligong
University in 2004 with a bachelor’'s degree in Metalic Materials.
Mr. Zhang became the Group’s Head of Technical Department in
2007 and then the Head of the Group’s Yangguang manufacturing
plants in Jinzhou in 2009. Later in 2014, he served as the Production
Planning Director. In 2017, he was appointed as General Manager of
Qujing Yangguang. And, he was appointed as General Manager of
the Marketing Operation Center of Qujing Yangguang in 2021.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. MA Yuan (f5[&l), aged 36, the General Manager of the Group's
Marketing Operation Centre. He joined the Group in 2008 and
served in Shanghai Marketing Centre. He graduated from Dalian
Jiaotong University in 2008. Mr. Ma was the Vice Supervisor of
Shanghai Marketing Centre in 2013. Later, he became the
department head of the Domestic Marketing Department in 2015
and Director in 2017. In 2020, he was appointed as the General
Manager of the Group’s Marketing Operation Centre. Mr. Ma has
won various provincial and municipal honorary awards many times,
such as “Jinzhou Model Worker”, “Jinzhou Top Ten Industrial Sales
Champions” and other glorious titles. The marketing team led by
him won the “Jinzhou May Fourth Youth Medal” (collective) in
2019.

Mr. GU Xiaodong (EABE5R), aged 42, the General Manager of the
Group's Liaoning Boxinke Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd. He
joined the Group in 2018. He graduated from Tongji University in
2003 with a bachelor’s degree in materials science and engineering.
Mr. GU became the Technician of the Monocrystalline Silicon
Division of Shanghai Shenhe Thermo-Magnetics Electronics Co., Ltd.
in 2003 and Section Chief in 2005. In 2006, he served as the

Deputy General Manager of Production in Inner Mongolia Minaji
Photovoltaic Materials Co., Ltd (REE 2 M S AT GRE Q7).

Mr. CAO Hongbin (B 4L#), aged 57, the General Manager of the
Group’s Jiangsu Xinyangguang Zhiding Technology Co., Ltd. He
joined the Group in January 2021. He graduated from Jiangsu
Agricultural Reclamation Workers’ College (T #F & £ 228 T A £) in
Enterprise Management in 1989 and obtained the title of Senior
Economist. Mr. CAO became the General Manager of Jinzhou
Xinyangguang Photovoltaic Application Co., Ltd in January 2021.
Since March 2021, he has served as the General Manager of Jiangsu
Xinyangguang Zhiding Technology Co., Ltd.

Mr. SATO Masanobu (#c## IEiE), aged 52, is the Quality Director of
Solar Cell Business Department and Technology and Quality Director
of Module Business Department of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in Sharp Corporation from 1988 and had worked
in the semiconductor field for 18 years. After which, for 10 years
from 2006, he served as the Quality Manager in the Department of
Photovoltaic Systems in Sharp Corporation. Since 2016, he serves as
the Quality Director of Cell Business Department and Technology and
Quiality Director of Module Business Department of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHTE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company of the Group.
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture of trading
of, and provision of processing services for polysilicon and
monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers, and the manufacture and
trading of photovoltaic modules, the construction and operation of
photovoltaic power plants. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the subsidiaries during
the financial year are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities,
including a description of an indication of likely future development
in and, risks and uncertainties of the Group’s business, can be found
in the section entitled “Management Discussion and Analysis” this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this directors’ report. The
description and disclosures of the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance aspects during the financial year can also be found in
the Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG") Report which
to be published separately.

Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

As far as the directors are aware, the group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s top five customers are mainly silicon solar wafer, cell or
modules manufacturers or traders. In aggregate, the largest and five
largest customers did not exceed 9% (2020: 11%) and 26% (2020:
37%) of the Group’s total sales in 2021 respectively.

In aggregated, the Group’s purchases from its largest and five
largest suppliers did not exceed 19% (2020: 15%) and 42% (2020:
41%) of the Group's total purchases in 2021 respectively. Save for
Mr. Tung Ching Sai indirectly interested in one of the five largest
suppliers, at no time during the year have the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers and/or
customers.
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Relationship with Employees, Suppliers,
Customers and Other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During the
year under review, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or stakeholders.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 75 to 212. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB193,222,000 (2020: loss of
RMB215,648,000) had been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the section entitled
"consolidated statement of changes in equity” in the annual report.

As at 31 December 2021, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB1,137,599,000 (2020: RMB1,115,694,000).

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB229,000 (2020: RMB273,000).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the
annual report.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua, Chairman
Mr. TAN Xin
Mr. WANG Junze

Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert

Ms. FENG Wenli

Ms. FU Shuangye (retired with effect from 24 June 2021)
Mr. LIAN Tao (appointed with effect from 24 June 2021)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's articles of
association, Mr. WANG Junze, Mr. HSU You Yuan and Ms. FENG
Wenli will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, transactions with the
following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Name of party &5 &%
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Relationship B %

Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited

BMELMEEERR DA
Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd.
BMERE BN AR AT

Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huida")
TEHRTEENMERMBRAERAR(FE])

Jianhu High-tech Investment Development Co., Ltd
ERGEeREERBERADF

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 41 to
the financial statements.

Controlled by Tan Wenhua, Chairman of the Company
C NN

1

Controlled by spouse of Tanxin, an executive director of
the Company
RERRRTEREENRBEN

Associate of the Group
REEMBE QA

Investor of a subsidiary
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Company’s continuing connected transactions.

Connected Transaction

Saved for the significant investment and disposal of subsidiaries set
out in the section entitled “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
the annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
related party transactions disclosed in note 41 to the financial
statements did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme

The Company did not have a share option scheme as at 31
December 2021.

Employee Share Ownership Plan

Details of employee share ownership plan are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) by reason of
their holdings of the shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in
or exercising of any rights in relation to the shares, they are advised
to consult their professional advisers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

On 21 January 2021, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with an independent
third party (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to allot and issue 180,000,000 new shares at an issue price
of HK$0.29 per share to the Subscriber (the “Subscription”). The
total consideration paid by the Subscriber under the Subscription
Agreement amounted to HK$52,200,000, equivalent to
RMB41,424,000. The Subscription Agreement was completed on
28 January 2021. Save as disclosed above, during the year, there was
no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities. For details of the
Subscription, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 January 2021.

Intended use of
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Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
associates had the following interests in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:
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Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of

shares held shareholding
(Note 1) (%)
Name of Director Nature interest FEEEREE BAERBES X
BEEnE EEME (B 3ET) (%)
Mr. TAN Wenhua Beneficial interest (Note 2) 556,924,443 (L) 16.76%
EXERA B i (M 5E2)
Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 155,320,308 (L) 4.67%
ZEAEE R (I F2)
Mr. TAN XIN Beneficial interest 41,762,000 (L) 1.26%
BELE BEntEn

Mr. WANG Junze
EHELE

Beneficial interest

s g
EmEn

Fﬂ}

Mr. HSU You Yuan Beneficial interest

100,500 (L) Less than 0.01%

L 1#20.01%

15,591,016 (L) 0.47%

RN 98 A EmfEm
Notes: M s -
1. The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in such securities. 1. FHRILBEZALITRZEESZNER -
2. As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Tan Wenhua is interested in an aggregate 2. RZF—_—F+=A= JF BrBXELEAH

of 712,244,751 share of the Company, of which (i) 556,924,443 share
of the Company are directly held by Mr. Tan Wenhua; and (ii)
155,320,308 share of the Company are held by You Hua Investment
Corporation, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Tan Wenhua.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions’ in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, save as
disclosed above, the substantial shareholders and other persons or
corporations (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:

TR R AEE

To—f+-A=+—0 BEFHOE
BEXHEEN U TEEREREMALRAE
B FEFRARARDIRAB)RAR AR
A RAAMIRG - A DR ERIE B RS
OIEBCHATFENBEMRE BTATEL
AR TR

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares Percentage of
held (Note 1) shareholding (%)
Name Capacity FEEERYE BAER
BB/ HE &5 (BFE1) B2 (%)
Hiramatsu International Corp. Beneficial owner 304,261,692 (L) 9.15%
EnBEAA
Hanako Hiramatsu (Note 2) Beneficial interest 304,261,692 (L) 9.15%
Hanako Hiramatsu (Fff5£2) EnEm
Madam Sze Tan Hung Beneficial interest 237,295,000 (L) 7.14%
WS 2+ EnEn
Mr. Tung Ching Sai (Note 3) Interest of spouse 237,295,000 (L) 7.14%
=I5tk A (KTEE3) BB
Notes: i
1. The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in such securities. 1. FRILIEBZATHRZEESFNITE -
2. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having 2. BEENEE —VEBEEREMAN 2B RE

made all reasonable enquiry, Hiramatsu International Corp. is wholly-
owned by Hanako Hiramatsu as at the date of this report. By virtue of
the SFO, Hanako Hiramatsu is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Hiramatsu International Corp.

3. Mr. Tung Ching Sai is the spouse of Madam Sze Tan Hung and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares which Madam Sze
Tan Hung is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
which fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.
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Non-competition Undertaking

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors nor
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business that competed or might compete with the
business of the Group.

The controlling shareholders of the Company has confirmed that he/
it has complied with the terms of non-competition undertakings
(“Non-competition Undertakings”) given in favour of the Company.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of the compliance by each of the controlling shareholders
with the undertakings stipulated in the Non-competition
Undertakings and have confirmed that, as far as the independent
non-executive Directors can ascertain, there is no breach of any of
such undertakings.

Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertakings, Mr. TAN Wenhua
shall continue to be bound by the terms of the non-competition
undertaking in the event that he ceases to be a Director but remains
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is
actual or potential conflict in interest.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had not
received any information in writing from Mr. TAN Wenhua in respect
of any new business opportunity which competed or might compete
with the existing and future business of the Group which were
offered to or came to be the knowledge of the Mr. TAN Wenhua or
their associates (other than any member of the Group), and the
Company has received an annual written confirmation from Mr. TAN
Wenhua in respect of him and his associates in compliance with the
non competition undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed and were satisfied that Mr. TAN
Wenhua had complied with the Non-competition undertaking.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

On 2 June 2020, Solargiga Hong Kong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a loan agreement with Mr. TAN Wenhua,
our executive director, for a loan to Solargiga Hong Kong which is
unsecured with a 5% annual interest rate. For details, please refer to
Note 41 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 in this report.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a director is or had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

St

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 %% 63

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

BB A
BE-_BE_—F+_-_A=+—HItFEE BF
FESAZHBEAL(ERLE WA BERE
AREEEBHFRATEARNEBAERTF 2 ER
hEB R -

ARABERBRRCERECETENR AR FH
BT A ([FEBRF A IR - B IERTT
EZNCEERERBRRETCNHEF AR TR
JEHY AR RO - LB S IE T E BT BETEE Y
& - IR E B AT A L AR -

RETBFAE MEBXELEERLEETLTES
BBEEERADNAIERR RAEAXTHF
EGEHIERRAIR -

HMER LR EFEREEERRTREFENR
BR ZHRNGESTARRZLERFHESH -

BT+ -A=+—HILEFE AQA
TERKINBEXELERTMERERIREG R AK
XN B FUNERFONEBSRENE@MES -
EEXNELEREBEA(KREBTHEK BRI
MAE MARAE KRB EXELARE R EB
BABTIEBFAHZNTEEARRI - BILIER
TEENCEHTEPNENELLECETTIERSF
A o

BEECENER
RZE-_ZFTFEXNA-_H BEB X —HEART
ZERETRR ERMTEBRENELEILT —
HERWZE  AREBE L REEEFREFRN X
BSHHEN HFBR2HAREHE-_ZS-_—F
+ZA=Z+—BLEFEARREHMERERWTE
41 °

B BTSN AR HEEMME R B KRR
MEARMES2ETIENRFRABE_T - —
FT_A=ZTHLFERAERERDABER A
E=YEFHMENERNETERAHESESA
EABGRZEARS THIAEH -




64 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &ERER AR A E

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts

On 2 June 2020, Solargiga Hong Kong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a loan agreement with Mr. TAN Wenhua,
our executive director, for a loan to Solargiga Hong Kong which is
unsecured with a 5% annual interest rate. For details, please refer to
Note 41 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no contract of
significance and no contract of significance for the provision of
services had been entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’'s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set out by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Retirement Benefit Schemes
Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Special enquiries have been made by
the Company to confirm that all Directors have been complied with
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the section entitled “Corporate Governance report” in
the annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
references adopted in compliance with the Code set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit
Committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, and
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert, an independent non-executive
Director, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication
between other Directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as
regards their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal
controls, external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to time.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in providing an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time to time
and the Company considers these systems effective and adequate.
The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s interim and annual
consolidated financial statements for the year 2021, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

Management Contracts

The Company did not enter into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Dividend Policy

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital to grow the Group's business
and rewarding the shareholders of the Company. The Board shall
take into account the following factors, among other factors:

(@) the Group’s overall results of operation, financial position,
liquidity position, capital requirements, cash flow and future
prospects,

(b)  the amount of distributable reserves of the Company;

(¢)  the expected capital requirements and future expansion plans
of the Group;

(d) the general business and regulatory conditions, the business
cycle of the Group and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

(e)  the statutory and regulatory restrictions;

(f)  the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the
Company to the Company;

(g) the Shareholders’ interests; and
(h)  other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed
with the Stock Exchange, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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Auditors

Ernst & Young, registered public interest entity auditor, was
appointed by the Directors to conduct audit on the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint Ernst & Young as the auditors of the
Company.

By Order of the Board
TAN Wenhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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To the shareholders of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 212 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
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The amount of trade receivables and contract assets accounted for a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. As at 31 December 2021,
the aggregated carrying amount and the impairment provision were
RMB1,365,945,000 and RMB113,245,000 respectively of trade
receivables and contract assets.

The Group applied the simplified approach to determine the
provision and recognised lifetime expected losses for trade
receivables and contract assets. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the ageing of balances for
groupings of various customers with similar loss patterns, repayment
histories, and existing customer-specific and market conditions. In
addition, management considered forward-looking information,
including the forecast of industry situation and overall economic
conditions. Estimating the expected credit loss requires significant
management judgements and estimates.

The accounting policies and disclosure of the impairment are
included in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”,
note 3 “Significant accounting judgements and estimates”, note 23
“Trade, bills receivables and contract assets” to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We assessed management’'s processes and controls relating to the
estimation of the expected credit loss by obtaining an understanding
of the design, implementation and operation of key internal controls
over the credit control, the receivables collection process and the
process of recording expected credit loss for trade receivables and
contract assets. We discussed with management on the estimation
involved in determining the expected credit loss allowance regarding
trade receivables and contract assets.

We tested the arithmetic accuracy of the provision matrix of
simplified approach prepared by management to calculate the
expected credit losses. We also assessed management’s estimates on
loss allowance by examining the information used by management,
including testing the accuracy of the ageing report and repayment
histories by vouching a sample of items with the relevant underlying
documentation; and evaluating whether the estimated loss rates were
adjusted based on forward-looking information. In addition, we
evaluated the forward-looking information which the Group used to
calibrate the matrix, such as the forecast of industry situation and
overall economic conditions by comparing them to external industry
outlook reports.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures included in
the consolidated financial statements regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets.

Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of RMB1,901,125,000, which accounted for a significant
portion of the Group’s assets.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group suffered loss in year 2021 and
there was an impairment indicator for property, plant and equipment
of these subsidiaries. Management performed impairment test
accordingly by comparing the recoverable amounts based on the
value-in-use calculation of the cash-generating units (the “CGU")
that the property, plant and equipment belong to with the carrying
amounts of the identified cash-generating units as at 31 December
2021 and did not recognise impairment loss during this year.
Estimating the recoverable amounts requires significant management
judgements and estimates including future sales, cost of inventories
sold and the discount rates applied to these forecasted future cash
flows.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)
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The accounting policies and disclosure of the impairment are
included in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”,
note 3 “Significant accounting judgements and estimates” and note
15 “Property, plant and equipment” to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We evaluated management’s assessment on the impairment
indicators for property, plant and equipment, and management’s
identification of cash-generating units.

We compared management’s valuation methodology, that is, value-
in-use calculation based on future discounted cash flows, to industry
practice and assessed the key assumptions used, such as estimates of
future sales and cost of inventories sold by analysing the historical
accuracy of management’s estimates, and discount rates by
comparing them to external industry outlook reports. In addition, we
involved our valuation specialists to assist us with assessing the
valuation methodology and the discount rates.

We evaluated the sensitivity of the significant assumptions described
above by assessing the changes to the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs resulting from possible changes in these assumptions, both
individually and in the aggregate.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures included in
the consolidated financial statements regarding the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment.
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Ka Yan, Augustine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FEeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#51/1E)

2021 2020
—EBE-_—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ot 5 ARBT T ARBTT

Continuing Operations BEKEXEY
Revenue I #5 5 7,104,992 6,051,956
Cost of sales §H & B AN (6,225,909) (5,466,104)
Gross profit EF 879,083 585,852
Other income and gains N NS & 6 61,744 64,881
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (144,165) (135,912)
Administrative expenses TR X (301,178) (440,499)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment B 7& & & 418 E R E

losses) on financial and contract assets B, CRE) 19,031 (36,303)
Finance costs A& KA 8 (124,856) (118,750)
Share of losses of associates iR i RN ] — (157)
Profit/(loss) before tax from HEEEEEZRBA

continuing operations @ (EE) 7 389,659 (80,888)
Income tax expense e &R 11 (81,411) (30,273)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BFEREEKCEE

continuing operations @ (EE) 308,248 (111,161)
Discontinued Operations ERIEEEER
Loss for the year from discontinued BERIEEEEK 2

operations FEEE (5,896) (85,206)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEANB(EHE) 302,352 (196,367)
Attributable to: BT ALHEA:

Owners of the parent [SNEI$E 193,222 (215,648)

Non-controlling interests FE 128 ) 1% 7 109,130 19,281

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per FEREBAREBERRR
share attributable to ordinary equity HWEREARES

holders of the parent (RMB cents) BR(EE)
(AR% )
For profit/(loss) for the year FENB(EE) 14 5.84 (6.82)
For profit/(loss) from continuing BESEER2AE
operations (E548) 14 6.02 (4.13)

=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EHEZE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5II{E)

2021 2020
—EBE_—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBETT

Profit/(loss) for the year FENB(FHR) 302,352 (196,367)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hitt2EBA (F8)
Other comprehensive income that may be AREBEHEESEEE=
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: RHEMIER :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEBINETBE £/
operations ME i =58 19,350 32,323

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, SEZM@EWA (EE)

after tax (MR ER) 321,702 (164,044)
Attributable to: BT AL FES:

Owners of the parent B RARKE 212,572 (183,325)

Non-controlling interests FE1E I M A 2 109,130 19,281

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FEZEBRA(EE)
Fg:C) 321,702 (164,044)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fmeMEKAR

At 31 December 2021 R-_Z-—%®+_-HF=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5IE)

2021 2020
—EZ—f —EEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARE T AR T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- REREE 15 1,901,125 1,513,287
Long-term prepayments and other R EATE T RIE R
receivables ot pE W R IR 17,211 27,566
Goodwill Gl 17 — —
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 238,563 192,449
Investments in associates R E NRRIRE 19 200 —
Equity investments designated at fair value AR EEEHEZF
through other comprehensive income FFAEAM AR S U s B R
m IR & 20 190 190
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEE 21 9,065 9,662
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 2,166,354 1,743,154
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 22 459,439 435,087
Trade, bills receivables and contract assets EWE ZFERZ ZE &
EREE 23 1,953,204 1,927,866
Prepayments, other receivables and other TETFRIE -« H M FE YR IE
assets K Hoth & B 24 521,292 353,163
Current tax recoverable BV & Ay Uk [= 7 1E 7,744 68
Pledged deposits [REEEEREEN 25 751,278 686,100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBELEEY 26 431,861 456,265
Total current assets REBEEHARE 4,124,818 3,858,549
Current liabilities REBEE
Interest-bearing bank and RITREMTEEE
other borrowings 27 1,915,279 2,475,519
Trade and bills payables ENEZERRER 28 2,242,716 2,011,213
Other payables and accruals HENRERESHAE 29 543,866 262,323
Contract liabilities SREE 30 141,083 61,318
Current tax payable BV EA & 1< B 18 25,629 3,379
Provision BiE 31 4,700 —
Current portion of lease liabilities —FAEBEHNHEHERE 18 20,270 8,564
Total current liabilities FBAaEAE 4,893,543 4,822,316
Net current liabilities REBEETFHE (768,725) (963,767)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERARBERS 1,397,629 779,387
iy b
‘\I £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI K

At 31 December 2021 WZ—ZT=-——%+=-A=+—H1
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R# 5II{&)

2021 2020
—E-—f —EEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
pi EPCLEPE ARMTT
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other RITREMTEEER
borrowings 27 209,670 4,060
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIA A E 21 2,418 3,777
Deferred income I AE YA 32 258,065 239,281
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 73,592 40,786
Provision B 31 181,605 151,487
Total non-current liabilities kFRBEELE 725,350 439,391
Net assets EEFE 672,279 339,996
Equity Ea
Equity attributable to owners of the FERBATRRENESR
parent
Share capital [N 34 285,924 270,867
Reserves o 35 90,490 (130,312)
376,414 140,555
Non-controlling interests MRS 295,865 199,441
Total equity B 672,279 339,996
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SeEREDR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE=ZT=-—F+-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5IE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
$QT£§E§
General Non-
Share Share reserve Capital Exchange Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium fund reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
s ROEE -REkE 5GE EifR Ak 2itha Bt FEstER BEAH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETT  ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 AZE--%5-f-H 270,867 1,726,034 235,969 42,768 (18,525) (64,722) (2,051,836) 140,555 199,441 339,99
Profit for the year FERIE - - - - - - 193222 193,222 109,130 302,352
Other comprefiensive income for ERAB2EHE:
the year:
Exchange differences related to FRNEZBNNERE
foreign operations - - - - 19,350 - - 19,350 - 19,350
Total comprehensive income for EFRANAEE
the year - - - - 19,350 - 193222 12512 109,130 321,702
Isue of shares ki 15,057 26,367 - - - - 4 - 42
Disposal of non-controlling interests FEHEERNE - - - - - - - (51,600) (51,600)
Capital contribution from S ERNE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 4250 4,250
Investment in a subsidiary** WHBAR 2 RE - - - (8,065) - - - (8,065) 8,065 -
Acquisiton of non-controling BB RS
interests - - - - - (10,072) - (10,072) (31,661) (#1,733)
Divdends paid to non-controling FERRRNREXA
shareholders - - - - - - - - (37,395) (37,395)
Shares ssued under the employee RESIHRAAZTHRA
share ownership plan (note 35) TERE R - - - - - - - - 95,635 95,635
Appropriation to reserves AREGEE - - 248 - - - (2.482) - - -
As at 31 December 2021 R-8--51+-A=1-H 285,924 1,752,401* 238 451* 34,703 825+ (74,794)%  (1,861,09)* 376,414 295,865 672,219
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-2£-f-R 216,721 1,731,645 228,367 42,768 (50,848) 8,880 (1,803,845) 433,694 1812 455,566
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(BE) /A8 = = = = = = (215,649) (215,649) 19,281 (196,367)
Other comprehensive (loss)income EFEHEE
for the year: (B8)/7IB:
Exchange differences related to BENERRH
foreign operations HEZE = = = = 2303 = = 230 = 230
Total comprehensive (lossYincome for FE2E( Eﬁ B/
the year LN+ - - - - 32383 - (215,648) (183,325) 19,281 (164,044)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W% AHERA = = = = = = = = 88,291 88,291
Capital contribution from F: 125l W&ﬁﬁﬁ ﬁ
non-controlling interests = = = = = = = = 2,102 2,102
Dividends paid to non-controlling FERRRAORE 2
shareholders = = = = = = = = (29.932) (29,932)
Taiwan Depository Receipt (*TOR’) DA ERERTEE
shares repurchased and
cancelled (5,860) (5.611) - - - - - (11471) - (11471)
Acquisiton of non-controling WEFES R
interests - - - - - (13,602) (24.741) (98,343) 97,221 (1.116)
Appropriation to reserves ARERE = = 7602 = = - (7602) - - -
As at 31 December 2020 it 3:3
tZRZt-H 270,867 1,726,034 235,969¢ 42,768* (18,525)% (04,720 (2,051,836) 140,555 199,441 339,9%
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of  * ZEREBRNGEMBEMRARTHEHBEREAR

RMB90,490,000 (2020: deficit of RMB130,312,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

i Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co.,

Ltd.

("Jinzhou Yangguang”),

a

subsidiary of the Company and also the majority shareholder of
Jiangsu Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology Co.,
Yueyang”), agreed to inject capital into Jiangsu Yueyang in November
2020 and the capital contributions were made in June and July 2021
respectively. Upon the completion of the capital contributions by
Jinzhou Yanguang, the share of equity interest by the Company in
Jiangsu Yueyang increased from 58.47% to 73.86%, and the minority
shareholder’s sharing was diluted accordingly. This transaction was

considered to be an equity transaction.

Ltd.

("Jiangsu

* %k

#90,490,000T (= T = T & :
130,312,0007T) °

REAFARK

AEBMTRARBIMNBGKERER AT (T8BIMNE
H ) RETEHEB L RBHRER AR (DTEEERBE])
E@IE%%H%EA = - fiJr HI‘LI@MH
;ﬁf§°$%d‘\‘||3%%7:ﬁ52uuj§{§ %l%“ﬁi@ﬂﬂﬁﬁ
KR FE FR58.47% ¥ INZE73.86% + L IR A IL i
HEES AR SWEARERS -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeleiE

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-T-—F+_-_A=Z+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R 5II{E)

2021 2020
—B-—F S S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=2 AR TR ARETIT
Cash flows from operating activities K& FHREFKE
Profit/(Loss) before tax BREATFDE (E18)
from continuing operations SIER B ETE 389,659 (80,888)
from discontinued operation BRI &S B 12 (5.896) (85,206)
Adjustments for: FEE2SE
Depreciation and amortisation e REE 7(0) 281,202 308,941
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WMELRZB
plant and equipment H 5 18 60,393 22,660
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHE ARz K= (712) —
Share of losses of associates FE1G B & A Al ES R — 157
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down BFE (MU B E) /MR
of inventories 21(b) (17,463) 5,185
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment EWEZGERRENEE
losses on trade receivables and CRLER F),/RmiE
contract assets 22 (18,071) 38,598
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BEREZERE
equipment 7(c) — 68,587
Finance costs &1 & B A 8,12 134,685 133,156
Provision for warranties AR 30 34,818 24,075
Interest income from bank deposits B RITF R A S WA (12,350) (13,886)
Gain on fair value remeasurement of EFEREAREEZ
an investment U 75 7(c) — (1,278)
Net foreign exchange loss PEH B ERE (5,684) (692)
Changes in working capital: LEESEE:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE g ,m (54,747) 68,839
(Increase)/decrease in trade JEWE SR FARE
receivables, prepayments, other HihEWER R R EMEE
receivables and other assets (#hn),E (218,762) 206,042
Increase in contract assets EHEEL N (28,742) (131,239)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other JES B 5 R 3R H b fE
payables RN O D) 539,208 (45,414)
Increase in deferred income I FE U A S8 0 20,414 71,856
Cash generated from operations RETHMBES 1,097,952 589,493
The PRC income tax paid TP REEMEH (65,672) (24,455)
Withholding tax paid XATTEME (1,926) (1,499)
Net cash generated from operating RETEMEBRESFE
activities 1,030,354 563,539
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HRAERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z-—F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R 5I{E)

2021 2020

—B-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = AR¥ TR ARET T

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Payment for the acquisition of right-of-

REFHHEETRE

MEEVE BE RSB
") 5K I8 (610,065) (218,876)
MEEFEAEEEYNHNFE

use assets (1,134) (1,584)
Investment in equity investment RERAAREBEFAEEEEY

designated at fair value through aT A H A7 & U a5 59 #E a

other comprehensive income & — (31,292)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of a KE—RME AR FRE

subsidiary mA — 2,990
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  HMERZBE

plant and equipment P15 5RIA 88,087 12,811
Interest received 2 W F B 12,310 13,886
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKEAQR (48,799) —
Investment in an associate m—REEQRAIKE (200) —
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFMARSFEHE (559,801) (222,065)
Cash flows from financing activities ®BEFHREFRE
TDR shares repurchased BE e EFRERE — (12,120)
Issue of shares BEITRG 41,424 —
Placement of pledged bank deposits ERFEEMBRITER (1,842,355) (1,592,088)
Release of pledged bank deposits ﬁ?ﬁ?E?ﬁ?ﬁﬁfE/—T—%’\ 1,777,777 1,309,179
New bank loans and other loans RTERMREMERFTERE 2,531,312 2,613,226
Repayment of bank loans and other 1;5&?& TERREMERK

loans (2,885,942) (2,447,423)
Principal portion of lease payments HENZNEE IS (26,250) (4,132)
Capital contribution from FEFE ) 1 am &

non-controlling interests 99,885 2,702
Payments for acquisition of [ 3 122 o1 1% 4 2 2 A5 B —

non-controlling interests in a iSRSNI S

subsidiary (41,733) =
Interest paid 2 8 (134,685) (131,818)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FE 28 i) 1 IR B 9 fic AR A

shareholders (22,693) (29,932)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZTEFARESEE (503,860) (292,406)




82 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED & &ERIZER AR T

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R# 5II{&)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt =% AR¥T R ARETTT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBESSEYWORD)
cash equivalents bl ID=: (33,307) 49,068
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHNRERASEEY
beginning of the year 456,265 396,854
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSBHNEETHE
changes, net 8,903 10,343
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRESRRESEEY
end of the year 25 431,861 456,265
Analysis of balances of cash and REeRESESEYNERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances BERBITES 25 431,861 456,265
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBERRME

31 December 2021 R=ZT=—F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAEEBEIN UARKIIE)

Corporate and group information

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman. The
registered office of the Company is located at Cricket Square

ARIREEEHR

Rk aERIERBR AR ([ARAF] - &R HH
BRAASMBIAEER] HBERM KK : 757)
B-HRASESEMRIZBERAGF - H
= i 9% = B2 {32 74 Cricket Square Hutchins Drive

Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands. Cayman lIslands °

The Group is a leading supplier of upstream and downstream SEALETHEEES NGRS ELHE

vertically integrated solar energy services. FER °

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the FAN - ANEEFERSBUTER

following businesses:

(@) the manufacture of, trading of and provision of processing (@) KGgeEREE TEHEE BEERE
services for monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers; HAGREEREE TR MIRE

(b) the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules; and (b) HEREERRAH K

(c) the construction and operation of photovoltaic power plants. (0 BEERKLENRIKEUL -

Information about subsidiaries BB QR & E R
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as RAREEZEMBARIMFBAOT :
follows:
Proportion of ownership interest
FERRELA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
SRAL/ B
AIBERAS 1R/8R/ AEEG 80T WE
NAER REEHE B /BRIER ERER K& OLERE IERE EEF
% % %
Jinzhou Rixin Silicon The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Materials Co., Ltd. 9 May 2007, capital of monocrystalline ingots/ ~ BREMLF
BHABENHER Mainland China RMB190,000,000 wafers
A hE AMRESER PEREEBREE/BA
ZETtE AR 190,000,000
LANR
HEAE
Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 = 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Energy Co,, Ltd. 15 December 2004, capital of photovoltaic modules EREALH
("finzhou Mainland China RMIBI, 151,565,479 REREERRAN
Yanqquang') H ift RESER
BB RERAR ek ARH1,151,565,4797C
([BMEx]) tZATEH

hERE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December 2021

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1. Corporate and group information (continued)

RZZE—_—F+-_A=+—H

(BRBBEHEI

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AAREIE)

Proportion of ownership interest

AR LA

1. PAIREBE R @)
BB RARRER (&)

Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
e/ BB
RIBERAH /R AEEH  HEALAT if. |
S REEHE B4/ BRTER ERER KE DAKE IEXH EEFA
% % %
Jinzhou Youhua The PRC Registered and paid-in capital of 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of  Limited liability company
Silicon Materials 12 September 2008, RMB320,000,000 monocrystaline ingots/ ~ AREFLHF
Co., Ltd. Mainland China SR EHEAR wafers
(*Youhua i A %320,000,00070 REREEERHE/HR
Silicon”) ZEEN\E
BMGEEENH AATZH
BRAR HEAKE
(M%)
Shanghai Jingji The PRC Registered and paid-in capital of 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of  Limited liability company
Electronic 16 March 1998, 596,950,000 polsiicon and ERELLR
Materials Mainland China HMREGER monacrystalline ingots/
Co., Ltd. G 6,950,000% ¢ wafers
LERRETIH —MANE HEREESRHR
BRAT ZAtrA BRER/ER
HEAK
Solar Technology Cayman Islands Authorised capital of 100 100 = Investment holding Limited liability company
Investment 15 December 2006 HK$400,000,000 of HK$0.10 RERRK EREMRAT
(Cayman) Corp REHe each and issued share capital
“RERE of HK$167,895,494
+ZA+1H T & 75400,000,0005 T
SREBIETR
BEARA1678954948 T
Wealthy Rise Hong Kong HK$778,001 100 - 100 Trading of polysilicon and Limited liability company
International 21 June 2007 7780014 monocrystaline ingots/ BB EMLAR
Limited % wafers/photovoltaic modules
EARABERAA ZEEtLE EEZRHRERER/
AR-t-H Bh/RREH
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1. 2EIREBER
BHENBRARBER (&)

Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

gt 4 341
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AEL/ B-B
RIBYRAH R/ EfR/ AREN  BALAT il |
NAEH REERE B /BRTER ERER K8 DAKE IEXH EERR
% % %
Jinzhou Yangguang Jinmao  The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Photovoltaic Technology 17 July 2009, of RMB140,000,000 monocrystalline wafers — BREFAF
Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou Mainland China HRRESER HERERERER
Jinmao") hE AR 140,000,000
BN ERBERME ZEENETATLR
ERAR HEAE
(MRl
Solargiga Energy (Hong Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - Trading of polysilicon and Limited liability company
Kong) Company Limited 13 June 2008 17T monocrystalline ingots/ BB EEAT
BreR(FR)ERAR F% wafers/photovoltaic modules
Z3EN\§5ATZR BERE/Th/ 28R
ERAREN
Silicon Solar Materials Hong Kong HK$1 100 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
Company Limited 26 Noverber 2008 1T RE#ER AREFAF
ABERIEERAA )
“E3ENE
t-AZt7H
g7
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1. Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

1. PAIREBE R @)
BENBRARBEN (&

FrERER LA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AEL/ B-B
RILHREH /i AREN HALT il |
S R BN/ BR7ER ERER K8 DAKE IEXH EEFA
% % %
Sino Light Investments British Virgin Islands Authorized capital of 100 100 = Investment holding Limited liability company
Limited 2 December 2009 US§500,000 of US$0.001 RERR EREMRAT
EBRUEE each and issued share
Z2ENET-AZH capital of US$53,920
B R500,000%7T
GREBL0IZTR
BEARAS3 05T
You Xin Investment Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
Limited 29 July 2009 100,000%7 RERR EREMRAT
HERBRRAA Bk
ZEThE
tAZthA
Jinzhou Huachang The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Photovoltaic Technology 23 October 2006, of RMB130,000,000 solar cells ERERLR
Company Limited Mainland China HRRESER HEREEARHE
("Huachang”) 4 AR 130,000,000
BMZEERBE I 2
ERAR(ZE]) tRA=+=H
HEARE




ANNUAL REPORT 2021 % 87

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 December 2021 R-ZE=——F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 2B B E 5 - LA RS (E)

Corporate and group information (continved) 1. AT R KB E # (@)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB R ER (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

gt 4 341
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AEL/ H-H
RIBYRAH R/ EfR/ AREN  BALAT WE
NAEH REERE B /BRTER BRER K8 DAKE IEXH EERA
% % %

Jinzhou Xinyangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Photovoltaic 24 September 2007, capital of power plant AREEAF
Application Co, Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 BRrREY

BMAB X RER i AMRESAAR
BERAR “3%tE A5 100,000,000

ARZTRA
hE AR

Jinzhou Xinlin Solargiga The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar  Limited liability company
Industrial and 26 June 2014, capital of modules AREFAF
Trading Co,, Ltd. Mainland China RMB20,000,000 EEAGRED AR AR

BMENEXIZER  9E AMRELER
Al e k3 AR 20,000,007

AAZTAR
hEXE

Jinzhou Jiuxin Solargiga The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar  Limited liability company
Technology and 26 June 2014, capital of modules EREALA
Trading Co,, Ltd. Mainland China RMB20,000,000 EEXAGHENRABEAR

BHREBEHEER i AMRESER
Al k3 AR 20,000,0007

AAZTAR
hEXE

Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture of monocrystalline - Limited liability company
Motech Renewable 26 October 2015, capital of ingots BREMAH
Energy Co,, Ltd Mainland China RMB64,040,000 HEgakR

BME R xaHER HE AMRESER
ERAT “5-1F AR H64,040,00070

tA-trE
hERE
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1. PAIREBE R @)
EANBARNER (&)

1. Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrERER LA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AL/ H-M
HISHRAH /iR AEEN BALE WE
S Lok B /BRTER BRER K8 DAKE IEXH EEFA
% % %
Jinzhou Chuanghui The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture of photovoltaic ~ Limited liability company
New Energy Co. Ltd. 17 December 2010, capital of modules BREMLH
I ER A Mainland China RMB200,000,000 RERINAR
BRAA Gl AMRELER
Z5-%F AR %200,000,0007
tZATtH
HEAE
Jinzhou Yiyang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 = 100 Manufacture and Limited liability company
New Energy Co., Ltd. 19 January 2017, capital of trading of monocrystalline  EREFAF
FMERREEER Mainland China RMB25,000,000 ingots/wafers
A HE AMRELER REREEERER/ER
il 3 AR 25,000,007
—AthA
NS
Qujing Yangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 54 - 54 Manufacture and Joint stock limited company
New Energy Co., Ltd 29 August 2017, capital of trading of monocrystallne AR EEA
("Qujing Mainland China RIMB136,870,000 ingots/wafers
Yangguang”) ik HMREGER HEREEERERMR
I R “B-tf AR 136,870,000
BRAF NAZtAE
(ThizBEx]) hEXE
Liaoning Boxinke The PRC Registered capital of 55 - 55 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Semiconductor 26 September 2018, RMB36,000,000 and electronic semiconductor ~ EREE A
Material Co., Ltd. Mainland China paid-in capital of materials
("Liaoning PE RMBS,710,000 HEREEET+EENH
Semiconductor”) Z5-)\F AR
REBOHLERMH AAZtAR AR 36,000,007 R
BRARA hERE EHER
((E2¥ER) A 8,7100007
Jiangsu Yueyang The PRC Registered and paid-in 74 - 64*  Manufacture of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Photovoltaic 16 July 2019, capital of modules BREALH
Technology Co., Mainland China RMB118,000,000 HERRan
Ltd.* ("Jiangsu Gl AMRESER
Yueyang") “Z-hE AR 118,000,000
TEHBRRBRER tA+7A
nar (I&NE) HEXE
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(REBEFHEN UARKIIE)

1. 2AIREBE R @)
EANBARBNER (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

ikt 4 340
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
AMEL/ H-M
RIBHEAH HE/ER/ AEEN AALE WE
S R B /BRTER BRER K8 DAKE IEXH EERR
% % %
Jiangsu Xinyangguang The PRC Registered capital of 80 - 80  Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Zhiding Technology 24 March 2021, RMB30,000,000 and power plants BREEAH
Co,, Ltd. Mainland China paic-in capital of BRAREL
THREEE R il RMB20,000,000
ERAR —E--F AR
ZA-tEA AR 30,000,000 2
HEAE EHER
AR 20,000,000
Qujing Xinyangguang The PRC Registered capital of 75 - 75 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Zhiding Technology 15 April 2021, RMB10,000,000 and power plants BREALH
Co,, Ltd. Mainland China paic-in capital of BHREKEL
G LR RR AR il RMB1,000,000
ERAR —E--F AR
mA+AEA AR 10,000,000 2
HEXE EHER
AR 1,000,0007
Liaoning Yangguang The PRC Registered capital of 100 - 100 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Energy Power 27 October, 2021, RMB10,000,000 and power plants AREALH
Co., Ltd. Mainland China paid-in capital of BRAREY
BERtRRENER i RMB1,000,000
A “%--% AR
+A=ttA AR %10,000,0007 &
HEXE EHER
AR 1,000,0007T
XSD Union Solar Tech Hong Kong Registered capital of 51 - 51 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Limited 23 April 2021 USD100,000 and power plants BREALH
B paid-in capital of Ni BERNREL
I b3 AR %£100,0007 &
MmA-t+Z=A EMERTT
* In July and August 2021, two new non-controlling shareholders O ORZZEZ—FLARNA MEFHFFRR

injected capital into Jiangsu Yueyang which was deemed to long-
term borrowings in the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

RAIHRBIE  ZEAEEE S HUBR
RPHERBRBAER-
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Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The English translation of the company names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are based on the
official language of their respective place of incorporation.

2.1Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for equity
investments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB768,725,000. The liquidity of
the Group is primarily depending on its ability to maintain
adequate cash flows from operations, to renew its short-term
bank loans and to obtain adequate external financing to support
its working capital and meet its obligations and commitments
when they become due.

AEIREBER @
EANEBARANER (&)

ERRBEZRARIBZFEFAXELBEBKX
REBRBOFEENARBAMBEAR &
ERR - MEFINHECHBARANER &8
HEREBNILE-

AA AW RYBZEHRZEZ - ZERAH
EXAEZMENEZSEEMENENEE °

mREE
ZEWBHHRRDOBREETEEAMAS([ELR
M AGEMZERMBRERER(EF
AUMBREEN] BRMEETAMBREE
Al-ZAgMEN(ERGFELND k2
B) BAAREFRAUREL AR GHHE
ERTFTURHE -BARREEFENESET
BSh RETRBELRAERE - ZFH
BHRENARBETAREDIE BB
RN AEBECHAEERROITOHM -

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H AEEANR
& Ee E R EE AR 768,725,000
T AEBRBESCTEREERKLEPH
HEHEERSRE EEHOBEBTER
FLHREBHEAHISHEANITHELEES MR
BISNETEEERAENES -
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2.1Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group has carried out a review of its cash flow forecast for
the twelve months ending 31 December 2022. Based on such
forecast, the directors believe that adequate sources of liquidity
exist to fund the Group’s working capital and capital
expenditure requirements, and to meet its short-term debt
obligations and other liabilities and commitments as they
become due in the twelve months ending 31 December 2022.
In preparing the cash flow forecast, management has considered
historical cash requirements of the Group, as well as other key
factors, including anticipated sales in the twelve months ending
31 December 2022 and unutilised banking facilities as at 31
December 2021 from the Group’s major banks with an amount
of RMB2,614,410,000 which will expire on 31 December 2023.

Based on the above factors, the directors are confident that the
Group will have sufficient funding to enable the Group to
operate as a going concern and meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for at least 12 months from the
reporting date. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

21 B EE p)

AREFBEHWHEBEE T _—F+_-_A=+—
BlE+=ZEAMRESREEAEITERN - I&
BZER EEREBEREARBDESERA
BNAEENEELECREAHAITRER
BE—_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIE+=FA
IR THERHERE MR E M E &K
E-RRERESREEIMNES  ERECERE
AEBBARESFTREREMEEA R BF
BE_Z-_—F+-_A=t+—HIE+=FA
MIEFEE RZTE=_—F+=-A=+—H
WAEBMEBRITESHRBARTHRE A
R #2,614,410,000 (IR =T =Z=F+= A
=+—H%H)-

AREXAE BFHEL AREKERR
HWED NEREERELE TneAKER
BERHERS T EANMBEE - Bt
BBRRDEBRFERLEEERH -

mElRE 2EE
REMBRRBPIEARARENBEB AR (4
[(REENHEE-_E-_—Ft+-_A=+—8H1I1t
FEZHERR -KMBARARAREER
MERHNER(RELABEER) - 245
BEE2EEEHREBRNFEERAERR
REHEMAREBBEREHRHOEN (0
AEERETFTRAENATEREHREH
SEEMMEERER) ¥ EZEERE - BIEEE
il 4 o

WARFERLAHAERABEIRNREHRKS
BERRBLENOER  AIAKERFG
HECHRBHREHRNENREEE 1)
HEEERBR B

() BEREHSHNEMBRERFAANEGD
2

(b) EtbANRBEMELNERN &

(O AEBNKERINBEEREE-
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2QI1GEBEE )

2.1Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest; and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received; (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained; and (iii) any resulting
surplus of deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30

June 2021 (early adopted)

RARE ZEE M)

MEBAR U BHBREBBALARR —HZE
AABREZFE - REHARRER - B AR 2%
ERASEERSEGEE AR AGEKRE
WHBFAGREREEZEFRELLEAR
1k

BEbkHEME2EBA S EMAXNFEBER
AKERRABZHEE ARIEFERER - BIE
HREEBFERERBEEMESR - TESR
MASBERKERARAFAZR I REBARA
AREENEE #zm WA FAXERAESR
EeNmArtEREBURE-

=B RERET T XH B ARG BREM
M=—EEGHARZ —BEELZRERE( K
SEEEMTGEEOEFWKRES - A&
REBGIEZ B AR HEEEERZ B AR
BRHAK -

MAEBEREHBRAB ZEHIE  BlgRILE

RizMBLARZEE(BRHE) RAE:
(Ef FEIE Bt 2 2 AR T 1E ¢+ M (iii)at AR
ZRFEREE UTHRRANELBKEZA
FE (NVERRERE Z D FIE RipTE
AVNERERZERNRBIEA - TR
REMEEBABERZ AEEEEAXEHD
DEFHREERIRENB@ER) &
ERASEERELERNBEEXREMTE
RZEEMER -

EHRERDRKE

AEERAFENRBERRPERKATI
RETBEEHBHRSER -

BB RS %A ViE$-v: =2
FE% - BHAGE — E B
R F395% - BB
B 75 3 5 2 A
BN BB
W EAFEAH R
&7 B & A A
F165R 2 EFT A

BT REEL —F——
F165R 2B A NHA=+AH#

27 T A
FHEM 2
ERGRATEK

)
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2.2Changes in accounting policies and 2B BEBBHREE @

disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

RETEBVBRELENNEERZENT

(@) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and

HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any
gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet
the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any interest rate
hedging relationships.

(a)

BEMBRELAESR BB LR
F395 BEMBHRELAEIR BB
MM EENBAR R ERMBREER
F6RZERT AT ERRAEEIT A
AEERHEAARNEREENS —BER
i ) 2R (T4 o\ B ) =R ) BR (X B %7 8 B 75
BENHE - B _BRZETRE A
ERATEEN L AFYETETERE
ERBBEZANBREREZELEE BT
TEFRER ENERMNKMESH
EEREE AIRREHMEI /A XREE
REZERRRAETANASRED
MEERKE LSRANEREHANEL
AIEE LS R F BRI A AP A IEE
HEREAXHERR R EEREMRE
SKEVEE) - MK IEEIPEER - B
BRAEELENEARGENBIEIBRBE
BB EERFESRMEEREETER
B A E RERE BRI ZBERT
NREBRHEERR R RERRM X
] 18 E 7% BB A (0 B 48 B R = R EE R A
BIZRE - ZBRRAFFEBNIETEH
BREESMEAEBINZRE HEE
BB 7R A IE T8 HI A A f ) 3 LB A IR R
H24ME R AR AT EBBR o LI - ZFE
FERERARBEENER  UEHH
BROEAEERNERNNREERE Y
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EATHAEENMEARR KM HRIRL
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2.2Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)
(b) Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the

availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
by 12 months (the “2021 Amendment”). Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient are
met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-
related rent concessions and plans to apply the practical
expedient when it becomes applicable within the allowed
period of application.

2B BXREBHREE @)

(b)

—E - FNARGNESNEREE
BIZE165% Z 18R] AN #8% 7A F A S8 12 ph 3 AL
BRFSREENEERRELENHSE
R AEAREERSTREENERAIT
#E 5L L RI12M8 A ([20214F &
=D -EHit  EmBHMERAITERER
EHEG T ATREAAEHRE=
E-—FXNA=tHFIZANZHNES
BEEETE - ZBTAHE T = —
FMA—BRZERBNFEHBEH
R VB ERAZETHNERNREYE
HRAYE NS THEIE BN
BREMFHE WA FIRAESR -

AEBER-_ZE-_—F— A —BEAMK
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2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2
Amendments to

HKAS 8
Amendments to

HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts® °

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?® *

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 417

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

& As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

> As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

A
EHBAMAHASERANZETETBR
EEAME - T ERRTXHA -

BEREUBHREEREIRNEITEEN_F
—NFERABRMNYBREHIIERZ 2
BRREAMERERREEIER 2R -
MBAAEBERERTE - ZEETNHEE
MBREENEIREHERSEHERN
BErEEXEBIBRZ2ERRAMA R
BISMER - ZBIIMERBE - HRBEE S
EREITFRRBR(BREUBHREREEER
g)— REENREEANABERAARERE
M WZEAEBEBEEMIERELS
HRELS AERTEMBREERFEINRN
BERESHN2ZFEGHEAEITRAER
(BREFBHRERBEZES)— 2B E21%M
FEBLSAESR - WO ZFBITBBAAREERN
WERHITRERGN AKERFTE =
T A BEABEERANZZTERT -
HRZEETNELERANEEARRER
FERBHKcENEBEH  HEAKER

BERMETEERSEINYE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 % 97

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 RZZ=_—F+=—A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB FERAE SN - LA RBEDIE)

2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right
to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

e  HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lIllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting

policies
Investments in associates and OII’V[ ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint ventures, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint ventures upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

24T EE3

LR E @)

i?
REERAINAEEEZIHRE (&)
HWERBERRZREERNEERAZE
B(RZIFR)  ARB ST TUAEHAE
MR ZREEBREREFTEAR - EEM
FIEBRT  RAEHBERRNEATE
NHBEELERRMHAREHNOBRT ALK
BiIZEATVEAERBEAEEFARGBERE -
BENBAACELERREATENLHAR
R BREEE R R IRE R EMFRA
A FE 2 H M ERZB DN IE SR AR

WRBERRAREELCEZRENER/TAE
tEIHE  RIRRIBER B BE RS ERFSHAF
IEHEZ R EERELULEEHFENE -

e A= N

XA NERARBEAR FAEEKRED
RWEBRAFEE RKERHRATER
AEBFEREECWRBARQFE &K
BARKRBIMEEAMAEZABRAS
B AR MR B T 2 YR IR T B AT 2 B
MZBM - REXBHEMS  AKEEER
BRRAFEIRKE T AT #AE EFENE
BB StEREREE T I ERER - AR
BREBETHHETITRHEAEBRRIZLII DM
EEFEMNRAMERES  FIERESN
e EMAKED HIRAFEFE - WER
B AR EER X -

EMBAN-RINEPMEEBE —HKA
M—EEEURE HEAYAEELNHES
EHEREREK AEEETEDWE -1
K e

AEBRBEBEREZERGR  WER
IR AR R AR B R PR R E 5 1A e d8
ERBFEMERMBEEEREBE AP
BEOBREB I TANPHRAAITETR -

6 3 75 & OF 0 B B #E 1T - Bl 5% A1 A 35 B S
REWEBBATEENE  MBMAE
ERMEFAEAERBEENERER -

0
_ W



102 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 588 RERAR A F

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 R_ZT-_—F+_-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful lives. The principal useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery 6 to 25 years

—  Other fixed assets 3 to 5 years
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Patents 9 years
= Customer relationship 10 years
- Customer contracts 1 year

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease component, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease component
and to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease component (e.g., property management services for
leases of properties) as a single lease component.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold lands 20 to 50 years

Plant and machinery 2 to 6 years

Buildings 2 to 10 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
"Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss.

24T EEHHEME @)

BE N HEAE 5 E E (8
BESHE(E)
UR7EBIEFEARZGF AR Y EEE

NARnBEFEEEZHFAEHERNOH
BEEEMBRAARTEAARBEINE &
REEEHFEEEERTER -

HENEBERMETAREANGE  NEBEXL
ELTRENERZRAFEEBEMEEK
BAOBR - DPBERULAABEBESEAENTB
EENRERERMNBERRANERER
mAPHEASE M Bk S HEENEHE
MBERAERARNEE LRSS ATIARSE
HWETE e

IMREE S BN R BRI’ B Z A
ARG ARTEEMBRARIFERMEEN
TETREWBETBEY  YEAEBITET
BEAR EBRATETLAARGHRKRNE
BTAKTAETETANER MEAAK
WHRAFEFABSE - BARXTETAR
AREBEAE AABEEHTABER-

REEARGERELE LS SEMTMH
EUBTERENERATENRERER
BUBEEENDBRRRIABEFABERR
Al o

BRAEBEMBEEIRMESART M
ETETEBFE BHEEXEARBRA
AETELBEEZMOBERNURIABENE
BEZHHABENUHKEE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 % 115

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 RZZ=_—F+=—A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB FERAE SN - LA RBEDIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred assets is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At
each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt
investments are considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group
reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments. In
addition, the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, derivative
financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a discounted cash flow
model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare costs are accrued
in the period in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in Mainland China,
Taiwan and Hong Kong are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving
the payment of termination benefits.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued))
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued))

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on acceptance of the industrial
products by customers.

(i) Processing services

Revenue from the processing services rendered is recognised
over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the
Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. The input
method recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs for
satisfaction of the processing services.

(iif) Construction services

Revenue from the construction services is recognised over
time, using an input method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
input method recognises revenue based on the proportion
of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the construction services.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.
However, the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in RMB, as the directors of the Company consider
that the major subsidiaries of the Company are all presented in
RMB and meanwhile this presentation is more useful for its
current and potential investors. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive income
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each
asset, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. Management reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. Both the period and
methods of depreciation are reviewed annually. The
depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
Further details are given in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Management assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Further details are given
in note 15 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on ageing for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacture
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(0)

(d)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade, bills receivables and
contract assets are disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

s

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 R-ZE=——F+=-A=+—H
(REBEFHEN UARKIIE)
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3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e) Write-down of inventories

(f)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs to completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacture and selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in technique and competitors’ actions in response
to adverse industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period. As at 31
December 2021, the Group provided for write-down of
inventories amounting to RMB3,540,000 (2020:
RMB21,003,000). Further details are disclosed in note 22 to
the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses and deductible temporary differences
at 31 December 2021 was RMB9,065,000 (2020:
RMB9,662,000). Further details are disclosed in note 21 to
the financial statements.
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3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(9)

(h)

Provision for warranties

The Group provides warranties for its photovoltaic modules
for up to 25 years after sales have taken place. Due to
limited warranty claims history, management estimates
warranty based on the Group’s historical cost data, industry
data and an assessment of the history of warranty claims of
the Group’s competitors. The warranty obligation of the
Group will be affected not only by the product failure
rates, but also by costs incurred to repair or replace failed
products. If the actual product failure rates and the costs of
replacement or repairing of failed products differ from the
estimates, the Group will need to prospectively revise the
provision for warranties which would affect profit or loss in
future years. Further details of the Group's provision for
warranties are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation
of the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected
period of benefits. During the year 2021, no development
cost was capitalised (2020: Nil).

b
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4. Operating segment information 4. BREHHER
In a manner consistent with the way in which information is HERSPERKRENEMS  AEER_Z
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive T F(REKBRBRBR ZBREAEE RS R
management for the purposes of resource allocation and TREBABABE2HER —HMAHR - i
performance assessment, the Group has identified four 5209 & AT 2R & 5 =6 ¢

reportable segments in 2021 and their comparative figures:

(i) the manufacture of, trading of, and provision of processing () % & M&jil%ﬁ BREE R AR
services for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar E -BEREHEMNIRS ((HEAL;
ingots/wafers (“Segment A");

(i) the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules (i) WERBEBEXKRAHE(DIB])
("Segment B");

(iii) the construction and operation of photovoltaic power plants (i) EEREEHKREU([DIBCL);
("Segment C");

(iv) the manufacture and trading of semiconductor and the (ivy EREELBRUNEEAGEES
trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells (“Segment D”). EEMIDED ) °

The reportable segments had been adjusted under resources AHREDPHBERFAREEIR D B BT

allocation reassessment during the vyear. The reportable EHAR - AEBR LELFERENTHE S

segments the Group identified in prior year were as follows: FaE -

(i) the manufacture of, trading of, and provision of processing () Z@EBEUARABREESRERE BhH *
services for polysilicon, monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/ BRLEAEmORE BEE REMHM
wafers, semiconductor and related products (“Segment A"); TR (D EAD;

(i) the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules (iy HERBEXKRAHTHIB]);
("Segment B");

(iii) the manufacture and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar (i) KEREEAGREERESHR(H
cells (“Segment C"); cl);

(iv) the construction and operation of photovoltaic power plants (iv) BEREEHKREW([DED]) -

("Segment D").
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- - - . eie KK -\ 3 M2 .
4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. BErHBER @
No operating segments have been aggregated to form these REBWESHLEDBABEK U ZATRE
reportable segments. Since the semiconductor business accounts DE - AR FEREB(EMERIE EERK
for less than 1% of the revenue scale, asset scale and profit MABEERAOLATEN%  REENTEH
contribution, whether it is restated will not affect the statement ERRFEAEYH D BEENFEE Bt LR
users'interpretation of the segment information, so the HBEARES - Dl T ZE A WS D EH W
comparative figures were not restated. Revenue, costs and RARRAEZTDNZEZE D IEERHEE RZ
expenses are allocated to those reportable segments with EDHEENKNARALZEE -
reference to sales generated by those segments and the costs
and expenses incurred by those segments.
Segment results, assets and liabilities DEXE EENARE
For the purpose of assessing segment performance and ABTEOBRREERDBEIEER ' A%
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior BRBRITREBAEERZAREDH
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities BlE2#E BEERBBE(RBASEN B ®
attributable to each reportable segment on the basis as they are REJHEAE) -
presented in the Group's financial statements.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference SHEANHEERERN2ZEMNE=HHEERN
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the AMEERERBRITMEETIRS -
then prevailing market prices.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as HE_Z - FR-ZF-_FFF+-_A=+—
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for BEFEMASEZRRITHREREAERH
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out below: MNEBASBERE D BHEREIN AT
Segment A Segment B Segment C Segment D Total
ABA 3B pik:{o A3D @it
0 0 0 0 0
k. Jak ;3 k. Jak ;3 k. Jak ;3 k. Juk 53 k. Juk ;3
avgoo (TR0 Aweoo QEETOVN  veor [T Aweoo [EETRON o [T
ARETT EONESIA ARETr EENEESHE AR4TT EENEENE ARETT ENESIAE AR%Tr NI
Revenue from extemnal customers RANREFHUE 2UBTB 005 406 46 11675 038 980 % 605195
Intersegment revenue SHERE 395,999 207278 4,612,826 2,062,838 252,035 12,330 414,426 34983 5,675,286 2317429
Reportable segment revenue TRERENE 20T 191633 S0 63 ME0 273 ARAT 485 LI 8IS
Reportable segment profit/{loss) BECDES VAL 255,801 64,416 40,012 (165,584) 5329 (9310) 7,106 683) 308,248 (111,161)
Reportable segment assets (Huachang) NREATEE(EE) - = - = - = 134,917 215593 134,917 215,593
Reportable segment liabilites (Huachang) TREAPRE(ER) - = - = - = 107,904 230847 107,904 230847
Reportable segment assets (Besides Huachang) AREATEE(EENN 2,214,848 2,214,286 3,499,869 2,805,411 267,211 188,642 174,267 17, 6,156,255 5,386,110
Reportable segment liabiities (Besides Huachang) TREAHPEE(EEN) 1,988,123 2,195,720 3,317,803 2,729,005 182,862 106,135 2,201 = 5,510,989 5,030,860
.:..::, 3 j v
Y [ “‘[ e




138 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 588 RERA R A T

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 RZ-ZZ=Z—®+=-F=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEHEI

AAREIE)

4. Operating segment information (continued)

4. h”ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) NERE BEERBEBE@E
Other segment information: At ARBEE: Segment A Segment B Segment C Segment D
SEA 288 A8 280
2020 2020 2020 2020
ZRC%f i a3 i a3 i a3
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AEETT AEETT AEETT AEETT
Interest income from bank deposits L CLIEL N 4,037 4,808 8,256 8992 34 4 B 4 12,350 13,886
Finance costs RERE (65,053) (63,793) (52,558) 48,17) (7,041) (6,709) (204) (131) (124,856) (118750)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREY (180,522) (196,643) (95,607) (99,421) (240) @ (4833) (12,850) (281,202) (308941)
Investment in associates HBENANRE - = - - 200 - - - 200 -
Share of losses of associates ELBREARER - = - (157) - = - = - (157)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) on 521 BRADEERERR(RE)

financial and contract assets 4,999 7920 14,053 (40912) ) (3,942) (1.463) (1,664) 18,07 (38,598)
Reversal of write-down/{write-down) of inventories FEHRER/ (W) (181) 1,564 17,644 (9,242) - 19 - 2474 17,463 (5,185)
Capital expenditure* BRRR 162,568 267970 344,912 92,149 6,756 - 1,098 35 815,334 360,154

*  (Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment.

Geographic information

Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and interests in associates are located or

operated in Mainland China.

The following table sets out information about the Group’s
revenue from external customers by geographical location. The
geographical location of a customer is based on the locations of

the customers.

* AARAXBREABVE BERXREREHE

BE-

#o & & &
EEBEYME  BERBRE -

EREEE RN
ERANBRUNTEKINPELE -

TRERE®IIEAKERB AR K

HeRFPMIBME

AR P FR7E i B BRI -

2021 2020

—E2=—-F —TF

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥ T T AR T

Mainland China R K P 6,054,079 4,634,081
Export sales HaEE

— Japan — AR 933,043 1,144,637

— South Asia — HaitE 84,847 232,092

— Europe — BOM 32,993 38,444

— Others — Hfb 30 2,702

Sub-total /NF 1,050,913 1,417,875

Total Bx 7,104,992 6,051,956

b, ¥
“ %
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from a single
customer, including a group of entities which are known to be
under common control with that customer, which amounted to
10% or more to the Group’s total revenue, is set out below:

mEMBRRME
31 December 2021 W-_Z—-—F+-A=+—8H
(BRBEFHEEN  UARKESE)

ReEsBER B
FTEREFHNER

BEZZ - —F+-RA=+—HLEFE X
EEEF MG BEBNEZEFE’
Bl f) — 40 E 88 (5 £ A UK 2510% K
M EERIIMT -

2021 2020
—B-—fF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T
Customer A ZEA
— From Segment A — R B8 HHEA 30,730 289,057
— From Segment B — KRB DB 1,094,767 1,862,619
1,125,497 2,151,676
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Customer B ®FB
— From Segment B — B 5 EB 925,110 1,082,668
925,110 1,082,668
5. Revenue 5. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wamo T :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T ARBTFT
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFFEIE A KA
Sales of monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/ HBEAGREERERE fhH
wafers 2,337,522 1,706,374
Sales of monocrystalline silicon solar cells HEAGRERESED 2,059 59,822
Sales of photovoltaic modules S SR AR 1 4,467,504 3,828,264
Sales of electricity generated EEHE 541 577
Construction services B 32 iR 75 116,254 9,806
Rendering of services 12 AR 7% 139,100 447,113
Sales of semiconductor HEYEBE 42,012 —
7,104,992 6,051,956
By A Yl
vy LT
wi/s A, e 22
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. Wi
Revenue from contracts with customers HEFEITERNKA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) PBEBRAEGFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-—-S+-A=+—-HLFE
Semiconductor
Silicon solar Photovoltaic Photovoltaic and related
ingots/wafers modules power plants products Total
N1 2:3- 4 FERR
BER *RAH XREW HEER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
Types of goods and service BmARENER
Sales of industrial products BETEER 2,337,522 4,467,504 541 44,071 6,849,638
Processing service RIRH 126,206 12,894 — - 139,100
Construction services R R — - 116,254 — 116,254
Total Bt 2,463,728 4,480,398 116,795 44,071 7,104,992
Geographic market BEMTS
Mainland China R A 2,456,190 3,437,059 116,795 44,035 6,054,079
Japan BA — 933,009 - 34 933,043
South Asia e - 84,847 - - 84,847
Europe M 7,524 25,467 - 2 32,993
Others Hitr 14 16 — — 30
Total Bt 2,463,728 4,480,398 116,795 44,071 7,104,992
Timing of revenue recognition LN 151
Goods transferred at a point of time ENEEEARARER 2,337,522 4,467,504 541 44,071 6,849,638
Service transferred over time R RER R E 126,206 12,894 116,254 — 255,354
Total @ 2,463,728 4,480,398 116,795 44,071 7,104,992
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEE
Silicon solar
ingots/wafers and Photovoltaic Photovoltaic
semiconductor modules  Silicon solar cells power plants Total
K%%ﬁ%/
R REER KREH  AGEEER KRB @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Types of goods and service BmMREHER
Sales of industrial products BETERR 1,706,374 3,828,264 59,822 577 5,595,037
Processing service RIRH 2,721 444,392 = — 447,113
Construction services HERB = = = 9,806 9,806
Total B 1,709,095 4,272,656 59,822 10,383 6,051,956
Geographic market BEMTS
Mainland China R A BE 1,706,106 2,857,773 59,819 10,383 4,634,081
Japan AA 177 1,144,457 3 e 1,144,637
South Asia M E — 232,092 — — 232,092
Europe Bl 110 38,334 — — 38,444
Others Hib 2,702 — — — 2,702
Total st 1,709,095 4,272,656 59,822 10,383 6,051,956
Timing of revenue recognition WA B 22 5
Goods transferred at a point of time ENEXEARREER 1,706,374 3,828,264 59,822 577 5,595,037
Service transferred over time PR BEE e 2,121 444,392 — 9,806 456,919
Total @ 1,709,095 4,272,656 59,822 10,383 6,051,956
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. W& ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEERITERANKA (&)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () DBERAEE(E)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRETABRERNBBROKRA LR
recognised in the current reporting period that were ERREREHINENBES Wi
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the R AR AR B AR

reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2021 2020
—E= - —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT

Revenue recognised that was included EREBREERSHINEG L
in contract liabilities at the beginning BEMKRA :
of the reporting period:

Sales of industrial products MET¥ER 61,318 265,979
(i) Performance obligations (i) BAOEME
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is ERAEEBENETMNERBMMT

summarised below:

Sale of industrial products HETXER

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the acceptance EREPEXTIXELRRATHKEHNE -
of industrial products by customers and payment is BRTRASEZERANKOFTRLNNE
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for P BB ERMNE30E90K A E A o

new customers and small-sized customers, where payment
in advance is normally required.

Processing service X TIR%
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services R—REBAEHREATKBLOEE
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 @S ERPEXEI0Z0KNANEH -

days after customer acceptance.

Construction service 2 R 7%
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services R—BRERANREREATHKBEOEE
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 i3 % IR 8 A 230290 K A B Hf -

days from the date of billing.
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5. Revenue (continued) 5 W@
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEPFPHEIFTSRMNKAE
(i) Performance obligations (continued) iy BHEMEE)
Construction service (continued) 7 R 75 ()
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining HE+T-_A=1+—"8 WoEFHNE
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) HNEECREXNKIE TR S) BEEBIE
as at 31 December are as follows: W

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT

Within one year —F R 141,083 61,318
6. Other income and gains 6. Hft Wt A K& Wz

2021 2020
—¥F=-—F —EETF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ETT

Other income Hh g A
Government grants (note 32) IR T 48 b (Bt 3E32) 91,830 73,600
Interest income from bank deposits HRATIF R F B WA 12,350 13,886
104,180 87,486
Other gains/(losses), net Hihhz (F8) B8
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE B 18 5 58 (5,076) (42,309)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERZED
plant and equipment BB F R (71,520) (34,068)
Gain from sales of other materials & H b ar Rk 2 20,061 16,953
Gain on remeasurement of fair value of EFFEREQAABEZRE
equity investment — 1,278
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB ARz K= 712 —
Others Hh 13,387 35,541
(42,436) (22,605)
Other income and gains, net HaW ARz F58 61,744 64,881
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7. Profit/(loss) before tax 7. BRBEAFE(&E)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRBATAE (&B8) BMK,/(EE):
(crediting):

2021 2020

S il -*-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AreTr NS RRE

(a) Staff costs* (including directors’ and ETI R A (BEEERTE

chief executive’s remuneration TBA B 5B (i &9))
(note 9))
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENREMETR 323,994 242,914
Contributions to retirement schemes iR K&t 2|4t 3% 29,328 10,866
353,322 253,780
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETZTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR F T
(b) Auditors’ remuneration L2

Audit services ZEB R 4,760 3,321
Non-audit services IEZ B R 553 45

5,313 3,366

1 ¥ 2
N /s
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7. Profit/(loss) before tax (continued)

(RBBEAEN  UARYKEFIE)

7. R ATFE (&EB) @

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARKETF T
() Other items H#iEH
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENTE (FiF18)
(note 18) 14,620 11,967
Depreciation of property, plant and M- REREZENITE
equipment* (note 15) (P 5E15) 266,582 296,974
Provision for warranties (note 31) IR AR AR B 8 (B9 5E31) 34,818 24,075
Research and development costs o 75 & 7 B R AR 68,801 274,910
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ BHEAEHNEECRERSR),
impairment losses on financial and i E (P 5E23)
contract assets (note 23) (18,071) 38,598
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BRE &R E (FEE15)
equipment (note 15) — 68,587
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HE¥WE - BE & REN
and equipment (note 6) &5 18 % 5 (fi3ke) 71,520 34,068
Gain on remeasurement of fair value of EH st 2R E AL BE 2 W
equity investment (note 6) (Kt 7%6) — (1,278)
Cost of inventories sold* (note 22(b)) B & F & /A (MtiE22(b)) 6,007,488 5,058,236
Cost of services rendered* B 1 it AR 7 B A 218,421 407,868
Interest income from bank deposits RATF R 2 F B WA (Bt 5E6)
(note 6) (12,350) (13,886)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (note 6) &K B A 7 2 Wz (M :E6) (712) —

# Cost of inventories sold and cost of services rendered include, in % BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFENEE
aggregate, RMB662,978,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 FERARBIREREK A BIEGHEE TR
(2020: RMB483,000,000), relating to staff costs and depreciation MIrE S £ AR %662,978,000L (=T = F
which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts F : AR #483,000,0007T) * Z KB INEF AR
disclosed separately above. EXOoREBENSEARELE-

- 3
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8. Finance costs 8. ME A

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T

Interest on bank and other loans wholly ARAFAZHEBK
repayable within five years HRITREME AL 121,282 116,415
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 3,574 2,335

Total interest expenses on financial liabilities not ~ FEZ A FERIEZES

at fair value through profit or loss EMBEEMNMNERX
18 %E 124,856 118,750
9. Directors’ and chief executive’s 9. EERESTHAEMSE

remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIE R B R EH B A A K E383(1)()
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) (b) ~ (QRMEAR AR (BREEEMNmER)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of HOE2HBATFTHRENFAEERESITERA
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BHMET :

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020
—BE-—F —E-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARET T

Fees we 296 321

Other emoluments: E e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREDA R 3,554 3,904
Retirement scheme contributions RAIRET &I 15 19
3,569 3,923

3,865 4,244
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9. Directors’ and chief executive’s 9. EERBSITHAEHME @
remuneration (continued)

2021
—EBE-—F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme

in kind contributions
2K
a2
we REYFE RIKcHEIMR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARE T AR TR AR T

Executive directors HITESE

Tan Wenhua B E — 785 — 785
Tan Xin (chief executive) EE(TTHRER) — 1,472 15 1,487
Wang Junze F 82 — 659 — 659
Non-executive director kHTES

Hsu You Yuan R — 638 — 638
Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert B 98 — — 98
Feng Wenli X B 98 — — 98
Fu Shuangye(i) SEE- () 49 — — 41
Lian Tao(i) BRI () 51 — — 51
Total “aEt 296 3,554 15 3,865
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9. Directors’ and chief executive’s 9. EERESITTHAEME®w
remuneration (continued)
2020
—EFF
Salaries,
allowances and Retirement
benefits in scheme
Fees kind  contributions Total
=N
e R
e REDHMzZ BIRGEIHER BE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBTRET AR¥TIT AR®TR

Executive directors HITES

Tan Wenhua B EE — 855 — 855
Tan Xin (chief executive) BE(TTHRER) — 1,604 16 1,620
Wang Junze F 8% = 750 3 753
Non-executive director FHITESE

Hsu You Yuan R — 695 — 695
Independent non- BYKHTES

executive directors

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert B 107 = = 107
Fu Shuangye HRE 107 — = 107
Feng Wenli X B 107 = = 107
Total st 321 3,904 19 4,244
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RERN TEREEFRZSITHRABRZEM
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during ZHREXRDERETAMNE (ZT=2FTF:
the year (2020: Nil). ) -
() Ms Fu Shuangye resigned the position of non-executive () REERTE-_T-_—F~A=-+mWMA
director with effect from 24 June 2021 while Mr Lian Tao BREBIIFERNTEF  RELERA
has been appointed as an independent non-executive HEREZERBIIFNITES -

director on the same date.
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10.Five highest paid employees 10. 28R FMES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2020: four) directors including the chief executive whose
remuneration are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the
remuneration in respect of the remaining one (2020: one)
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company is as follows:

FALEBRRSFMESRENE(ZZ-Z%
F OREF(BEESTBRAR)  BEHN
FRIEORE - R T —R(ZT_FF : —
B)UFARREERERTRABRNRSH
MESHWHMERMT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBT T

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind HEA#HE 2 EREYFH = 625 695
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes B Hl A TE S R E 15 —
640 695

The remuneration of the remaining one (2020: one) highest paid
employee is within the following band:

BT—%("E-FF: —R)BREFHESR
B 7 B B LA TN 48 B -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AH AH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T
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11.Income tax M. BH
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) EIREBTRRAFMSHARE
represents:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Current tax — the PRC BIEABLIE —
Provision for the year F[EEE 83,652 27,069
Overprovision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (1,479) (4,920)
82,173 22,149
Deferred tax (note 21) i SE B 18 (T 5E21) (762) 8,124
Income tax expense from continuing REREEB Z2MEHER
operations 81,411 30,273
Income tax expense from discontinued ERIEEEEB 2ETHER
operation - —
81,411 30,273
(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before (b) B AR F 8 E K E 5 Mt B A & & it E
tax at the statutory rate for the country in which the FOATE B K P at B 89 BR B Al B 18 80 B 1R
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled X ARBEERMEAENRIERZ
to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: HERWT
2020
EEEL L=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Profit/(Loss) before taxation from SECEEIE 2R ATFE,
continuing operations (E1#8) i 389,659 (80,888)
Loss before taxation from discontinued BRIEEEER BRI AEE
operation (5.,896) (85,206)
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BERAE,(EE) 383,763 (166,094)
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEMETERNIA 95,941 (41,523)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ANA] 0 S R R RS R & 978 1,210
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEEBMIMA BTG & (1,339) (1,122)
Effect of differential tax rates (note(i)) T RIBE R 728 (P EE() ). (8,160) 4,349
Effect of tax concessions obtained FrEB B RN 2 (X))
(note(ii)) ) ) (36,990) (19,981)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and M ARFERAARE AR EEE R
temporary differences not recognised ERZBNRGEE 35,532 91,159
Utilisation of unused tax loss and PABEFERARERIKE
temporary differences not recognised RAHEEEREREE
in previous years (4,998) (7,977)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the 5%H)TEIR T B R E R EF
distributable profits of the Group’s ARMA D EMN BN E
PRC subsidiaries ) 1,926 2,785
Write-off of unrecoverable deferred tax 55 5T B HE AR A9 N AJ WK Bl B
assets previously recognised EMIBEE — 6,293
Overprovision in respect of prior years BAFEBERE (1,479) (4,920)
Tax charge at the Group effective rate BAEEERRETENTIE
- 81,411 30,273
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RZZE—_—F+-_A=+—H

(RBBEAEN  UARYKEFIE)

11.Income tax (continued)

(continued)
Notes:

(b)

)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong during the year. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong either did not have
any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax or had
accumulated tax losses brought forward from previous years to
offset the assessable profits for the year.

The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the local rules and regulations of their
respective countries of incorporation.

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiary
incorporated in Germany was 15% for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 15%). No provision for German
income tax has been made as the subsidiary incorporated in
Germany did not have any taxable profits for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

The income tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is 25%
except for the subsidiaries mentioned below:

Jinzhou Yangguang has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government authority
in 2012 for a term of three years, and has been registered
with the local tax authority to be eligible for a reduced
income tax rate of 15%. Jinzhou Yangguang has renewed the
“High and New Technology Enterprise” certificate in 2015 and
2018 effective for the years from 2015 to 2017 and from
2018 to 2020 respectively. Jinzhou Yangguang has renewed
the “High and New Technology Enterprise” certificate in 2021
effective for the three years from 2021 to 2023. Accordingly,
Jinzhou Yangguang was entitled to the 15% income tax rate
for 2021 and 2020.

M.FABEHR @

(b)

(&)
B &

)

FABBFNEBHRBREARRRE B MK
SR B A R Y AT FE R B A 916.5%
ZETF 165% ) E - AR BB
18 B 32 &9 BT BB A R) I £ A A FE SR N B B
FERNERTANEIBEFEE AR
I EEE A EEF NERB AR - B
EELBENSH RS -

AARRERRAESHE R RABREZEHS
=t Ak 32 &9 BT B 2 R AR 4 E % B R K
SR e E AR R Ko AR D) 5B B A A A
FriS®

HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE "
AR B R 1B B A AR S A9 B B A R E A
HEER R ABI15% (T T =T 4F : 15%) ¢
ARZEEEREMAZAONE QR
BE-_E-— S+ A=+—RHI&E
I AT () R AL A - R R R AT
SHEBE(CE_TF &)

ARARHHBERBRAINMERTE S
25% T LB R BIBR A

SBNBEAR—_E——FEEEBRNER
R SHB O M A=F " 1
BEREMHEREERD  FEeEERRIK
15% KM T RS TR R - S8 M FE 2 BIR
—E-RAFM T - N\FEHI EHEE
TEIBE BHHINAEZT—AFE
—EHERITE - N\FE_ZT_TF -
RZEZ—FE SNGAEBEFEIR
FRECEXIBFE BB AT_—F
E_E_=F AH=F-Et - HBINEG
R TR _TFAIRIS%FE
BEHH -
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M.EH®

(continued) (b) (&)
Notes: (continued) MisE - ()
(i) (continued) iy (&)

Jiangsu Yueyang has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government authority
in 2021 for a term of three years, and has been registered
with the local tax authority to be eligible for a reduced
income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, Yueyang was entitled to
the 15% income tax rate for 2021.

Liaoning Semiconductor has been accredited as “High and
New Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government
authority in 2021 for a term of three years, and has been
registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for a
reduced income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, Semiconductor
was entitled to the 15% income tax rate for 2021.

Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd. (“Qinghai”) has been
accredited as “High and New Technology Enterprise” by the
relevant government authority in 2016 for a term of three
years, and has been registered with the local tax authority to
be eligible for a reduced income tax rate of 15%. Qinghai
renewed the “High and New Technology Enterprise” certificate
in 2019 effective for the three years from 2019 to 2021.
Accordingly, Qinghai was entitled to the 15% income tax rate
for 2021 and 2020.

Jinzhou Yangguang Jinmao Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Jinzhou Jinmao”) has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government authority
in 2016 for a term of three years, and has been registered
with the local tax authority to be eligible for a reduced
income tax rate of 15%. lJinzhou Jinmao renewed the “High
and New Technology Enterprise” certificate in 2019 effective
for the three years from 2019 to 2021. Accordingly, Jinzhou
Jinmao was entitled to the 15% income tax rate for 2021 and
2020.

Qujing Yangguang, in accordance with the”Catalogue of
Industries Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region”, has
been registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for
a reduced income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, Qujing
Yangguang was entitled to the 15% income tax rate for 2021
and 2020.

s

TIHENGR-_E-Z—FEEHEBNER
By =B i AH=F 1
EREMREEBERL T8 EKRIER
15% BB R A FTSH - Bt - ITEIS
KT = —FaR15% TS REF -

BEYEREN T - —FESERETE
BEF EHFERCE A BE=F
WEREMHEEBAESD  FEERRIEZ
5%mﬁ$%ﬁﬁ Fio At EEEE
BR - —FaR15%AT 5 REFH -

B R(BB)BRAB(EXEE])
RIE-—AR"FEEEBNEREF &
BECEIMN AEH=F WEREH
HBERETT 6 ERBMILI15% 8T XK
BB  —_E—NF BXETEEN
[RFBRIBE  BRPAR=F BZ
—NFRE_ZT_—FIL- A BT
MR E - —FR T _TFAIRI5%FT
FBERHE

SR N PSSt SR KB B A R 2 A (851
BRIOR-ZE—A"FEEHRRTERE
Flafittmo iy BH=F ¥
MEBHREEKESR  TEERMNIZIS%
BB R B P S MO_T FLE - SR N8R
BEH @RI EE AR E=6F "
BE=%— hiii_ngii At
BMBRR T —FR T _TFA
R15%FT1S T RGF -

B ERIBEIA SRR EEER

BIMEMREREET  FEeERRIZ

15% KT R FTEH - Bt - dhiEk3 X

% T FRIZTZEFARIS%AB
R o
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12.Discontinued operation

In February 2020, Huachang (the only legal entity in Segment C
in 2020) ceased production. In view of the Group’s business
strategy, the Group does not expect to manufacture any solar
cells in the foreseeable future. With Huachang being recognised
as a discontinued operation, the manufacturing of
monocrystalline silicon solar cells business is no longer included
in the note for operating segment information.

The results of Huachang for the year are presented below:

N.CRILKREEK

ZEZTF R EE(ZE T FHECH
—EABER)FILEE - ERAEENESK
B AEBBHEAIERORRTIS EEML
AIAGEEN HREEHERRTERDKIEL
BEY BESEABEELEEERTIEE
S E DRI FE ©

EERFEBENT

2021 2020
—E-— TE-TE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARETT

Revenue U == 11,414 463,059
Expenses X (7.481) (533,859)
Finance costs B & B AN (9.829) (14,406)
Loss from the discontinued operation ERIEREEKER (5,896) (85,206)
Loss before tax from the discontinued BRI & EERR B AT AR

operation (5,896) (85,206)
Income tax: 5%t — =
Loss for the year from the discontinued ERIEEEEBFANEIE

operation (5,896) (85,206)
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12.Discontinued operation (continued) NREXRILEREEK @)
The net cash flows incurred by Huachang are as follows: ESE4ABHEREFHENT ¢

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT

Operating activities KRS 80,097 (8,979)
Investing activities HEEE 23,254 15,932
Financing activities A& S B (110,000) 291
Net cash (outflow)/inflow FIRE R RA (6,649) 7,244
Loss per share: (RMB cents) ghEE: (ARED)
Basic and diluted, from the discontinued ERIEEREEBERR
operation BEEE (0.18) (2.69)
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from the ERIIEEEBTREARBEEEENTE
discontinued operation are based on: AR
2020
—ETF
Loss attributable to ordinary equity BRIEEEFEB 2 RAA
holders of the parent from the LBRERFFE ARML RMB5,896,000 RMB85,206,000
discontinued operation FREE A E#5,896,000 A R#85,206,000
Weighted average number of ordinary AEERERNERERERS
shares in issue during the year used in FANEEITEBRME
the basic loss per share calculation g g (fEE14)
(note 14) 3,309,962,914 3,161,981,309
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREEERARERS
shares used in the diluted loss per share T 38 AR 00 #E 19 8L
calculation (note 14) (Pt zE14) 3,309,962,914 3,161,981,309
13.Dividends 13. &
The board does not recommend to declare a final dividend for EFgfERRBE S _—F+-A=+—
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). HIEFEERAARE(ZE2FF &) -

‘1’ '., -



154 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t aeiRIZR B R A 5

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

14.Profit/(loss) per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

(a)

RZZE—_—F+-_A=+—H

Basic profit/(loss) per share

(BRBBEHEI

AAREIE)

(a)

The calculation of basic profit per share is based on the
profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
parent of RMB193,222,000 (2020: loss of RMB215,648,000)
and the weighted average of 3,309,962,914 (2020:

MBERILAFREERRRNER
FE(BE)

EFREANFE,(EiE)

EREAFBEDREFBRE AR LR
F% % 3 A F B A R #5193,222,0000T (==&
—ZF B ARK215,648,0007T) A K&
FRARAEFHITEBRINETFHRE

3,161,981,309) ordinary shares of the Company in issue 3,309,962,914f% ( = & = =T 4:
during the year. 3,161,981,3090% ) 5T & o
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBTFT
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity F AT EBBERIEE A
holders of the parent I ERAE,(BE) 193,222 (215,648)
Attributable to: AT AT :
Continuing operations BEEEED 199,118 (130,442)
Discontinued operation BRI S (5.896) (85,206)
193,222 (215,648)
Number of shares
BHBE
2021 2020
—E=-—F —ETF
Shares ;&)
Weighted average number of ordinary T 3m AR 0 #E 19 B

shares

3,309,962,914 3,161,981,309

Diluted profit/(loss) per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic profit/(loss) per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 in respect of a dilution as the Group had
no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

SREEHE(EE)
REBEEZZT - FR_FT_FTF+=A
S+ —BLEFE AEBEVEBETEE
MERTEAER REYTEHEE-F
ZT—FkZZEZFEF+ZA=+—HL
FEZINEBREAF BREELES
ég%o
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15.Property, plant and equipment 15.ME - -HERRXE

Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings  equipment vehicles and fittings Total

BB e KARERE
EEIR BF &t HE LB Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTRT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR AR%TR

Cost: R
At 1 January 2021 R=ZF=—%—A—H 261,394 746,974 1,869,182 31,037 28,820 2,937,407
Additions NE 755,147 5,506 44,380 4,433 5,868 815,334
Disposals HE 3) (75,051) (456,889) (1,974) (352) (534,269)
Transfer 3 (737,239) 49,997 686,131 885 226 —
Exchange adjustments ME X BE - — - - (16) (16)
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F

+=ZA=+—H 279,299 727,426 2,142,804 34,381 34,546 3,218,456
Accumulated depreciation RAMERAESSE:

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2021 R-—FE-_—%—A—H (80,684) (209,041)  (1,084,164) (24,899) (25,332)  (1,424,120)
Depreciation for the year FEHE - (30,265) (230,192) (2,179) (3,946) (266,582)
Written back on disposals B E — 28,141 343,322 1,667 238 373,368
Exchange adjustments [ERECE:S — — — — 3 3
At 31 December 2021 RZT=—%F

+=—R=+—8 (80,684) (211,165) (971,034) (25,411) (29,037)  (1,317,331)
Net book value: BRE A
At 31 December 2021 R-2-—F

+=ZA=+—AH 198,615 516,261 1,171,770 8,970 5,509 1,901,125
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A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021

RZZE—_—F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEHEI

AAREIE)

15.Property, plant and equipment (continued)

15.M% - BERRKRE®

Plant,
machinery
Construction in and Motor Furniture and
progress Buildings equipment vehicles fittings Total
BE - #ER REREE
ERIR BF & "E kB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTI ARETT ARBTRT AR%TxR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZ=-ZTF—A—H 85,311 743,344 2,003,762 28,522 29,187 2,890,126
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—RNE A A

(note ii) (B =Eii ) 54,341 — 120,029 1,820 151 176,341
Additions NE 259,053 4,086 92,824 854 3,337 360,154
Disposals HE (8,844) (456) (475,455) (604) (3,826) (489,185)
Transfer R (128,467) = 128,022 445 = =
Exchange adjustments ER R = — — — (29) 29)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z_FF

+=ZA=+—H 261,394 746,974 1,869,182 31,037 28,820 2,937,407
Accumulated depreciation R FERBEES:

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2020 RZZF=-FF—A—H (72,222) (181,021) (1,182,146) (23,753) (23,825) (1,482,967)
Depreciation for the year FEHE = (28,276) (262,209) (1,716) (4,773) (296,974)
Written back on disposals i 6 R B) = 256 420,316 570 3,248 424,390
Provision for impairment losses AL E 22 4 (P 2 )

(note iii) (8,462) — (60,125) = = (68,587)
Exchange adjustments VE 54 38 = = = = 18 18
At 31 December 2020 NI -_TF

+=ZA=+—8 (80,684) (209,041) (1,084,164) (24,899) (25,332) (1,424,120)
Net book value: BRI FME
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTE

+=ZA=+—H 180,710 537,933 785,018 6,138 3,488 1,513,287
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15.Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank borrowings were secured by certain of the
Group's property, plant and equipment (note 27), which
had an aggregate net book value of RMB494,154,000 (31
December 2020: RMB932,208,000).

Substantially all of the Group’s property,
equipment are located in Mainland China.

plant and

The Group has been applying for property ownership
certificates for certain buildings included in property, plant
and equipment with an aggregate net book value of
RMB113,873,000 as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: RMB166,991,000). Notwithstanding this, the directors
are of the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial
title to these buildings as at 31 December 2021.

On 1 April 2020, the Company obtained control over Jiangsu
Yueyang and have consolidated Jiangsu Yueyang's financial
position and performance into the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The addition to property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress due to business
combination is RMB176,341,000.

Huachang, a subsidiary engages in the manufacture and
trading of photovoltaic solar cells of the Group, suspended
production in this year. In view of the Group’s business
strategy, the Group does not expect to manufacture any
solar cells in the foreseeable future, therefore the net
amount of existing outmoded production line for solar cells
and related machinery equipment was accounted for as
asset impairment loss. As a result, an impairment loss of
RMB68,587,000 was fully provided to machinery and
construction in progress of Jinzhou Huachang in profit or
loss during 2020.

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 R-ZE=——F+=-A=+—H
(REBEFHEN UARKIIE)

15.M% BERRE®

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R-EBE-_—F+-A=+—H A&£EH
ETHERTEENAAEFERFE
% A\ R #494,154,000 (ZE - T 4F
+=—A=+—H: ARK#¥932,208,0007T)
HETWE - BE &R ERR T
27) °

REBRANMLAOYWE  BE LREHML
R BARE -

REBEERZFE T ADE BE R
RENEFHNEEMBERER RT——
F+-A=1+—8 ZEEFNEDF
B A ARE113,873,000L (ZE=F
F+=-A=+—H: AR¥166,991,000
T AM EFRB AEER_-E
T F+ A=+ —BEEZEEFH
Tt R o

i

\r

R=ZZE_ZEFNMA—B ARAREYH
VL &K 15 f5 RO 4E i 4 - S A% T AR AR 5 /0 B
BARRFEENARNEE S O B RE -
EEHEEHEMOME BEREZHE R
EETEAARE176,341,0007T °

EE —HAREAEERXANKGEE
MEENESNMBRE  REFEE -
REBASENEBBRE NEEBEFA
SEARINBREEERMAFGEEL
R it - 3B # K B E b & 48 B R
BAAEESNFELREERERRK -
At RZZ_TEERMESHEMN
NMEZIR2BEFRBAEBEREARE
68,587,0007T °

0
_ W
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A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 RZ-ZZ=Z—®+=-F=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

16.Intangible assets

16. B EE

Customer Customer
relationships contracts

EFB#&E BEFEN

RMB’000 RMB’000

Patents
=5H
RMB’'000

ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR¥Tx

Cost:

At 1 January and

R

R-_ZT=-_—F—H—H

Total
RMB’000
AR T

31 December 2021 k+=ZRA=+—8H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869
Accumulated amortisation R EERBEERE

and impairment losses:
At 1 January and W—ZE=-_—%—H—H

31 December 2021 E+—-_A=+—H (185,230) (2,411) (67,228) (254,869)
Net book value: REFME:
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%F

+-A=+-8 — — — —
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31 December 2021 R=-—T=—F+=-A=+—8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 2B B E 5 - LA RS (E)

16.Intangible assets (continued) 16. B EE )
Customer Customer
relationships contracts Patents Total
R BAR BERER =7 FEEL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETE ARBTT AR®BTR

Cost: A
At 1 January and RN—ZE-_ZTF—H—H
31 December 2020 Et+t=—A=+—H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869

Accumulated amortisation R EHRBEERE
and impairment losses:

At 1 January and RZEZFEF—-—H—H
31 December 2020 E+=—A=+—8H (185,230) (2,411) (67,228) (254,869)
Net book value: BREEE
At 31 December 2020 R -_ZTF
+t=A=+—H — — — —
The intangible assets were fully impaired during the year ended BREAEERBE=_SE—=-F+=-_A=1+—
31 December 2012. HIEFEEERE -
17.Goodwill 17. 58
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBFT
Cost: A
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H 208,237 208,237
Accumulated impairment losses: RitBEEE:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H (208,237) (208,237)
Carrying amount: FREE :
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H — =
The goodwill was fully impaired during the year ended 31 HEERBE_Z——_F+-_A=+—H1
December 2012. FETBHRE-
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A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021

18.Leases

The Group as a lessee

RZZE—_—F+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEHEI

AAREIE)

18.7H &
AEBIERETMEA
AEERELETEANSERSE RER

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
machinery and office buildings used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 20 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms
between 2 and 6 years. Office buildings generally have lease
terms of 2 and 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

MABTFIVEEAN THBEFECES
XN —ERIAAESHE B /202505 797
B4 BRBELE T ANONEGR T
BN -BEIRXEEHENHRN KR /226
FoRRABTFHOHEERR R B/2E105F - —
gME AEERGIEAEEIIERMEE

HEEE-

(a) EREEE

AEENERREENEASENER
BT :

Leasehold Office Plant and
lands Buildings machinery Total
FE L WABTFT KERRE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBTT ARETT ARBTET
As at 1 January 2020 R-_Z_-_ZTE£—F—H 150,887 249 — 151,136
Additions & in = 2,032 18,553 20,585
Additions as a result of Y B — 8 2 A BF 185
acquisition of a
subsidiary = 32,695 = 32,695
Depreciation charge EBH (4,076) (3,613) (4,278) (11,967)
As at 31 December RZTEZFTF
2020 and +ZA=+—8xK
1 January 2021 —E2-_—F—HF—H 146,811 31,363 14,275 192,449
Additions 0 2,435 — 68,327 70,762
Deductions as a result & — KK B Qa6
of disposal of a B
subsidiary (7,577) — (2,451) (10,028)
Depreciation charge EBH (3,901) (4,473) (6,246) (14,620)
As at 31 December R-ZTBE=-—F
2021 +-—A=+—H 137,768 26,890 73,905 238,563
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18.Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 W-_Z—-—F+-A=+—8H
(BRBEFHEEN  UARKESE)

18.1HE& )
AEEEAEEA )
b) MEERE
FRASEENEESENEHNT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZHREHE 49,350 1,388
New leases MEE 70,762 19,399
Addition as a result of acquisition of a Ik B8 — R M B R B BFEOR
subsidiary — 32,695
Accretion of interest recognised FANHERZ S
during the year 3,574 2,335
Payments 3% (29,824) (6,467)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEHEE 93,862 49,350
Analysed into: DT
Current portion B AR &6 9 20,270 8,564
Non-current portion FEBIHA 2B 5 73,592 40,786

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
44 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

HEBFEODEA D EYISHREM T
4470 5 R o

(0 HEmTHEIRBEAENSRET

2021 2020

—E=-—F —EEF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBETF T

Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 3,574 2,335
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEENERA 14,620 11,967
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FAFABmA B 18,194 14,302

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in notes 39(c)
to the financial statements.

HENRERHAB|RA SR E D BN
R M F39(0) BEFR o
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31 December 2021 W-_Z—-—®+—-A=+—8H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)
19.Investments in associates 19.RBERARANKRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR F T
Share of net assets EihEEFE 200 —

The following list contains the particular of the associates,

which are unlisted corporate entities:

Form of business

Place of
establishment

g
= e

B =

Registered and

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable

TRHEIBEQRRNFR ER/FLTAA

Name of associate structure and business paid-in capital to the Group Principal activities
AEEER
BENRER EBREBEX B ES S AMERESELX KEEEIL EFEXH
Jinzhou Chengguang New Incorporated The PRC/ Registered and 49 Construction of photovoltaic
Energy Technology Co., EERignAva Mainland China paid-in capital of power plants
Ltd. (“Chengguang”) B K RE RMB 10,000,000 BEXKRES
8380 K 3 AR R A & A K
BRAF (D) BEHERA
[% #10,000,0007T
Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Incorporated The PRC/ Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Energy Technology Co., ik Sz Mainland China ~ RMB20,000,000 and paid- power plants
Ltd. (“Huida") B AR in capital of BEXKEH
IHRTEERERRBRE RMB4,700,000
RAR(TEE]) AMERARE
20,000,0007T & B & & A
AR #4,700,0007T
Liaoning Little Giant Energy Incorporated The PRC/Mainland Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Technology Co., Ltd. g AV China RMB10,000,000 and paid- power plants
(“Little Giant") HE B AR in capital of BEXRE
BBNE AMERRHR RMB2,000,000
BRAR(VNEAD AMERARS
10,000,0007T % & 1 & A
AR #2,000,0007T
Xingye Lvjian (Jiangsu) Urban Incorporated The PRC/ Registered and paid-in 20 Construction of photovoltaic
Construction Development — #EffBK 32 Mainland China  capital of RMB20,000,000 power plants
Co., Ltd. (“Xingye") FE AR AMERAARER BERRE
FEGE (IF) BmESR BEHERARE
ERBRAA 20,000,0007T

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity

method in the consolidated financial statements.

HBRAAR -

bt = AR E AR E R B RAR RS B
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A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 W-_Z—-—F+-A=+—8H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB FERAE SN - LA RBEDIE)

19.Investments in associates (continued) 19.

Summarised financial information of the material associates,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements, is disclosed below:

REBEQTANRE®

FEBEARMNPBEERNBBLEEM S EK
REERAERERAMBEREANREAEBEYR
BEEWDT

2021 2020
=l —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T U N

Share of the associates’ loss for the year AEEERMLBEAREBEN
758 — 157
Share of the associates’ total EiEHE AR EEERBERE
comprehensive loss — 157
20.Equity investments designated at fair 20U DN AEEFEEHEEHT AR
value through other comprehensive RSN m N ERRE
income
2020
—E-—fF ZEZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T N R

Equity investments designated at fair value LIAAEEFEBEEFHHA

through other comprehensive income HitreaWEzNEZRE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value JEETHERNKRE  RAFE
Jinzhou Runyang Energy Trading Co., Ltd. BB REE SR A A 190 190

In July 2020, the Group invested RMB190,000 in cash for 19%
equity interest of Jinzhou Runyang Energy Trading Co., Ltd., a
photovoltaic product trading company which commenced
business in June 2019.

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

\1' &

RZEZZTFE+LAH- $‘$ILAIE1}\E¢%
190,0007T % & 7 /N & 5 8 /E%?i.ﬁféiﬁﬁﬁ
19% M iE#E - SBINESE R E AR A
—EXRERESIBIERNR_F— ﬂi/\ﬂﬁﬁ
YR B o

HRAKRERRZREARBBELEE it
BERE T BEBEERSARAEERA
HA AR & e -
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31 December 2021 RZ-ZZ=Z—®+=-F=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

21.Deferred tax 21 EENH E
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the AFEEREFMSHREENBBENEEF R
year are as follows: TS 8
Deferred tax assets B EE

2021
2 —F

Deferred Provision for
income warranties Total
BT WA R AEBE # st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR® T AR T

At 1 January 2021 RZZE_—F—H—H 6,005 3,657 9,662
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to RERNEEEEPTRER
the statement of profit or loss /G A)RELER B
during the year (note 11) (FF5E11) (3.123) 2,526 (597)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZBE-_—%+-AH
== 2,882 6,183 9,065
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEHAaE

Fair value
adjustments
on business

combination Others Total
£ e
WA TE H i et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR% T AR¥T T

At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-—f—H—H 2,491 1,286 3,777
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to REREEBZRPREBER
the statement of profit or loss MR (5 )RR ER B
during the year (note 11) (FF3E11) (73) (1,286) (1,359)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=-Z—F
+ZA=+—8H 2,418 — 2,418
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31 December 2021 R-ZE=——F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 2B B E 5 - LA RS (E)

21.Deferred tax (continued) 21.EER E (@)
Deferred tax assets BELEMEHEE
2020
—E_TF
Losses
available for
Provision for offsetting
doubtful debt against future
Deferred and  Provision for taxable
income inventories warranties profits Total
AftRERE
AREREFE R Bk
WA B RARE HE B @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREBTIT ARETI

At 1 January 2020 i S
—H—H — 171 5,798 10,604 16,573
Deferred tax charged/ RERERRKF

(credited) to the statement RiBz KR/
of profit or loss during the (FT A) MR E

year (note 11) A (M E11) 6,005 (171) (2,141) (10,604) (6,911)
At 31 December 2020 RZZTZZTF
+=-—RA=+—8H 6,005 = 3,657 — 9,662
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTISH ARG
2020
—E-TF
Fair value
adjustments on
business
combination Others Total
XBAH
M FEE Hith BEr
RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 RZT-_ZTF—H—H 2,564 — 2,564
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to REANEEREPRER
the statement of profit or loss M (GBI IE B TE
during the year (note 11) (MfzE11) (73) 1,286 1,213
At 31 December 2020 MR_T_ZEF
+-A=+—8 2,491 1,286 3,777
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31 December 2021 R-ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

21.Deferred tax (continued) 21 EERH B (@)

At 31 December 2021, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of RMB1,712,300,000
(31 December 2020: RMB1,644,843,000) and RMB178,535,000
(31 December 2020: RMB163,954,000) attributable to its
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, respectively, and
certain deductible temporary differences of RMB80,961,000 (31
December 2020: RMB155,618,000), as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses or deductible
temporary differences can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses, RMB178,535,000 (31
December 2020: RMB163,954,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely and the remaining balance will expire at various
dates up to 2026.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

R-ZB-—F+_-_A=+—H AEELE
HOBRFEKREREBHHE QR AR
1,712,300,000t (ZE_FEF + A=+ —
H: A B #1,644,843,0007T) & A R ¥
178,535,000 (ZE-_FF+-_A=+—8 :
AR #163,954,0007T ) A & 16 7K ) B B T8 5 18
N & T AT 008 B &= %8 A R 80,961,000
(ZE_ZTF+_A=+—H: AR#
155,618,0007T) ERELERIBEE - RE A
ARG A EEREET AT ERAKE
RBFEAE B A EE e AT R R R o

RERT A B+ ARE178,535,0007T (=
TE-_ZTE+ - A=+ —HB: ARK
163,954,0007T) ] R A 4582 - RSB E
ZEZAREFEM R B EER -

RBFECEMBEVE  HEHBEARMLRTL
MIERELEMIBEREES ENREH
WI0% W TR - ZBRKB —_FTT/N\F—H
—HREY ERAR-BZLFT_RA=+—
BZ&REOHA - R B ARERIINEREE
BE R 2 HA R RE - BIAE R ERIER
BRBE - HRNAEE EHH X B5%K
10% - FAlt - HREB-_FTN\F-HA—-HB}
REENKR  EPEKRERIN T QAN
PEOBRE  AEREEEERMRMBR -
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31 December 2021 W-_Z—-—F+-A=+—8H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 785 & 4 »

AARBIE)

22.Inventories 2.7 8
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position () HMAEUBRRARIBFERE
comprise:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR F T
Materials and supplies R R A & 258,677 297,305
Finished goods BIAK @ 204,302 158,785
462,979 456,090
Write-down of inventories to net TFERR = 2R FE
realisable value (3,540) (21,003)
459,439 435,087
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories sold is as follows: b) EEMNHFESEINBAT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AR T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EERFERNERAEE 6,024,951 5,053,051
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of T2 (R [E 55 ) R
inventories (17,463) 5,185
6,007,488 5,058,236
B, A vy
v L -y
Y / Y L
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A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 RZ-ZZ=Z—®+=-F=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets

. ERESZERER EREBEREY
BE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Trade receivables EUE 5 R 1,205,268 1,240,634
Bills receivable B U 2= 700,504 686,613
1,905,772 1,927,247
Impairment VRIER (111,617) (130,932)
1,794,155 1,796,315

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

RBREHHEEER MERERERNER
BOERFMNEBENRRZEZAHIMOT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Within 1 year —FR 1,733,506 1,428,642
1 to 2 years —E_F 31,686 295,321
2 to 3 years =E =% 24,338 58,443
Over 3 year BiE=F 4,625 13,909

1,794,155 1,796,315

As at 31 December 2021, bills receivable amounting to
RMB204,923,000 (31 December 2020: RMB260,637,000),
together with pledged deposits amounting to RMB567,529,000
(31 December 2020: RMB659,094,000) had been pledged as
security to banks for issuing bills payable to suppliers amounting
to RMB1,315,712,000 (31 December 2020: RMB1,112,661,000).

RZTE-Z—F+ZA=+—"HBH EREHEA
K #204,923,000( T —_FEF+ - A=+ —
B : ARK®260,637,0007T) A & EEFBFRA
R #567,529,000C (ZE-_EF+_A=+—
H : AR#¥659,094,00070) fEARITAAMAA
FEREHERRNZIE AR,315,712,00070 (=
TE-_ZTHF+ A=+ —HBH:ARHE
1,112,661,000) °



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 5% 169

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 W-_Z—-—F+-A=+—8H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB FERAE SN - LA RBEDIE)

23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 23.EWEZ R - EREBREN

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, borrowings amounting to
RMB56,344,000 (31 December 2020: RMB101,770,000) and
RMB354,622,000 (31 December 2020: RMB403,677,000) were
secured by certain of the Group’s trade receivables and bills
receivable with a carrying amount of RMB56,344,000 (31
December 2020: RMB101,770,000) and RMB354,622,000 (31
December 2020: RMB403,677,000) respectively.

=)

R —F+-_A=+—"H ERXARE
56,344,000 (ZE=—ZEF+=-_A=+—8:
AR%101,770,000) & A R #354,622,000 (=
T _TEHF+ A=+ —H:AREK
403,677,000) LA EE B H R E Z R K IE
W EBIREE S 5 A A R #56,344,0007T (=
T-_TF+—-_H=+—H :101,770,000) & A
R#354,622,000cEE | (ZE=_EF += A
=+—H :403,677,000) fE4L 48 o

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AR F T

Contract assets arising from: AEREEEAR
Sale of industrial products HE T M 157,046 131,935
Construction services £ 722 PR 7% 3,631 —
160,677 131,935
Impairment VoRIES (1,628) (384)
159,049 131,551

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract
assets as at 31 December is as follows:

HZE12A318 ' AHEERD KA BFHTEH R
MT :

Within 1 year —FK

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T
160,677 131,935

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance in
satisfying the respective performance obligations at the
reporting date on processing and construction contracts. Upon
completion of service and acceptance by customers, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade
receivables.

BHNEETREAEEEECERMAGR
MIHERR AAZTEMNBARRAKER
BERHERTMIREZANKETSEA
BHEENORKRE -HEXKREMEF &
X HARAHNEENSESETN AR
B HEMHE -
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31 December 2021 R-ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The Group normally grant a credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers. However, regarding domestic photovoltaic module
sales, some trade receivables are granted a longer credit period
of up to 180 days depending on the construction period of
photovoltaic power plants.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade,
bills receivables and contract assets are as follows:

zsguﬁz;‘-’i%ﬂ&?x EREBREYN
)

=

AEE R4 TEFI0E0ANEEL - Bt
HEANZAEMFHEE B0 BUEIIRKNEKE
BRARBUZERNIRBY EXEEHIR
£ ' 180K °

FARKESER BUREBRENEER
EREEIHMT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

At the beginning of the year R E ) 131,316 92,718
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment CRER M) R EEK (K E7)

losses (note 7) (18,071) 38,598
At the end of the year RER 113,245 131,316

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit
losses of the contract assets are based on those of the trade
receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables are
from the same customer bases. The Group applies the simplified
approach to the provision for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade debtors. To measure the expected credit
loss on trade debtors, trade debtors have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote.

REREAARARBREEETRED
NHERHEEFR -BEAREERBE
ERANEBEXRUNBIRKRSINERGS
ERKEN BRAaREEME S EUKGKK
BR-—FFPH AEERABEBYBRELE
AIFSEAMATANBREERRERESNML
TE AHHABESEBAERXAEY
BREB - RTEHEEZEBANERHER
BX EREBEXRNERRRSBMERR S
BHEBAETT E - ZetE BB EM
BER EEREMBEEAHNTSNEH
BEFIE - E B KR R AR R TR Y
BERAEER - —RME  WAKERZE
B O R EER - EE 5 RIER T A
B
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23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 23.EWE Z R EREEREN
(&)

(continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TRENAEBERERZEZIERNEREESR
on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets using a B AEEERNERRRAENER
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021 R=B=—-%+=ZHA=+—H

Large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational enterprises and AEEERE  BEASEMBE S

related parties

Between Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and 3 and Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years

—FR —-$2-F ZHFZ=f ZFZNE BANE

Expected credit loss rates BHEEBREX 0.14% 0.89% 5.18% 11.08% 31.69%

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ BREAE(ARETT) 538,570 43,985 42,937 328 870 626,690
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) ~ BHIEEEHE(ARETT) 746 393 2,222 36 276 3,673
Except for large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational B oRAU B A (b ¥ - P B 2 R0 B 5 A0

enterprises and related parties

Between Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and 3 and Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years

—ER -£F-F ZFZ=F ZEZNF BENEF

Expected credit loss rates BHEEERX 5.17% 28.67% 44.91% 63.00% 97.83%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ HRELE(AR® T L) 646,117 18,238 - 6,754 68,146 739,255
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) ~ BEHEEER(ARE T ) 33,422 5,228 - 4,255 66,667 109,572
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23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets
(continued)

As at 31 December 2020

Large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational enterprises and
related parties

Between Between Between

Within 1 and 2 and 3 and Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

—FRN —FEZF ZFE=F -FENF BANF @t
Expected credit loss rates BREEEEX 032% 2.06% 13.74% 31.69% =
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAE(ARBTL) 626,341 301,463 85,494 19,377 — 1,032,675
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  EHIEEBHB(ARET L) 2,002 6,199 11,750 6,140 — 26,091

Except for large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational
enterprises and related parties

BRAREIE A b3 - 5B 4 3 0 B B O3 S

Between Between Between

Within 1 and 2 and 3 and Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

- —FE-f —FE=Ff ZFENFf BENF @t
Expected credit loss rates BHREEERX 9.01% 40.43% 59.96% 70.29% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ BEEZE(ARE T ) 254,118 9% 6,774 2,265 76,643 339,894
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) ~ BHEEER(ARE T ) 22,890 38 4,062 1,592 76,643 105,225

i . S
Fa ¥ ey o
.;\‘-“ \E\ Sy

\«f: - ._‘Sﬂ
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 2B B E 5 - LA RS (E)

24.Prepayments, other receivables and other 24.F8{J 518 - Hitt B W RE R H
assets BE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T

Prepayments for raw materials R B8 TE A 5K 1B 314,445 186,217
Deductible value-added tax A] H1 R 1 B 100,291 143,973
Other receivables H b fE U 308 106,556 22,973

521,292 353,163
Impairment allowance B — —

521,292 353,163
Other receivables mainly represent deposits and staff advances, HEMERARBEBETEAZENE TSR TN
and an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date EWREEHBRAERBEAMEEITREDN -
by considering the probability of default. Except the separate BRELREMEBEREMNKEN AR Lilid
item of prepayments which have already been impaired, as the HANEEERRENNIEEETHT &R
financial assets included in the above balances relate to ek I ERNFEANREIRE -

receivables for which there was no recent history of default, no
impairment was provided during the year.

25.Pledged deposits 25. 2 I 7 XK
Certain of the Group's bank deposits were pledged to secure AEBETRITEARERAEBERMNIETT
bank loans and other banking facilities granted to the Group as EREREMRTMEFEDER  H3 0T :
follows:

2021 2020
—E=-—F —EEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T N R

Pledged as security for bills payable BRERENZEERNEAR R 567,529 659,094
Others H A 183,749 27,006

751,278 686,100
The effective annual interest rate for pledged deposits with BE T -_—F+-_A=Z+—RHLEEFE"BE
banks was 0.35% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: ERTRITOERNERFENERRBOISE(Z
0.45%). T_TF:045E) -

‘1’ '., -
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31 December 2021 RZ-ZZ=Z—®+=-F=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

26.Cash and cash equivalents 26.HBERBESEEY

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 431,861 456,265
Cash and bank balances totalling RMB251,542,000 (31 R-E-_—F+_A=+—BWBEE KB
December 2020: RMB256,746,000) as at 31 December 2021 are HEHAE HE ARK251,542,000c(ZE - F
denominated in RMB. The RMB is not freely convertible into +=ZA=+—H : AK#%256,746,0007T) A A
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign REDE ARETTTEHIBRAEME -
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, AT - AR BE R B INE E Gl 50 R AEE - EE K
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is NEBEMATE AEEEMEFRTERT
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks 1A R R AEINE DA AT INE R 75 -
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RATIR B E A BRITFE R R )F e =
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are BIMA S - RITERRKEEBREREFAR
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of I ER R BEERRITAEST -
default.
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27.Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings
31 December 2021
“B--f+ZA=+-
Effective
interest
rate
(%)
Notes L YiES Maturity
L= (%) Ep
Current: ik
Bank loans — secured BITER — BEF (a) 3.480-7.500 2022
CNY N
Bank loans — guaranteed FITER — BER (b) 2.585-9.000 2022
CNY AE®
EUR BT
HKD BT
UsD e
Other loans — secured HiER — AHA (© 0.000-7.500 2022
CNY ARE
Other loans — guaranteed HtER — BER (d 5.000-5.475 2022
HKD BT
usb X
Current portion of long-term REEENTRD
borrowings : Ba:
Other loans — guaranteed HtER — BER (b) 1.600-6.000 2022
EUR BT
CNY ARE
Total G
Non-current: Eiid
Other loans — guaranteed HtER — EER (b) 1.600-7.000  2023-2024
CNY AE®
EUR BT
HKD BT
Total CHS
(@) The bank borrowings of the Group are secured by: (a)

31 December 2021
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBHEHEI

27.RITREMET REE

(i) the Group's property, plant and equipment with the net

book value of RMB494,154,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB932,208,000); and

(i) the Group’'s
RMB43,461,000
RMB106,391,000).

right-of-use assets
(31 December

amounting to
2020:

=

RMB'000
ARBTR

1,

507,782
507,782
981,879
817,400
123,416
200
40,863
410,966
410,966
12,299
9,111
3,188

2,353
2,353

915,279

209,670
167,572
1,218
40,880

209,670

31 December 2020

R—_T=Z—F+=—A=+—H
AARKEDE)

ZZ-FF+-A=1+—-H

Effective
interest
rate
(%)

- YIES Maturity RMB'000

(%) I ARETR

3.640-7.500 2021 1,112,125

1,112,125

2.625-9.000 2021 717,603

441,339

69,440

206,824

0.000-7.500 2021 511,447

511,447

5.000-5.475 2021 11,637

8,375

3,262

1.600-6.000 2021 122,707

2,707

120,000

2,475,519

1.600  2022-2023 4,060

4,060

4,060

AEBZRITEEUTIIITAEER

(i)

(ii)

SENME  BERRE  REFE

B ANR®A94,154,0007T (ZE B F
+ - A=+ — H: AR ¥
932,208,0007T) :

EENEFERBEEEARARKE
43,461,000 (—ZFE - T F + — A
—+—H8: AR¥106,391,0007T) ;
&
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31 December 2021
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27.Interest-bearing bank and other

R=—ZB=——F+=ZA=+—H

(RBBEAEN  UARYKEFIE)

27.8BITREMFTEMEE @)

borrowings (continued)

(b) Certain subsidiaries’ borrowings are guaranteed by the other
subsidiaries of the Group.

(c) Other loans of the Group are secured by:
(i) the Group’'s bills

RMB354,622,000
RMB403,677,000); and

receivable amounting to
(31 December 2020:

(i) the Group’s trade receivables amounting to
RMB56,344,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB101,770,000), further details are disclosed in note
42 to the financial statements.

(b) #& T F 8 2 B &9 5 50 el A & B H 4 P B
DA FER e

(0 ANEBEZEMEFATHIGAEER:

(i)

(ii)

EBEHEREZEASARE
354,622,000 (= E -~ F % + = A
=+—H8: AR¥403,677,0007T) ;
53

SENERESERAARE
56,344,000 (—_ZE - Z &+ - A
=+—H: AKR#¥101,770,0007T) °
B A2 5 -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N
Analysed into: DITR
Bank loans repayable: ATHEEMNRITEE:
Within one year or on demand —F RSB K 1,546,005 1,829,728
Other borrowings repayable: ATEENEMEER
Within one year —FR 369,274 645,791
In the second year F-F 42,098 2,706
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-EZFERNFT BREEEMTE 167,572 1,354
578,944 649,851
2,124,949 2,479,579
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A I IRARMIEE

31 December 2021 W-_Z—-—F+-A=+—8H
(BRBEFHEEN  UARKESE)

28.ENESRIAREE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR T T

Trade payables FEE 5 R 927,004 802,769
Bills payable FE R & 1,315,712 1,208,444
2,242,716 2,011,213

(@) The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

(a)

REBEHREER BNESRARERE
BORKZEZAHPOMAT :

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T
Within 1 month —fEAR 785,573 561,240
1 to 3 months —Z==@A 712,362 589,883
4 to 6 months M= < E A 645,239 779,100
7 to 12 months +tZE+ =88R 65,245 63,959
Over 1 year il —F 34,297 17,031
2,242,716 2,011,213
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are BHRNFIARRE - BERIOKHNHAR
normally settled on 90-day credit terms. HE -
(b) As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bills payable of by RZT=Z—F+=ZA=+—H Hx&H

RMB1,315,712,000 (31 December 2020: RMB1,112,661,000)

were
RMB204,923,000 (31

(note 23) and by Group’s

bills
December 2020: RMB260,637,000)
pledged deposits of

secured by Group's

receivable of

RMB567,529,000 (31 December 2020: RMB659,094,000).

AR #1,315712,000c (ZE-_FF+ =
A=+—8: AR¥1,112,661,0007T) &Y
FE T EHE AR SR B A R #5204,923,0007T
(ZE-_TF+_A=+—H: AR
260,637,0007T ) (P 7%23) #) FE UL S 45 LA I
AR#567,529,000t (ZE=FF+=-A
=+—8: AR¥659,094,000) H 2 i ¥
TFRIEHEA -
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31 December 2021 RZ-ZZ=Z—®+=-F=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3B £ E 51 LA REFI(E)

29.0ther payables and accruals 9. HMEMNKRERENBEX

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Payables for acquisition of property, plant and BEWE WS EREENEN

equipment KIA 328,941 93,531
Payables for other taxes Hh FE S R T8 31,217 40,071
Payables for freight EfTEE 5,229 28,936
Payables for staff-related cost FEfT B THRBEHE 19,271 15,528
Dividends payable FEASBR B 138 674
Other payables on behalf of the third-parties HtRE=FEMKE 113,427 56,173
Other payables and accruals H b fE T RIE M FE AT & A 45,643 27,410

543,866 262,323
The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no e AERA 2EEEBRTENS-
fixed terms of repayment.
30.Contract liabilities 30,5 EE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BEHEBEFBBOT

2021 2020
—E=-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREET T

Sale of industrial products HELEE® 141,083 61,318
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to EHNEERERHIZEMMEATERR -
deliver industrial products. The increase in contract liabilities in RIEBE-_—FEHNABENTERANZE
2021 was mainly due to the increase of sale of industrial HETHEEDREMAE -

products this year.
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31 December 2021 R-ZE=——F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 2B B E 5 - LA RS (E)

31.8

31.Provisions

Provision for

inventory

Provision for purchase
warranties commitments Total

FEBE
RAEE AERE et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETTT AREFTT ARETFTT
At 1 January 2020 RZT-_TF—H—H 127,412 49,687 177,099
Addition provisions BN AE 24,075 = 24,075
Reversal o — (50,423) (50,423)
Exchange adjustments BE i, S EE = 736 736
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+=-A=+—H 151,487 = 151,487
At 1 January 2021 R-Z-—%—F—H 151,487 — 151,487
Addition provisions BN 37,104 — 37,104
Utilisation 1 (2,286) — (2,286)
At 31 December 2021 RZB-—F+-"A=+—H 186,305 — 186,305

Portion classified as current PEARDABHNIS

liabilities (4,700) — (4,700)
Non-current portion FEREI D 181,605 — 181,605

The Group's photovoltaic modules are typically sold with a
2-year or 5-year warranty for defects in materials and
workmanship, and a 10-year or 25-year minimum power output
warranty against declines of initial power generation capacity of
more than 10% and 20%, respectively from the date of
receipts. The Group has the obligation to repair or replace solar
modules, under the terms of the warranty policy. The Group
maintains warranty reserves to cover potential liabilities that
could arise under these warranties.

AEEMERAFLER—REEaRKA
AR F S FMRHBEERATIRA * LAKI10F
MOSFERRE NG ERE
HTHREETEZRVTEETERI0NR
20% ° MR IR R A ERSR IEK
KIGEEEHETHEXRBER AEERER

RREBNEE

DHIREE N

AEBBEEESH

Z2ERBATHERLERE
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31 December 2021
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31.

RZZE—_—F+-_A=+—H

(RBBEAEN  UARYKEFIE)

Provisions (continued)

The Group has adopted the estimation where the warranty
obligation accrued is based on photovoltaic modules’ revenues,
which is consistent with the practice of the solar industry. Based
on the historical experience and best estimation, the Group
believes that the average selling price of solar modules over the
past two years would reflect the estimated warranty cost liability
precisely.

32.Deferred income

33.

Various government grants have been received by the Group for
generating export sales, participating in high-tech industry and
constructing various manufacture and photovoltaic power plants
in Jinzhou, Liaoning Province, Xining, Qinghai Province, Qujing,
Yunnan Province and Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Those government grants related to assets are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially as deferred
income and are amortised to profit or loss as other income over
the useful lives of the assets.

Retirement benefit schemes

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries were required to make
contributions to the scheme at 20% of the employees’ salaries
per annum to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group is required to participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes administered and operated by the Bureau of
Labour Insurance of Taiwan for employees employed in Taiwan.
Under the schemes, the employer is required to make
contributions to the schemes at 6% of the employees’ relevant
income. Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with the schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

31.

32.

33.

BB e

AEEDEA L RALGKSARGEERA
%75 HTAABETLENNE REFLL
BRSEGRE  AEERA  LBEMEAR

B 40 1 #3955 05 B B ELOE ¢ LR TR IR
BERARKEE -

& WA

AEEMEEEHONE BESHBETER

ERREELHN FEERE ZEHAME
MT#E BN IS EEERE KL KRE U,
1M 28 15 A~ [R] #9 BT 8 B

ZEREEEBNBTMEE RN M5
ARKPERBSETEWA  SWIREEAE M
FHRBRANEHESEMKA -

iR ¢ 8 7 5t &
AEEFENBARES AL Rb )y TR
8RR R 0 B SE R 4 BOR RARFUGH B -
£ 80 Y B 2 F) A R U B 4 # 020% A £t
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34.Share capital 34. % 7%
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBEITRA
2021 2020
—B--f —E-EF
No. of shares No. of shares '000
RGEAE R 1 8 B T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ EREE0.18 TTH
A 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000
Equivalent to HER RMB450,000 RMB450,000
Ordinary shares, issued and BRORMEEER:
fully paid:
At 1 January R—A—8 3,143,771,133 RMB270,867 3,211,780,566 RMB276,727
Effect of TDR shares repurchased  [B1 B Fl ;£ 35 & & 15 %
and cancelled (note) B (1 aE) — - (68,009,433) RMB(5,860)
Effect of Subscription of new BB — R ERER
shares under general mandate (i) 180,000,000 RMB15,057 — =
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8 3,323,771,133 RMB285,924 3,143,771,133 RMB270,867
Note: The Company received a notice from the Taiwan Stock WaE: ZARFER —NWEFE+AZBKEEE

ﬁ#x%ﬁﬁﬁ*}@%ﬂ $E¢F:.,%M#x%ﬁﬁ
E@ﬁﬁﬁﬁm BEBFRSHMERAEAR
BEFERER-_Z—NLFE+— H+_
El;tﬂm:ﬁ? iN/N Tﬁ%i%um@ﬂ%{ﬁ
¥ & ¥51,211,0987T [Bl #68,009,4331%
B o &68009433%%&%27@

Exchange Corporation (the “Taiwan Stock Exchange”) on 2
October 2019, whereby the Taiwan Stock Exchange indicated
that it shall require the Taiwan Depositary Receipts (the
“TDRs"”) of the Company to be delisted with effect from 12
November 2019 pursuant to the relevant rules of the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. The Company is obliged to repurchase
68,009,433 units of TDRs at an aggregate price of
NTD51,211,098. Such 68,009,433 units of TDRs so
repurchased by the Company have been surrendered to and
cancelled by the depositary agent. The 68,009,433 underlying
shares represented by such surrendered TDRs were transferred
to the Company on 7 April 2020, and were cancelled
accordingly on 2 June 2020.

ﬂé%%ﬁﬂ%s,ooana&
= i m At B#ERE
TERNA B

B fp Al 2
WmARE ;Ttﬁ"f =
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34.Share capital (Continued) 34. 8 & ()
The information about the Company’s ordinary shares is set out ERAREEBBRMERDT
below:

No. of shares
issued and fully

paid Amount
ERTRAR
R4 & B K]
RMB’000
ARBT T
As at 31 December 2020 R-BE-EE+-_A=+—H 3,143,771,133 270,807
Issue of shares BT D 180,000,000 15,057
As at 31 December 2021 R—_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 3,323,771,133 285,924
35 Employee share ownership plan 35 ETHFRETE
Qujing Yangguang, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the AEE-—RIZEMBARMBSE LEEE
Group, operates an employee share ownership plan (“ESOP") for THBEAE(TETHEKE])  8EHEHALRSE
the purpose of sharing the profit of Qujing Yangguang with @EJZIJJQE% ELBERMMAER2HEES=Z
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the SHEFE T —F_A=+=H - i
Group’s operations. On 23 February 2021, the shareholders of b Bﬁtﬂxﬁﬁt/ﬁi : R B 1731,878,0000% %
Qujing Yangguang approved and resolved to issue 31,878,000 5 #BR(E A ARIS5,6350005T * 1 #IE 5
shares, with the total consideration of RMB95,635,000 KBERIEBBEITRAL23% - ARELE R
representing approximately 23% of the enlarged issued share BRERMGLEE -
capital of Qujing Yangguang, for the purpose of granting and
allotting the awarded shares to the participants.
Among above 31,878,000 shares approved and resolved, a 7k #it31,878,0000% B 7 #t fF &R & IR 5
totally 10,928,333 shares were allocated to eligible participants i $£510,928,333M Mk 19 9 Bl 4 & 161D
including an independent non-executive director of the 2 /\% BIE—EBARBBIIFENTES A
Company, employees of the Group and other eligible EEETIREMAEEIKENRESE -
participants.
The ESOP plan stipulates that eligible participants have a right to BEIRRERT HeR4N2EEFE
purchase the additional shares approved and resolved by Qujing LERARBIOTHETEERESHER X
Yangguang at a fixed price of RMB3.0 per share. The ESOP plan EEREWE AL ERD - B THIFREE
further stipulates that eligible participants shall hold those E—FHRE A %%E@%‘ﬂ’é%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ
shares until the date upon the fulfilment of certain conditions. EMERELEEHEZH TR RO BIZRRRE
Otherwise, the shares shall be resold back to other eligible F@;%Jﬁﬁéﬂx#m Bi o
participants at the original subscription price.
Therefore, the ESOP plan became effective on 23 February 2021 EHit EIRFRAESR T =_—F=-_A=+=
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force HAX  RIFSEBUHRIEN - TRIEHKZA

until 31 July 2023 from that date. HE—BEBAE-T=_=FtA=+—H-
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35 Employee share ownership plan (continued)

The fair value of the awarded shares at the grant date was
estimated using a discounted cash flow model with the
following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.55
Weighted average cost of capital (%) 13.70
Equity risk premium (%) 7.09

During 2021, 31,878,000 awarded shares have been exercised
with the total consideration of RMB95,635,000 at the weighted
average exercise price of RMB3.00 and the fair value of the
awarded shares at the grant date were at the weighted average
awarded price of RMB3.00.

36.Reserves

(1) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The share
premium is distributable.

(2) General reserve fund

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC, these PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer a
minimum of 10% of their distributable profits after taxation
based on their PRC statutory financial statements to the
general reserve fund until the balance of the fund is at
least half of the paid-in capital of the relevant subsidiaries.
The amounts allocated to this reserve are determined by the
respective boards of directors with reference to the
minimum requirement.

For the entities concerned, the general reserve fund can be
converted into capital in proportion to the equity holders’
existing equity holdings, provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital.

(3) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of shares
allotted and issued over the subscription costs and share
options granted to employees of the Group.

s

35 & T & REHE )
RETR BEBROAOALBESEHEFE
BeRERGHe BROT

£ 2 [ R X (%) 3.55
INAE & AN AR 5T E (%) 13.70
A% 1 B B8 5 (B (%) 7.09

—E - —F 8 E 17#31,878,0004% 5 B iz
- KB A AR ¥I5,6350005T ° INEFH
THEEBAAREIOL RETH  EEKHG
AR EBEZINEFSREERAARE3.00

JG ©

36.f# &
(1) A7 B
B A9 it (R AR 0 B P BT 2 BY B 4 ASA AR
G o RO E T T AR -

2 —RiEES

REA @ BEDEERANR AR T B M
BB ARMNABSERZMA tE
B R Rl ZR K BUATE M R
FIT 71 B BR B 1 B] 23 I ) B Bk 2 10% 88 5
E-RERS BEEZRESEHRED
EHENBAREARA-—FR/IE-&
BHEFSK2BRBEEBRR - BEEOE
EZREENTE -

BERERME  —REESTEES
FAEAEBNERLILILBRBER
REBEREHRTBIRNEMELRN25% °

(3) BEARfH
EARBEARENRBTTASZERED
ROBAZBRANBONUNEE T RS
MERENAFE-
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(RBBEAEN  UARYKEFIE)

36.Reserves (Continued)

37

(4)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
the Group companies into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.4.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents the differences between
considerations of acquisitions of equity interests from non-
controlling equity owners and the carrying amount of the
proportionate net assets.

Partly-owned subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

36. 1% & (@)

(4)

bE 5 1
ELREEREMBERLAEASEM R
REZVEEMEENELZE - AR
BIRME2AMB ST BRER -

H it 7 18
HitEHEREAFEHERSER A
WhRE B K ERIZLLPIFrEEEFE
MREEZ A EHE -

37.EEEAFERMUETNE D IF

A ED
ARBHEAEAFREIEESNMNE AR
BT

2020
—E_ETF
Percentage of equity interest held by non- PR R am FE A B AR RE L A
controlling interests:
Qujing Yangguang i 95 5 46.30% 30.00%
Jiangsu Yueyang L &R 5 26.14% 72.03%
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non- DEAIEEH M ESZNEE
controlling interests: T (EE) -
Qujing Yangguang iy 35 5 63,083 14,173
Jiangsu Yueyang TLERIE S 28,406 (8,120)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RmEBFFEEFIMEED BT
interests at the reporting date: EREE
Qujing Yangguang* A 15 B5 e * 208,305 49,587
Jiangsu Yueyang** L BR R[5 84,983 80,173

In February 2021, the shareholders of Qujing Yangguang approved
the adoption of an ESOP to further promote the productivity and
strong work performance to those eligible participants. In August
2021, Qujing Yangguang received capital contribution from ESOP
and recorded as non-controlling interests.

RZF-—F_F #BEBANRRIERA
BETRHBAENE-—SRETa KT 228E
MAEENMBRNTHEER -R-T=—FN\
A BB IEGETIHRAINBELIR
FEE R AR -
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37 Partly-owned subsidiaries with material 3V.EEERFERMEZNDB &
non-controlling interests (Continued) ERE QR @

** |n April 2021, Jinzhou Yangguang acquired certain non-controlling > RZTZ—FMA - RING N EIT AR IEE
shares from non-controlling shareholders of Jiangsu Yueyang. R AR 51 Uk R SE TR AR AR (0 o B 1R - SRINFS
Subsequently, Jinzhou Yangguang injected capital contributions into DRR B —FRXAMEARIEHNEE
Jiangsu Yueyang in June and July 2021 respectively. In July and B-RZZEZ—FELAMNA  MRFIGIEE
August 2021, two new non-controlling shareholders injected capital BRI GEE  RAEEA 08 158
into Jiangsu Yueyang which was deemed to long-term borrowings KPWERRIMER -
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are
before any inter-company eliminations:

TRIRT LM BRARANELMBKRES -
RERMABZMEHZAMKENSE

Qujing Jiangsu

2021 —E-—F Yangguang Yueyang
g 35 RS K T & RS

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®E T AR®E T

Revenue U z5 1,279,173 2,886,785
Total expenses BH X (1,090,187) (2,772,999)
Profit for the year FEHNHE 188,986 113,786
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EBARE 188,986 113,786
Current assets mEE E 418,047 1,377,621
Non-current assets ERBEE 880,941 509,736
Current liabilities mENEE (677,279) (1,348,478)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (171,807) (169,772)
Net cash flows from operating activities LEEETISIR S F R 46,399 464,094
Net cash flows used in investing activities RERDMARESFH (50,691) (515,709)
Net cash flows from financing activities BREEEMGERE FE 88,098 98,464
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRRESEEYIL INFE 83,806 46,849
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37 Partly-owned subsidiaries with material 3V.BEEEAFERUEEZNESF

non-controlling interests (Continued) EHE AR @

Qujing Jiangsu

2020 —E-EF Yangguang Yueyang

i 55 b5 L #R 1 5

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Revenue W == 324,349 1,488,269

Total expenses FENE I (277,107) (1,499,541)

Profit/(loss) for the year FEFME(EE) 47,242 (11,272)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FEZEBA(EB)©EE 47,242 (11,272)

Current assets B EE 152,730 649,477

Non-current assets FEMBEE 515,984 221,280

Current liabilities mEBAE (386,547) (632,631)

Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (116,876) (126,821)

Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBMERSFE 8,906 19,398

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activites R &EB G, (FTR)EE

FER 3,248 (32,137)

Net cash flows from financing activities MEEBMARSFE 29,385 19,650

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZFEYEINFERE 41,539 6,911
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38 Disposal of a subsidiary 3. HE—XHE A A
2021
Note —E-—F
B 5 RMB’000
Net assets disposed of: BRERFEE:
Property, plant and equipment ME  WERFZHE 32,935
Cash and bank balances ] & MR 1T 45 6 76,552
Trade receivables FEUE 5 R 24,648
Inventories FE 47,858
Prepayments and other receivables T8 45 R K H fh FE U SR IE 74,125
Trade payables ERE SRR (106,978)
Other payables and accruals H i & A R0 FE AT B (42,203)
Deferred income BEIER A (1,631)
Non-controlling interests FE 45 ) 14 2 (51,600)
53,706
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-—RWERF 2= 5 712
54,418
Satisfied by Cash AR & 1T 27,753
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HE—FXMBARMKR e KRS EEWFR
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: AT :
2021
—E-—F
RMB’000
Cash consideration RBeRE 27,753
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEEMR S RRITER (76,552)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the HE-—RWEATMR M

disposal of a subsidiary ReZEWFRE (48,799)
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39.Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB70,762,000
(2020: RMB52,094,000) and RMB70,762,000 (2020:

RMB52,094,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for plant and machinery and leasehold land.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

30. 4 HERERMKEE

() EXFRERS

FRAEERKE  KERLHOEE
ZHOR AL NEREEERT
EAaEART70,762,000(— T == : A
R #52,094,0007t) & A K #70,762,000
(ZZ= =% : AR#52,094,0007T) °

(b) MEEHELNRERZL

activities

Interest-bearing

borrowings Lease Liabilities

T E B HEaE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

At 1 January 2021 R—Z=——%—F—H 2,479,579 49,350

Changes from financing cash flows HERSRENE( (354,630) (26,250)

New leases g — 70,762

Interest expense MEEHR — 3,574
Interest paid classified as operating IAMFELTEREERS

cash flow mE — (3,574)

At 31 December 2021 R-BE-_—F+=-A=+—H 2,124,949 93,862

Interest-bearing

borrowings Lease Liabilities

sFEER HEAEE

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETF T AR®ET T

At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-—ZTH—F—H 2,313,776 1,388

Changes from financing cash flows MERSTMENE( 165,803 (4,132)

New lease MEE = 19,399

Interest expense MEEH — 2,335
Interest paid classified as operating IRFMESEREXRS

cash flow mE — (2,335)

Increase arising from acquisition of U B F A R E A 89 38 N
a subsidiary S 32,695
At 31 December 2020 RZZB_ZTF+_HA=+—H 2,479,579 49,350
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39.Notes to the consolidated statement of 0.4 HERERME @
cash flows (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c0 HER& R LR
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement HemEXPEENEEReRH AR
of cash flows is as follows: (N

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ENE

Within operating activities R EEH 3,574 2,335
Within financing activities REEEE A 26,250 4,132
29,824 6,467
40.Capital commitments 40. 8 A E
Capital commitments that relate to the purchase of property, EABEYE BERRBR-_ZE=Z—FK
plant and equipment outstanding at 31 December 2021 and TECEFT_A=T-—HHEAEERAEXR
2020 not provided for in the financial statements are as TEM MR ANBENEREEZENAT :
follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T NG

Contracted but not provided for BRI AW ERFHREE 465,020 523,136
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41.Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the Group had the following
material related party transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel receive compensation in the form
of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary
bonuses and retirement scheme contributions. Details of key
management personnel remuneration are disclosed in note 9.

(b) Transactions with a director of a subsidiary and entities
controlled by the directors of the Company/ the investor of

NBEBRIERS
BB IR E A 3R PRI RS 5 R A AN -
FEMENTEABB TS :

(a) TE2EEABZM

TEEBRABNES FE RH - EY
Flak - BB IEA RORRET BI Xy 77 X
MM E  EEEEABFHMFBERH
Ao EE -

() EHRBRARAN -—BEERARAEERS

ARARMEABNKREEMIEGNER

a subsidiary
2021 2020
—E-— & ZEZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Purchases of goods and services from: MTAEREE KRS -
the entities controlled by the directors of RABEZHESZNELRM
the Company or close family members Sl E S
of the directors 419 712
the entities controlled by the investor of KARIMEBREIMKRE SR
a subsidiary ZHEE 4,605 3,440
5,024 4,152
Receipt of short-term loan from: I B AR 2R B0 8 B E K
a director of a subsidiary WMBARMH —BESE 373 12,445
Repayment of principal of short-term loan WEI AT RIRER S HE R
from: rEEE:
a director of a subsidiary MEBARMH —BESE — 3,945
Repayment of interest of short-term loan WEHEI AT RIRERM S HER
from: MEEE:
a director of a subsidiary MEARMH —BESE 348 311
Note: B =

In the opinion of the directors, the transactions between the Group
and the related parties were conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms, and the
pricing terms were based on the prevailing market prices.

EEZRR AKERERHB T AN HRE—
BEAREHBETREFTHERIET
EBERDRREAMOTHEN -
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41.Related party transactions (continued) MNBEERZ @
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (0 HEABAFZEMEKREELH

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T N

Trade and bills receivables: EWREZERRER :
an associates of the Group NE BB E QA 103 103
Trade payables: ERE SRR
the entities controlled by the directors of RARESZHNESHIMBAN
the Company or close family members 2 iloN-¥:
of the directors’ 274 291
Short-term loan: REER
a director of a subsidiary WEBARMN —BESE 8,214 8,189
Note: B &

The Group had an outstanding balance due to a director of a
subsidiary amounted to HK$11,389,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,214,000) as at the end of the reporting period. This loan was
received from a director of a subsidiary, and the loan is unsecured,
with a 5% annual interest rate.

Except for the short-term loan from a director of a subsidiary, the
other balances were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable
on demand. Trade receivables from and trade payables to related
parties were repayable or to be settled on settlement period agreed
by both parties.

RFEBRK  AEEE—HBRARN—ZE
ER AR EEE# 511,389,000 (HHER
AR #8,214,0007T) - ZERZR—HMEA
AN —ZEFEES ZEXAREER 75
R A5% o

BRTR-FENBARN -2 EEREFHEH
BN BB E REER 2 RARE
SRIEE - R A R 7 B 8 R AR SO B A BR R
EREEHNNENEETHRANGEEH -

-
T

-
%
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42.Financial instruments by category NREEHRE TN BEITA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREPHEER  SEMBEIEMNKEARE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as U
follows:
2021 —E-—F
Financial assets WBEE

Financial

Financial assets at fair assets at
value through other amortised
comprehensive income cost
LL#E N

RABEEB B 7S 5 i BY

HtGEeWENMBEE MEEE
Debt Equity
investment investment
BHERE RERE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR¥TR AR%®Txn

Equity investments designated 3@ 3@ E b 47 & Uk 25 LA

at fair value through other PREBEKBENRE
comprehensive income A& — 190 — 190
Financial assets included in ATAERKE ZER R
trade, bills receivables and EEMEREEN
contract assets M EE 700,504 — 1,093,651 1,794,155
Financial assets included in FFATER A - EAth
prepayments, other JE UK IE e E i &
receivables and other assets ENTBEE — — 106,556 106,556
Pledged deposits BT FER — — 751,278 751,278
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEY — — 431,561 431,561
Financial assets included in SFARBTEMNRIE R
long term prepayments and H b, & W SR IE A B
other receivables BEE — — 1,532 1,532
700,504 190 2,384,878 3,085,572
Financial liabilities BB amE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
LU H &R 2R 51 iR
WE & & et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®F T
Trade and bills payables ERNEZERREE 2,242,716 2,242,716
Financial liabilities included in other  &F A B b & 1+ 3R IH & fE 51 5 X 49
payables and accruals W% a & 493,378 493,378
Interest-bearing bank and other AERITRAMEER
borrowings 2,124,949 2,124,949

4,861,043 4,861,043

BT
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NRZEHET>VHETRE®

42 Financial instruments by category (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREPHEER SEMBEIANKERE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: R (88)
(continued)
2020 —E_EHF
Financial assets MGEE
Financial assets at fair value Financial
through other comprehensive assets at
income amortised cost Total
LA 5K
AR EEBBR BX 7R 5] i 9
Hftir e W= 5 & E W& E #Et
Debt Equity
investment investment
BEBRE RRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETIT ARBTT AR®ETT ARBTE
Equity investments designated — Bi@E 4R & Uk A
at fair value through other AR EEEENR
comprehensive income - = 190 = 190
Financial assets included in FFABRKE SRR R
trade, bills receivables and ZEMEREED
contract assets A E 686,613 — 1,109,702 1,796,315
Financial assets included in AT ATER A - HAi
prepayments, other JE Y K18 e E i &
receivables and other assets ENMBEE — — 22,973 22,973
Pledged deposits B #1177 5K = = 686,100 686,100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBE2EEY = — 456,265 456,265
Financial assets included in AFARBBEMAREAER
long term prepayments and H th & I SR IE ) B
other receivables BEE = = 398 398
686,613 190 2,275,438 2,962,241
Financial liabilities B aE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
LA #8085 B 7R 71 iR
W EE -
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREETTT AREFT
Trade and bills payables EREZERARER 2,011,213 2,011,213
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A E fil & - 5K 18 [ JE 51 i 2 &89
payables and accruals B%aE 206,724 206,724
Interest-bearing bank and other AERRITRAMEER
borrowings 2,479,579 2,479,579
4,697,516 4,697,516
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42.Financial instruments by category (continved) 42. 3R EH B S HWEB I T Ew)

Transfers of financial assets

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed
Bills”) with a carrying amount of RMB288,261,000 to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”), and factored certain trade
receivables(”Accounts Receivable Factor”) with a carrying
amount of RMB71,126,000 to banks in Mainland China to
obtain the cash and cash equivalent(the “Factoring”). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has retained the substantial
risks and rewards, which include default risks relating to such
Endorsed Bills and Accounts Receivable Factor, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Bills and Accounts Receivable Factor.

Subsequent to the Endorsement and the Factoring, the Group
did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills and
the Accounts Receivable Factor, including the sale, transfer or
pledge of the Endorsed Bills and the Accounts Receivable Factor
to any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the
trade payables settled, cash and cash equivalent obtained by the
Endorsed Bills and the Accounts Receivable Factor during the
year was RMB354,622,000 and RMB56,344,000 respectively as
at 31 December 2021.

43.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 43.

financial instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

HEVWKEE
R-ZB-_—F+-_A=+—8 A&EEDY
EZIRMEE A AR #288,261,0007T H) F B A ity
BTEBEINBIRREER((BEEZE) 5
TFHEm  WEBRNZSHERN M ENK
(TEE]) IHEEEASARKT1,126,0007T
WETESEKRFIEZEFBEARREMNRITEST
RERBE(EREBEBUEREZR]D  UEERE R
HeEZBEY((RE]) -TEERA  A£ER
BTEARBRMBFH EREFEHZEEE
BREVREFREGEMNENRR  Bit - &
CSEEBERZEEEZEREREBRKE
R PEEEE -

REENRER AEEHEEERERCRK
BEREEARCREEAERBEN BEEE
EZBREREBERBREEROLE  BERE
REEMEBE=7 R_ZE-_—F+_H
Z=t—B AEEREBEERBEREBRER
AFrmEENESRNERRESHNRES R
ReFEBEYNERERLASBEINAARE
354,622,0007T A A E #56,344,0007T °

AFERAFEER

NTRAEESRTANEEBENARE
B RREBEABBEIAABENS®
T RSN :

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair value amount Fair value
IREEE DAREE FEER RAEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBEF T ARBEFT ARBFT

Financial liabilities BHKEE

Other loans HER 209,670 205,069 4,060 3,809
209,670 205,069 4,060 3,809
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43.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of

financial instruments (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing borrowings and other borrowings,
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group'’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were assessed to be
insignificant.

B LPFEERAIFEEBH®

EEECHERENREEEY BERES
R AR R EE - st ABMNRE - i
BREEMEEFHNESREE SHAEME
NRMEAERPHNERAGE HAREER
HEENAABEXROCEKAEER T8
EHNELTABHAIE-

MY BEERENEEMBHMEERES
MITAAABEFENBRNERF - KR
EEEMNERVBENEAZEGRE - &
BERER BB T ABED
B UEEHETERNIZGAHIE-
HEREFEVBEESTHE - FFEER
ZEEUWMAFEEREMER  ETP
HMFEREHBRE -

TREENARENAABEEEARE T2
MAENXZPAUNIBRTANESE A
EREARNFEHERNERE -

TR D 2T BBITNEMERNAARE
BERBBEAEFELUE 5 AR B A F
HERO T EME e AR ERIFEEHAR
RKEERERFEN  HEZFT=_—F+=
A=+—H BRAEEYHSRITMEA
EBREENEBORBRMERN AL BEE
W RAESTEKRM -

[ TF
¥ e
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43.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 3. 2FERAFEEHKE®

financial instruments (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an
appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/
EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated
by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by
an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted
for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to
the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity
investments to measure the fair value. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has
estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

FTRBREENA R BENTERESER -
NAABEFELEESH AL MES WS
WIELETRERENAAEBEDRELZEA
BERMBERIFERIFONBRINTS-HE
BRETH HEERESRETE B
R EENBEEEA L EmAF (A7) I
AEEEHF AL ARNEEENERRS
P EEERRRHNE  HE - -MER
# 45 BT &2 A ([EV/EBITDA ) fZ & A1 7 & =
(TPENEZ - SHERABB I L AR E
BEBRAKZESIZERAEN - RiE - ZR
ARIBTHNEEMER  EEA LA EZHE
HRBETENREZEEZERE  RHBEH
SHWIIE - FEETRERENHR RS E
FATRESETEAABE -EERE ' BE
HERMTMAAGEHBERIRZAAEBE
Mt AEMRARENEBALEBEESE
AN WHRBEHRRERAENRE-

HRUAAARBEFEEEEHFARLMES
WaHMNFFLETERERENAAEE  EEE
ERFERAEANRENBERTRERMGER
R A AENEERXE -
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43.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of B.ArFERAFEEHK@®

financial instruments (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

UTFTREBEZE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HHM=
T -_TFE+ A=+ BYHELRMITAEMGBED
EATAIERH ABNHEENRESSUKNE

A7 -
Significant Sensitivity of fair
Valuation technique unobservable input Range value to the input
ArfBEE
il {8 £ i BERATAIBEREAE #HE 5 8 A\ (B 7 UK
Unlisted equity Valuation multiples  Median P/B RMB187,000 to 1% (2020: 1%)
investments HEBH T OF R A LS RMB229,000 increase/decrease
ELEMRERE (2020: in multiple would

RMB172,000 to
RMB210,000)

AR #187,0007T &
AR #229,0007T
(2020 : AR
172,000t E AR
#210,0007T)

result in increase/
decrease in fair
value by RMB2,000
(2020: RMB1,900)
1% (2020 : 1% ) &
e m,Om 58
BMAARBEEM

B AR 2,000
T (20204 : AR
#1,9007T)

Discount for lack of
marketability
RemismEETRE

26% (2020: 29%)
26% (2020 : 29%)

1% (2020: 1%)
increase/decrease
in discount would
result in decrease/
increase in fair
value by RMB2,800
(2020: RMB2,700)

1% (2020%F : 1% ) #7
RN R ]
BARBERL
A R#2,8007T
(20205 : AR
2,7007T)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market

RZMERBUEFBREASEMEEE#ED
S2REENRETERSZERNEEMTE

participants would take into account when pricing the o
investments.
Fair value hierarchy NTFEER

The following table illustrate the fair value measurement TERHAAFREESRIANARBENZE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
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43.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 3. 2FERAFEEHKE®
financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEERE
(@) Assets measured at fair value (@) AAREBEFENEE
As at 31 December 2021 RZTE—Z—F+=A=+—H

Fair value measurements using
AREEFETESR
Quoted prices in
Fair value at  active markets Significant other Significant
31 December for identical observable inputs unobservable
2021 assets (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)

R=B=—-%  EFEEN EEX B X
+t=A=t-B ERFSHE HELTEERA  FTREHA
WA REE (E-FR)  (F-ER)  (B=EH)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRE  ARETR  ARETR

Financial assets HBEE
Equity investments AR EEFEEH
designated at fair value ZEAHMES
through other W 2 ) IR A 1% B
comprehensive income 190 — — 190
Bills receivable eSS 700,504 — 700,504 —
700,694 — 700,504 190
As at 31 December 2020 R—E-—Tg+-A=+—A
Fair value measurements using
RABEFESER
Quoted prices in
Fair value at active markets for  Significant other Significant
31 December identical assets observable inputs unobservable
2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
RZE-ZF HREEHR B2 EZDN
+-A=+—"H EERMISRE HMABEEHA T BEHA
NAREE (B—ER) (BZE#R) (B=ER)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTTT AREFTT AREFTT
Financial assets HBEE
Equity investments UARBEFEEHE
designated at fair value SEEAHMEE
through other W RiERE
comprehensive income 190 = = 190
Bills receivable g eSS 686,613 = 686,613 =

686,803 — 686,613 190
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. AFERIAFEEERE

NEEERE
MAAEESEOEE(H)
ENEZERZEOAABESELD
M

43.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
(@) Assets measured at fair value (continued) (a)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt NG R

Equity investments at fair value through other KAREETEBHEESHT A

comprehensive income E A ir & W a0 IR R &

At 1 January n—H—H 190 1,800
Purchases BE — 190
Disposals = — (1,800)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 190 190

(b) RAREEIENEE
RZE-_—F+=-_RA=+—H

(b) Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
As at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurements using

ARAEBEEFEDER

Fair value at Quoted prices in Significant Significant
31 December  active markets observable inputs unobservable
2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
R=B=—% BEEW BEX
t=ZA=+-—~H EBRTSEE AEZEHA FAAEHER A
MAREE (E—E&) (BB (E=E&)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETTT AREFTT
Financial liabilities Mg EE
Other loans H A B 216,044 — 216,044 —
216,044 — 216,044 —
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(BRBBEHEI

AAREIE)

43.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(b) Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

BB.AFERAFEEBR®

N EERE)
by LAARBEIENEE(E)
RZEZFTF+_A=+—H

Fair value measurements using
ARABEEFENER

Fair value at  Quoted prices in Significant Significant
31 December active markets observable inputs unobservable
2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
RZTZZF BEEZH DN
+=—RA=+—"H ERT S WME AEZE A P BEHA
HNAREE (E—ER (EZER) (E=ZER)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARMEFTT ARBF T ARBTFT ARMEFTT
Financial liabilities M aE
Other loans HAth B K 3,809 = 3,809 =
3,809 = 3,809 =

44.Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalent
and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

/B EREER R BER

AEENTIESRITABRRITLEME S
EE REMBASEZEMAREERETR - Z
ZeMIANTIEENRALIEENEES
SEz AKBEAZHEAMEREEREE
PIInEREZERARENBE SRR EER
BHZE-

AEEERTAEANTIERARAGEERR
nBETRR  FMEXRERMINERR BEEE
BEEVRBEEELRBOBEK  REMT
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The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Head of Credit
Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

As at 31 December 2021

44.Financial risk management objectives and 44.B K EREEE N REE @)
policies (continued)

(a) Credit risk (a) = E R

AEEERFERLAREEAENFE =
TETRS - WBAKENBEK - AR
BEEGRETRINEPLERBE
ERBRFE  DAEE - WIN AEH
EREERBRRAEHRNERL MAKHE
ZEBRRBRILTEAK - BN ARERBERE
REBNINEEEHENR S K&
EZHNAEANKNLE AEETE

REEEHEK -

&= B R & F R B
TREMREAKBEEERRZEEE
EREERRZEARR(EIZRER
TaHER FRIFBREBBERALLE N
mARBSEMEREE) KRR+ = A
=t HZEREERIE-

RZF-Z—Ff+=-/F=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
HHEE
[ 2HEHEEBE

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach

SR B SE2M By IR  BLEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR®BTR AR®TR

Trade receivables* W E 5 BR 5+ — — — 1,205,268 1,205,268
Bills receivable [ U = 5%

— Not yet past due — IR 4 700,504 — — — 700,504
Financial assets included in HBEECRERM

prepayments and other HIE - REMRE

current assets BE

— Normal** — MBS 106,556 — — — 106,556

— Doubtful** — RER*= — — — — —
Restricted deposits B #1177 3K

— Not yet past due — I K 751,278 — — — 751,278
Cash and cash equivalents RelkReEFHEER

— Not yet past due — I K8 431,861 — — — 431,861
Long term receivables & BB R 1,532 - - — 1,532

1,991,731 — — 1,205,268 3,196,999
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44.Financial risk management objectives and 44.F ¥ EREEEH W RBE @)
policies (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

(a) EERK (&)
&= R K& F R (E)
R-EFE-—FF+-_[H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
HHEE
BB ZHEHREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F1PEER EVL= E3MER i1k 50
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables* & 5 B+ = = — 1,240,634 1,240,634
Bills receivable JEW = %
— Not yet past due — Wk @ 686,613 — — — 686,613
Financial assets included in B EEDREREN
prepayments and other HIE - RHM RS
current assets BE
— Normal** — ER 22,973 = = — 22,973
— Doubtful** — REEwx — — _ _ _
Restricted deposits iR #1113 3%
— Not yet past due — Wk @ 686,100 — — — 686,100
Cash and cash equivalents RelkReEFHEER
— Not yet past due — k@ 456,265 — — — 456,265
Long term receivables R HIE LR 398 = — — 398
1,852,349 = == 1,240,634 3,092,983

* For trade receivables included in trade, bills receivables and

* %

contract assets, to which the Group applies the simplified
approach, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments and other current assets and financial assets
included in other non-current assets is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade, bills receivables
and contract assets, and prepayments and other current
assets are set out in notes 23 and 24.

* %

HRAEERERABREBLTEZRKRES
ERX(BEERESRRARZBEMNEHE
E)ME REBGBER2EHNNITBER
HEI 23R HER o

BEARNREA EMABHEERMEE

BBEEBNSIERUARZEERRD
Rig LA EEREAZRHWERIER] -
EJ?JJ CHMBEEZEEERRARIR
BR]o

AEEEBREERESEREEZEENEG
NEE TENFREREMRESDEEME
S EERBREHMZE— T TEEHES
RIS BA T R 45 MY 5123 244 BE o
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44.Financial risk management objectives and 44. B EMREEEH W RBE @
policies (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) MEBE T E B

As detailed in note 2.1, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB768,725,000 as at 31
December 2021. The liquidity of the Group is primarily
depending on its ability to maintain adequate cash flows
from operations, to renew its short-term bank loans and to
obtain adequate external financing to support its working
capital and meet its obligations and commitments when
they become due. Management is taking certain actions to
address these conditions in accordance with the Group's
policy of regularly monitoring its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. These actions
include negotiating with banks to renew the short term
loans and to explore the availability of alternative sources of
financing. Further details of these actions and bank loans
concerned are set out in note 2.1.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group'’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

b

B2 TRl AEBR - = —
T+ A=t HBHNAHAGERBAE RS
& E AR ¥768,725,0007T © 48 £ B i &
BT EREENKCETRHEBEHNEE
Hene BEEHERHETERERSE
HAENBREUNZIHFHEELE S KRE
HEBITHEESERAENRED - BEX
EETHEREEHNBERRHESN
EROBRE BEEBCRZEBRER
ETTEH UBRRELFTHRSHE
kRS REMEBNES AR ALEESR
B AENREHORHEST K - %E
THRREEBTETEIUENCHE
AEAREMRERE ZETHRE
TERNE— T FBHRME2.1 -

TREJNAKEFHFEBERBEMEE
EANBRTANER FHEMBEEBED
URFRANRSRE (BRRESHF
XF(MABZERIRERSHRAEERE
AIF R EO M BN F) A RAREEE
RORFAMIERER -
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44.Financial risk management objectives and 44.BM K EREBEE N REE @
policies (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) MmBE T (&)

2021
ZB--F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AFRANALR

More than More than
Carrying Within 1year but 2 years but

amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
R+=A
=t-BH —ERg BE-F BBmE
KEfE AR RERAR  EOREmE  BIRIE BRLF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR  AR%Txn

Short-term bank loans BHBTER 1,915,279 1,976,203 1,976,203 - - -
Long-term hank and other loans RAFTREMER 209,670 240,037 9,877 49,702 180,458 -
Trade and bills payables ERNESEARENZE 2,242,716 2,242,716 2,242,116
Other payables and accruals AtERFEREGER 493,378 493,378 493,378 - - -
Lease liabilties REBRE 93,862 100,503 18,534 18,011 42,001 21,957
4,954,905 5,052,837 4,740,708 67,713 22,459 21,957
2020
g Sk 3:3
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRENRETML
More than More than
Carrying Within 1 year but 2 years but
amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December Total on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
R+=A
=t+-A# —£Rg BB—F BBRE
BHE g% BEREN  EIRWME  EBIRLE BBLE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  AR®TR AR¥TZI ARETT ARETR

Short-term bank loans BBROER 2,475,519 2,527,830 2,527,830 = = =
Long-term bank and other loans REROREMLER 4,060 4,168 53 2,750 1375 -
Trade and hills payables EABAEARENEE 2,011,213 2,011,213 2,011,213 - - -
Other payables and accruals EEAREREHER 206,724 206,724 206,724 - - -
Lease liabilities RERE 49,350 61,740 11479 13,204 18,134 18,923

4,746,866 4,811,675 4,757,289 15,954 19,509 18,923

o

T
s
e G
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44.Financial risk management objectives and 44. B EMREEEH W RBE @
policies (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

(o) F = [ B

Except for bank deposits and RMB wealth management
products with stable interest rates, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. Accordingly, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk, respectively. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate
risk.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings at the end of the
reporting period.

BRREMENRITEFARAREENE
mih  AEES BEMERGFEEE - A
o REBEBNKRARKLEHEESRE AR
ETEmENEEHTE - AKENF
XEBRIEREEE - FERELREE
EAEEDRAZERS RN ERAREA
FEMNERR ASELEERITEN
BT A MEFRER -

(i) ARBR
TRFVNAEENREHMEMEER
fEEFRO M LR

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR T

Variable rate ZEEE
borrowings

Short-term bank and HHREMBITER

other loans 154,597 117,578
Fixed rate borrowings EEEE
Short-term bank and HHRHEMBITER
other loans ‘ 1,760,682 2,357,941
Long-term other loans REEMER 209,670 4,060
1,970,352 2,362,001
Total borrowings BERE 2,124,949 2,479,579
BB

s
-
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44.Financial risk management objectives and 44.BM K EREEE N REEX @)
policies (continued)

(©)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

(c) I = [\ B (%)

(i) BBEDM

(d)

The Group
rEHE
2021 2020
—E--—-fF —ETF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
interest rate profit equity interest rate profit equity
FELH/ HEE(EE) HED Fl=rA,/ HEE(ER) HiEn
(F &) MBS O (R %) MHENZE 052 -
% RMB'000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®T T ARBFT ARBEFT
1 (1,546) (1,546) 1 (1,176) (1,176)
(1) 1,546 1,546 (1) 1,176 1,176
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the A FHRESITER - RENNEREH

corresponding effects for the year and equity that
would have arisen assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for the financial instruments in existence at that
date. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as 2020.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases, bank loans and cash and bank
deposits that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily the United States Dollar,
Euro, Hong Kong Dollar and Japanese Yen. Management
does not expect any significant impact from movements in
exchange rates since the Group uses the foreign currencies
collected from customers to settle the amounts due to
suppliers.

i-"wma

": \g&

RREREEEEEE  LHHXRE
B IE AN E X7 &I %5 T A A&
EONERRE  AEBMAIXTZER
R EE — T _TFNHDN
R PARR [R] A E AT o

(d) SME R B

REBAZWINERRR - TR KB A
M(Eﬂﬁﬁi %ﬁ%@ﬁ’]%%%%&‘ﬁ%%ﬁl\ﬁ’]
ER)FEMNHEERRE RITEFRUAR

Be RRITHER EEE%_W»E‘J T
ERET BT BLKAR- -EREEYL

THEMEXSHEERTIMNEATE
RERASEERE TP WEHINEF
B R KR -
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(BB AEEPEI

AARBIE)

44.Financial risk management objectives and 44.BM K EREEE N REEX @)
policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position (after elimination of
intercompany receivables and payables) denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

(d) &M R B (48)
(i) SMNERR

TERFVNAKEENRBEHEEEB
AYEEIMNE R - HME R R B LA E R
ERMEEBUIINEEFENER
AR B MR R (R 35 2 B 8 8 MR
ARENFAR) ERNEELAE

i 2 A o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

HERR (AARBTIE)
2021 2020
bt Sab:3 it S 33
United

United Hong Kong States Hong Kong Japanese

States Dollar Euro Dollar Japanese Yen Dollar Euro Dollar Yen

in B % A N B B B

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

I SN SN SO N L Sl A RETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Trade, bills receivables and contract ERESERR

assets RERANEE 38,053 168,362 - - = 96,703 = =

Cash at banks and on hand RORFHERE 340 97,879 924 615 2,878 19,654 1,597 67

Interest-bearing loans TRER (25,368) (126,987) (50,192) - (202,948) (76,206) (8375) =
Trade and bills payables ERESERR

LY - - - (973) = = = (75)

13,025 139,254 (49,268) (358) (200,070) 40,151 (6,778) 8)
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(RBBEAEN  UARYKEFIE)

44.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit/(loss) for the year and
accumulated losses in equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign Increase/
exchange (decrease)
rates in profit
Ext# HEEANE/
- (BRINYE
% RMB’000
ARBT R
United States Dollar x5 10 1,303
(10) (1,303)
Euro BT 10 13,925
(10) (13,925)
Hong Kong Dollar B 10 (4,927)
(10) 4,927

MEHERBEEENREBE®

(d) 5P Fe (48)

(ii)

Increase/
(decrease)

in equity
R
M
RMB’000
ARBTR

1,303
(1,303)

13,925
(13,925)

(4,927)
4,927

HRE DT
TRBETAKSEARBEHHEE
BERBESEAERNERTAELES
BEE mMBEAEEFENE (5
BIREZRBEERLRNEZ
) o

2020
—T-TH
Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign Increase/ Increase/
exchange (decrease) (decrease)
rates in profit in equity
Ex LA HEER }F‘i/ HEs
(T%)/ (BR)MZE %
% RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT
10 (20,007) (20,007)
(10) 20,007 20,007
10 4,015 4,015
(10) (4,015) (4,015)
10 (678) (678)
(10) 678 678

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments (excluding intercompany
receivables and payables which are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements) held by the Group
which exposed the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of the Group companies into
the presentation currency. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as 2020.

i-"wma

": \g&

BREISMDIBRRERBEHEX
EPEHABAEEMFASTHER
WEMESEE B AEIERRZ
EH?H‘%IE(T@% REMBHRERP
88 H 2 B] e WK IR K B R
) M ABESAEERERE
BEREREEMEENER - _F
“EEND MR AR EREST -
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44.Financial risk management objectives and 44. B EMREEEH W RBE @
policies (continued)

(e) Capital management () B EE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing
ratio as the ratio of total borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents, to the total of share capital and reserves.

Y

AEEESEENTIEBERARREALAS
ERECENRN THFERENER
X UXHBEEBETERREEBEZK
& e

REEEBHEEARERE  WIRELEMNR
LR AL AR B B E R R R R R B
THE - BREBSIARERER  A5E
AR AERABRREENRS  RARKRRE
REAARBTHBR AEETZEM
INFHEMAERERZHOR - BEZT
——F+-_A=t+—BNM=_E_TF+=
A=t—HL&E EBEANEEZE K
R MBRTLEZ -

AEBNEERBELXEREEANER -
RUTME ASBESEERBLEES
REEERE RRLASEEY B
BBRARFEFEOL X -
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(BRBBEHEI

AAREIE)

44.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as

ANBBEREERNREBE®

(e) B2 EIE(H)
R-E-_—FR-_ZT_FTFF+_A=+—

follows: BEMEEBBLEWNT :
2020
—E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR®E T AR Tt
Current liabilities: REBAE:
Bank and other loans RIT R E M B K 27 1,915,279 2,475,519
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE:
Bank and other loans R1T R E M B K 27 209,670 4,060
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R ERREEEY 26 (431,861) (456,265)
Net debt FEE 1,693,088 2,023,314
Share capital [N 285,924 270,867
Reserves it 90,490 (130,312)
376,414 140,555
Gearing ratio EEBMELE 449.79% 1,439.51%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

45.Events after the reporting period

In February 2022, Solargiga Energy (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Solargiga Hong Kong"”) entered into Equity Transfer
Agreement with Qujing Yangguang (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), pursuant to which Solargiga
Hong Kong agreed to sell and Qujing Yangguang agreed to

acquire the entire equity

interest
consideration of approximately RMB227,369,000.

in Youhua Silicon at
Upon

completion, the Group’s equity interest in Youhua Silicon

reduced from 100% to 53.70%.

AR E R E AT R KB A B35 8 A& 75
FIEINE B R E -

45. R EHI R B 18

RZEZ—_F-A BHreEREB)ERA
RI(EEG Y EARB Z2HEF2EWE
AaE BIEGY  FTMREEE RS B
EEBRXRAEHEREE MBBEELRE
KEHEEENEZBRE REHNAARE
227,369,0007T ° T AK & + 2 5 [ A 46 EE A Y
[i% 7 F1100% 3 £53.7% °©
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46.Statement of financial position of the 46.75 A 8] B B AR R &
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RNMERREEE R AR TSR RNER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T

Non-current assets FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR WNKE 1,364,262 1,364,112
Current assets REBEE

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHERS 1,709 1,820
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables and accruals HiENREREER 48,440 31,377
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (46,731) (29,557)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBES 1,317,531 1,334,555
Net assets EERE 1,317,531 1,334,555
Capital and reserves EXRHE

Share capital % < 285,924 270,867
Reserves (note) fi 85 (B 5E) 1,031,607 1,063,688
Total equity SR 1,317,531 1,334,555
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46.75 2 7] Bt 3 iR R & @)

46.Statement of financial position of the
Company (continued)

Note: B A -
Share Exchange  Accumulated Total
premium reserve losses reserves
B 17 % B ERRE 2t BB BRAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZE&-HF—H
) #5 82 1,731,645 61,574 (605,663) 1,187,556
Changes in equity for 2020: CECEENEREE:
Loss for the year FEEER = = (4,677) (4,677)
Effect of TDR shares repurchased EIEMZTHEAEFLRE
and cancelled -4 (5,611) — — (5,611)
Other comprehensive income H i 2w A — (113,580) — (113,580)
Total comprehensive income 2HEWABEE (5,611) (113,580) (4,677) (123,868)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZF
TZA=+-HN&EH 1,726,034 (52,006) (610,340) 1,063,688
Balance at 1 January 2021 R=Z2=-%-8-—H
B 45 B 1,726,034 (52,006) (610,340) 1,063,688
Changes in equity for 2021: “EC-FHEREE:
Loss for the year FEBE — — (4,462) (4,462)
Issue of shares BIIRG 26,367 — — 26,367
Other comprehensive income E i 2w A — (53,986) — (53,986)
Total comprehensive income 2HEHRAERE 26,367 (53,986) (4,662) (32,081)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B=-—F
TZA=+-HH&EH 1,752,401 (105,992) (614,802) 1,031,607

47 # E B BB &
BEEeER - E-_—_FZA-t+NhB%EL
A BHMBE®RE -

47.Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2022.
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